il

Tewkesbury
Borough Council

11 October 2021

Committee Planning

Date Tuesday, 19 October 2021

Time of Meeting 10:00 am

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices,
Severn Room

ALL MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ARE REQUESTED
TO ATTEND

Agenda

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the
nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the
visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further instructions
(during office hours staff should proceed to their usual assembly point;
outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ car park). Please do not re-
enter the building unless instructed to do so.

In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in
leaving the building.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the
Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare any
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the
approved Code applies.

A8

R X
VA
SNMVE

g S
s

Gloucester Road Tewkesbury Glos GL20 5TT Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021
Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk



mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Item

MINUTES
To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2021.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - APPLICATIONS TO THE BOROUGH
COUNCIL

(a) 21/00277/FUL - Tresco, Langley Road, Winchcombe

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey rear extension, first floor
extension and dormer windows.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.

(b) 21/000247/FUL - Beech Cottage, Stockwell Lane, Woodmancote
PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side extension, front porch,
demolition of existing garage and rebuild and alterations to existing
dwelling.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.

(c) 21/01008/FUL - 8 Keriston Avenue, Churchdown

PROPOSAL.: Erection of a two storey side extension.
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.
(d) 21/00702/FUL - Framfield, Two Hedges Road, Woodmancote

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey side extension
(resubmission).

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.
(e) 21/00657/FUL - 25 Tudor Close, Churchdown

PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey rear extension and garage
conversion.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.
(f) 20/01024/FUL - 15 Swallow Crescent, Innsworth

PROPOSAL: New attached two bedroom dwelling to the side of 15
Swallow Crescent.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.
(g) 21/00494/FUL - Brock Farm, Church Lane, Staverton

PROPOSAL: Change of use of land for the temporary siting of mobile
home (farm worker accommodation).

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.

Page(s)

1-33

34 - 45

46 - 57

58 - 66

67 - 80

81-91

92 -103

104 - 119



Item

(h) 20/01179/FUL - Land Adjacent to the Bungalow, Down Hatherley

(i)

()

Lane, Down Hatherley
PROPOSAL.: Erection of two single storey dwellings.
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit

21/00601/FUL - Croft Amber, Green Street, Brockworth

PROPOSAL: Change of use from granny annex to separate dwelling.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.

21/00347/FUL - Land Attached to April Cottage, 39 Newtown,
Toddington

PROPOSAL: Use of land for the stationing of two shepherd huts for
holiday let purposes and provision of associated vehicular parking
area.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.

(k) 21/00559/0UT - The Newtons, School Road, Apperley

PROPOSAL: Outline application for the erection of one dwelling with
all matters reserved for future consideration except for access.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit.

CURRENT APPEALS AND APPEAL DECISIONS UPDATE

To consider current planning and enforcement appeals and Department
for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities appeal decisions.

Page(s)

120 - 143

144 - 156

157 - 178

179 - 202

203 - 205

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
TUESDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2021
COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE

Councillors: R A Bird, G F Blackwell, R D East (Vice-Chair), J H Evetts (Chair), L A Gerrard,
M A Gore, D J Harwood, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan, J R Mason, P W Ockelton, A S Reece,
J K Smith, P E Smith, R J G Smith, P D Surman, R J E Vines, M J Williams and P N Workman

Substitution Arrangements

The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the
beginning of the meeting.




Item Page(s)

Recording of Meetings

In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chair will take reasonable
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with.

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers,
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting
will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting.



Agenda Item 4

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of a Meeting of the Planning Committee held at the Council Offices,
Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Tuesday, 21 September 2021
commencing at 10:00 am

Present:
Chair Councillor J H Evetts
Vice Chair Councillor R D East

and Councillors:

R A Bird, G F Blackwell, M A Gore, D J Harwood, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan, J R Mason,
P W Ockelton, A S Reece, J K Smith, P E Smith, C Softley (Substitute for R J G Smith),
P D Surman, R J E Vines, M J Williams and P N Workman
also present:

Councillor V D Smith

PL.22 ANNOUNCEMENTS

22.1 The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was advised to those present.

22.2 The Chair gave a brief outline of the procedure for Planning Committee meetings,
including public speaking.

PL.23 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

23.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R J G Smith. Councillor
C Softley would be acting as a substitute for the meeting.

PL.24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

24.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1
July 2012.



The following declarations were made:

Councillor

G F Blackwell

G F Blackwell

M A Gore

D J Harwood

M L Jordan

Application
No./Agenda Item

Agenda Item 5¢c —
21/00594/FUL —
Unit 1412, Charlton
Court, Gloucester
Business Park,
Brockworth.

Agenda Item 5d —
21/00595/FUL —
Unit 1414, Charlton
Court, Gloucester
Business Park,
Brockworth.

Agenda Item 5j —
20/00956/FUL -
25 Paynes Pitch,
Churchdown.

Agenda Item 5a —
21/00398/FUL —
Land South of
Wheatpieces,
Walton Cardiff,
Tewkesbury.

Agenda Item 5c¢ —
21/00594/FUL —
Unit 1412, Charlton
Court, Gloucester
Business Park,
Brockworth.

Agenda Item 5d —
21/00595/FUL —
Unit 1414, Charlton
Court, Gloucester
Business Park,
Brockworth.

Agenda Item 5j —
20/00956/FUL -
25 Paynes Pitch,
Churchdown.

Nature of Interest
(where disclosed)

Is a Member of
Hucclecote Parish
Council but does not
participate in
planning matters.

Is a Member of
Churchdown Parish
Council but does not
participate in
planning matters.

Had been in
discussions with
local residents in
relation to the
application but had
not expressed an
opinion.

Is a Member of
Brockworth Parish
Council but does not
participate in
planning matters.

Is a Member of
Churchdown Parish
Council but does not
participate in
planning matters.

PL.21.09.21

Declared
Action in
respect of
Disclosure

Would speak
and vote.

Would speak
and vote.

Would speak
and vote.

Would speak
and vote.

Would speak
and vote.



24.3

PL.25

25.1

PL.26

26.1

26.2

26.3

J R Mason Agenda Item 5h —
21/00277/FUL —
Tresco, Langley
Road,
Winchcombe.

R J E Vines Agenda Item 5c —
21/00594/FUL —
Unit 1412, Charlton
Court, Gloucester
Business Park,
Brockworth.

Agenda Item 5d —
21/00595/FUL —
Unit 1414, Charlton
Court, Gloucester
Business Park,
Brockworth.

Is a Member of
Winchcombe Town
Council but does not
participate in
planning matters.

Is a Gloucestershire
County Councillor for
the area.

There were no further declarations made on this occasion.

MINUTES

PL.21.09.21

Would speak
and vote.

Would speak
and vote.

The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 August 2021, copies of which had been
circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - APPLICATIONS TO THE BOROUGH COUNCIL

The objections to, support for, and observations upon the various applications as
referred to in Appendix 1 attached to these Minutes were presented to the
Committee and duly taken into consideration by Members prior to decisions being

made on those applications.

21/00398/FUL - Land South of Wheatpieces, Walton Cardiff, Tewkesbury

This application was for the erection of a two-storey office development (Class E
use). The application had been deferred at the Planning Committee meeting on 17
August 2021 for a Planning Committee Site Visit in order to assess the proposal in
the context of the objections raised by local residents. The Committee had visited
the application site on Friday 17 September 2021.

The Planning Officer advised that the application site comprised an undeveloped
parcel of land adjacent to Rudgeway Lane and to the east of the Bloor Homes
development at Tewkesbury Meadows. To the north of the site was a recreation
ground with housing at Nightingale Way and open fields to the south and east. The
application sought planning permission for a two-storey office building to provide a
new regional office for Bloor Homes. The building would be set to the western part
of the site and would flank towards Bluebell Road. The proposal included 66 car
parking spaces to the southern and eastern part of the site along with additional
landscaping to the site boundaries. Policy SD1 of the Joint Core Strategy set out
that employment-related development would be supported within the principal urban
area of Tewkesbury town and in the wider countryside when it was located within, or
adjacent to, a settlement - as in this instance — and when the development was of
an appropriate scale and character. This proposal accorded with the policy and
therefore was considered acceptable in principle. Members were advised that the
proposed two-storey building would have a simple linear form and a low pitched roof

3



26.4

PL.21.09.21

which had been designed to be reflective of an agricultural barn. The proposed
materials palette of red brick, metal cladding and roof slates would secure a
satisfactory appearance and would reflect materials used in the adjoining housing
development. Whilst the building would be substantial in terms of its width, it would
be set away from nearby dwellings and would not adversely impact the living
conditions of those occupiers, or the character and appearance of the wider area. It
was noted that the proposed development would result in some landscape harm;
however, it was considered this would be limited given the relationship of the site
with adjoining built development. A considerable number of objections had been
received with the main concern relating to highway safety. The Planning Officer
advised that the proposal would result in an increase in vehicles using Bluebell
Road and the scheme had been accompanied by a transport assessment. The
details had been reviewed by the County Highways Officer who had concluded that
the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact on highway safety or a
severe impact on congestion in terms of the wider road network. The Council’s
Ecologist was satisfied that the development would not adversely impact newts and
reasonable avoidance measures had been secured. He clarified that the Additional
Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1, included amended conditions to
replace conditions 4, 6, 7 and 11 as set out in the Committee report — these were
not additional conditions. On balance, the proposal was considered to be
acceptable and it was recommended that it be permitted, subject to the completion
of a legal agreement to secure a travel plan bond and monitoring fee, and
conditions set out in the Committee report, as amended by the Additional
Representations Sheet.

The Chair invited the applicant’s representative to address the Committee. The
applicant’s agent noted that the Committee had visited the application site the
previous week and he hoped that had been helpful, although Members would make
their own minds up as to whether the car parking arrangements they had
experienced on Bluebell Road were ‘normal’. He did not intend to repeat the
commentary in the Committee report except to highlight that the principle of the
proposed office development on the application site was accepted by Officers and
that there were no objections on matters of planning policy, highways, design and
visual amenity, landscape impact, flood risk, heritage or biodiversity — in fact, there
were no technical objections at all. That said, he wished to address comments from
within the local community which primarily related to matters of highway safety and
the impact of the additional car journeys on the local highway network. Those
concerns were appreciated and the applicant’s representative assured Members
that the nature of the operations - with staff and visitors entering and leaving the
offices throughout the day, as well as flexible working hours — meant that traffic
would be spread out; people did not all arrive and leave at the same time. Notably,
the Transport Assessment’s analysis of potential arrival and departure trips was
based on a robust ‘worst case’ scenario and, even then, the generation of 41 two-
way vehicle movements during the busiest peak hour only equated to a movement
every 90 seconds. Needless to say, this scenario had been carefully considered by
County Highways and its conclusion was clear and unequivocal. Given the
standard of Bluebell Road, with its 6.75 metre carriageway width, there would be no
highway safety or capacity implications as a result of the proposal and there were
no justifiable grounds on which an objection could be maintained. Some Councillors
may be aware that the current offices on Furrowfield Park were located at the end of
a residential cul-de-sac, with a narrower five metre carriageway width, and were
sited alongside a popular walking and cycling route to Tewkesbury School. To his
knowledge, there had never been any planning enforcement or community safety
complaints to, or action by, Tewkesbury Borough Council in respect of Bloor’s
business operations. There were internal procedures in place with regard to the
conduct of staff when entering and leaving the premises, including a 20mph speed
limit, and the applicant’s representative provided assurance those procedures would
be carried across to the new office. He wanted to reassure Members that the last

4



26.5

26.6

26.7

PL.21.09.21

thing they intended to do was compromise highway safety on Bluebell Road for
local residents of homes they were proud to have built. Finally, he could not really
comment on a petition that he had heard about, but never seen, except to say that
is should carry no weight in the Committee decision and he would be more than
happy to talk to Tewkesbury Town Colts about their sports pavilion requirements in
the context of Bloor's wider land interests in the area. He hoped that Members
would be able to support the Officer recommendation and enable the £56m
investment in Tewkesbury to proceed.

The Chair invited a local Ward Member to address the Committee. The local Ward
Member indicated that there were numerous planning reasons for the Committee to
refuse the application and he pointed out that the MP for Tewkesbury had submitted
a detailed response to the proposal along with many other written objections from
members of the public and a petition containing 420 signatories who were against
commercial development in a residential area. It was not about NIMBY-ism but
about appropriate development in appropriate locations and he believed the land in
guestion should be used for the benefit of the community, for instance, providing a
community hub or changing facilities for local teams. He asked Members to reject
the application and show developers and Officers that they were in charge and were
listening to their communities.

The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to delegate authority to
the Development Manager to permit the application, subject to the completion of a
legal agreement to secure a travel plan bond and monitoring fee, and conditions set
out in the Committee report as amended by the Additional Representations Sheet,
and he sought a motion from the floor. It was proposed and seconded that authority
be delegated to the Development Manager to permit the application in accordance
with the Officer recommendation. A Member indicated that he had attended the
Planning Committee site visit and had requested clarification on the number of
sports pitches in the locality and the designation of the land in the masterplan. In
terms of the petition, he noted that many of the signatories had addresses which
were not within the borough, let alone in the immediate area impacted by the
proposal. In response, the Planning Officer advised that there was an
acknowledged need for new sports pitches in the Tewkesbury Borough area as
there was a lot of demand from up and coming teams. The applicant had been
required to provide Section 106 contributions towards playing pitch provision as part
of the Wheatpieces development and he understood there was a parcel of land in
the Wheatpieces area which could potentially be used for that purpose but there
was resistance from the Parish Council to make that available for sports pitch use.
In terms of the designation, the land fell outside of the original application for the
area and was a piece of land which the applicant had since acquired. A Member
sought clarification as to whether his understanding was correct in that there would
be a lot of land left over which could potentially be used for sports pitches after this
development was built but the land had not been designated as such. The Planning
Officer confirmed that was correct and indicated that the land beyond was open
countryside.

In terms of traffic, a Member noted that the proposal included 66 car parking spaces
with overspill provision for 20 more which was a total of 86 spaces; however, Page
No. 65, Paragraph 7.8 of the Committee report, stated that the Transport
Assessment had predicted that the proposal would generate 40 trips in the morning
peak and 41 trips in the evening peak. Whilst she appreciated there was provision
for visitors, she felt that the amount of spaces being provided indicated that further
traffic would be created. In response, the Planning Officer drew attention to Page
No. 66, Paragraph 7.12 of the Committee report, which stated that car parking
standards were set out within the Manual for Gloucestershire Streets and, for non-
residential uses such as this, there was no defined parking standard so it was
expected that commercial operators were best placed to understand the needs of
the business. In this case, a total of 86 car parking spaces had been proposed; as

5



26.8

26.9

26.10
26.11

26.12

PL.21.09.21

working offices there would be a number of staff based in the building and there
would occasionally be training events when people from other areas attended,
which was the purpose of the overspill area, so a greater number of spaces were
being provided than the immediate need. The Member expressed the view that 40
trips in the morning and 41 trips in the afternoon was far from accurate. The
Development Manager indicated that the applicant had planned for the worst case
scenario on the basis that it was better to contain parking within the site than to
overspill into the residential areas. The representative from County Highways
clarified that the trips identified in the Transport Assessment and referenced by the
Member were single peak trips for the morning and afternoon — there would be
traffic both before and after the peak hours. He explained that 40 car parking
spaces did not necessarily equate to 40 vehicles as not everyone arrived at the
same time. County Highways considered the parking arrangements to be adequate
and there were no concerns about the projected traffic. The Development Manager
reminded Members that the applicant’s representative had spoken about flexible
working and people arriving at different times during the day.

A Member indicated that he had sympathy with the local Ward Member and
residents. He recognised that some of the signatories on the petition were not from
the local area but the majority were from the Wheatpieces estate or Walton Cardiff.
The proposal was a great disappointment for residents who had been told there
would be a different use for the land and had bought houses with that in mind. This
did not sit comfortably with him and he felt the applicant could have found a more
appropriate location for its commercial offices so he was not able to support the
application.

Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That authority be DELEGATED to the Development Manager to
PERMIT the application, subject to the completion of a legal
agreement to secure a travel plan bond and monitoring fee, and
conditions set out in the Committee report as amended by the
Additional Representations Sheet.

21/00391/FUL - 39 Yew Tree Way, Churchdown

This application was for erection of a single storey front extension.

The Development Manager advised that a Committee determination was required
as the Parish Council had objected to the proposal on the grounds that the
extension would have an unacceptable impact on the streetscene and would create
a precedent. Whilst those concerns were noted, there were other examples of this
type of development in the local area in close proximity to the site. Overall, the
proposal was considered to be of a suitable size and design and would be in-
keeping with the area with no undue impact on neighbouring residents, therefore,
the Officer recommendation was to permit.

The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item. The Officer
recommendation was to permit the application and he sought a motion from the
floor. It was proposed and seconded that the application be permitted in
accordance with the Officer recommendation and, upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the
Officer recommendation.



26.13

26.14

26.15

26.16

26.17

26.18

PL.21.09.21

21/00594/FUL - Unit 1412, Charlton Court, Gloucester Business Park,
Brockworth

This application was for proposed alterations to include the provision of external
condenser units, additional louvres and CCTV cameras to the external elevations of
the building.

The Development Manager advised that the wrong plans had been included with
the Committee report for this item and he apologised for this error; the correct plans
were included within the Additional Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1.
He explained that a Committee determination was required as Brockworth Parish
Council had objected to the proposal due to concerns in relation to noise, air
pollutants and odours coming from business premises in the area and the impact on
local residents; although the site was within Hucclecote, Brockworth Parish Council
was concerned about the potential environmental impacts. Whilst those concerns
were noted, the nearest residential dwellings were over 100 metres from the site.
The submitted noise report concluded there would be no adverse impact on the
nearest residents and the Council’s Environmental Health Officer had raised no
objections in terms of noise nuisance or air quality. Overall, the proposal would be
of an appropriate size and design and the external appearance would be in keeping
with the character and appearance of existing businesses on the business park.
Therefore, the Officer recommendation was to permit the application.

The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item. The Officer
recommendation was to permit the application and he sought a motion from the
floor. It was proposed and seconded that the application be permitted in
accordance with the Officer recommendation. The proposer of the motion
expressed the view that more of these type of applications should be expected as
technology moved forward and she suspected it would become less noisy as it
advanced; nevertheless, in this instance a noise assessment had been undertaken
and had shown there would be no adverse impact. The seconder of the motion felt
that, on the basis of the Environmental Health Officer’s report, he did not think there
was any option other than to permit. Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the
Officer recommendation.

21/00595/FUL - Unit 1414, Charlton Court, Gloucester Business Park,
Brockworth

This application was for proposed alterations to include the provision of external air
handling units and condenser units and additional louvres to the external elevations
of the building.

The Development Manager indicated that there was very little to add that had not
been said under the previous Agenda item. This building was actually further away
from residential properties to the north and was screened behind the building which
was the subject of the previous Agenda item.

The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item. The Officer
recommendation was to permit the application and he sought a motion from the
floor. It was proposed and seconded that the application be permitted in
accordance with the Officer recommendation and, upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the
Officer recommendation.



26.19

26.20

26.21

PL.21.09.21

21/00411/FUL - Land West of Manor Cottage, Walton Hill, Deerhurst

This application was for the erection of a single residential dwelling (C3) and
associated operational development (Plot 1).

The Development Manager advised that the application site was between the
dwellings known as Laurel Cottage to the west and Manor Cottage to the east. Two
separate applications — this application and application ref: 21/00412/FUL which
was Agenda Item 5f — had been submitted for this site which had been granted
permission in principle last year for two dwellings; therefore, the principle of
development was acceptable. The site was bounded by established
trees/hedgerows and was located within the Landscape Development Zone. There
was an existing Public Right of Way passing through the site which was proposed to
be diverted, subject to a current footpath diversion order which would need to be
resolved before any works could take place. There was an existing agricultural
access along the southern (front) boundary of the site which would be improved to
serve the proposed dwelling. County Highways had considered the proposals and
raised no objections, subject to conditions. Members were informed that the
maximum height of the proposed dwelling would be approximately 7.8 metres with
eaves catsliding down the front elevation to reduce the apparent bulk of the building.
The design incorporated a number of traditional features such as eaves detailing, a
timber canopy and chimneys. The proposal also comprised a two-bay detached
garage sited to the west of the house. The scale and design of the proposed
development overall was considered acceptable and, in the Officers’ opinion, there
would be an acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the area. The
dwellings would have a permeable driveway discharging stormwater directly to
ground, as per the existing greenfield site, and the stormwater drainage system
would flow to the north-east of the proposed dwelling boundary to a new crate
soakaway. Soakaway testing and infiltration rates had been provided and the Lead
Local Flood Authority was satisfied with the information. Whilst some trees and
hedgerows were proposed to be removed, these had been assessed by the Tree
Officer who was satisfied that those to be lost were unremarkable specimens so this
was acceptable, subject to a high-quality landscaping scheme being secured by
condition. The Development Manager drew attention to the Additional
Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1, which set out that condition 7 in
relation to ecological enhancements had been reworded at the request of the agent.
Further to that, the agent had suggested alternative wording for condition 10 to
make it more specific and less onerous — this seemed reasonable on first reading;
however, it was necessary to consult the Council’s Ecological Adviser to ensure
they were satisfied. On that basis, the Officer recommendation was to delegate
authority to the Development Manager to permit the application, subject to the
amendment of condition 10 provided that the Ecological Adviser was satisfied with
the proposed rewording.

The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee. The applicant’s
agent indicated that, as set out in the Committee report, the Council had granted
permission in principle on this site for two infill dwellings within the last 12 months.
That application was approved on the basis of housing comprising sustainable
development in the context of the National Planning Policy Framework’s tilted
balance and given the relative accessibility of the site with its location in close
proximity to the A38 corridor. That application had been supported by Deerhurst
Parish Council; hence permission was granted under delegated authority. The two
applications before Members today for housing on this land were entirely consistent
with the permission in principle application. As such, although these proposals had
come forward as separate full applications, he suggested that Members ought to be
limiting their consideration to matters of design, layout and access with the principle
having been firmly established. As concluded by Officers, the proposal fitted with
the broadly linear pattern of development on the northern side of the lane and would

8



26.22

26.23

PL.21.09.21

sit between other housing in the village on a spacious plot. The size and design of
the dwelling would largely reflect characteristics of other properties in the area, both
in terms of its footprint and height. The applicant and agent had worked closely with
Officers to ensure the majority of mature boundary treatments would be retained
and they had agreed there would be no adverse environmental impacts. The
scheme had been amended in line with Officers’ comments to ensure that the
development was as well-designed as possible. The application was accompanied
by a range of assessments which demonstrated that safe and convenient access
could be achieved off the lane with visibility splays in accordance with local
transport standards. There was also adequate space for turning and manoeuvring
of vehicles within the site. The arboricultural assessment demonstrated that mature
boundary trees could be retained on site, with only light cutting back along the
frontage to achieve the required visibility splays, and the drainage strategy complied
fully with the Council’s Flood and Water Management Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD). The Parish Council had now objected to the development which
the applicant’s agent found confusing given its support for the earlier permission in
principle application - it seemed the Parish Council had simply changed its mind but,
unfortunately, a permission existed for development on the site. Overall, the
proposal clearly complied with the expectations of the development plan and should
be supported. Officers had recommended a number of conditions which would
further ensure that a high-quality development was achieved and he hoped
Members would be able to permit the application which would contribute positively
towards the borough’s housing supply and support the vitality of rural communities.

The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was for authority to be
delegated to the Development Manager to permit the application, subject to the
amendment of condition 10 provided that the Ecological Adviser was satisfied with
the proposed rewording, and he sought a motion from the floor. It was proposed
and seconded that authority be delegated to the Development Manager to permit
the application in accordance with the Officer recommendation. A Member
indicated that it was his understanding that each application must be determined on
its own merits and he did not feel that this proposal should be permitted simply
because permission in principle had already been granted for two dwellings on the
site. He was not happy to support the proposed change of wording to condition 7 as
he would rather the plan detailing the location and specification of the ecological
enhancements be approved prior to, as opposed to within three months of,
commencement of development — if that was amended he would be happy to
support the proposal. The Development Manager indicated that this was within
Members’ gift; however, the Council’s Ecological Adviser was happy with the
rewording of the condition. The Legal Adviser explained that, as this was a full
planning application, a pre-commencement condition required the agreement of the
developer; as the applicant’s agent had asked for the rewording, she assumed this
had not been agreed in respect of that condition, in which case the only option
would be to refuse if Members were not happy with the suggested rewording to
require the plan to be submitted within three months of commencement of
development. She reiterated that Members had been advised that the reworded
condition was acceptable. Inresponse to a query regarding the Newt Officer, the
Development Manager explained that the Council had access to the Officer due to
its involvement in a partnership project across various counties in the region looking
at creating new habitats for newts.

Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That authority be DELEGATED to the Development Manager to
PERMIT the application, subject to the amendment of condition
10 provided that the Ecological Adviser was satisfied with the
proposed rewording.



26.24

26.25

26.26

26.27

PL.21.09.21

21/00412/FUL - Land West of Manor Cottage, Walton Hill, Deerhurst

This application was for the erection of a single residential dwelling (C3) and
associated operational development (Plot 2).

The Development Manager explained that this was the second of two full
applications on the site which had permission in principle. This was slightly different
in that the proposed access snaked around the back of Manor Cottage and served
both Manor Cottage and the building at the back as well as the proposed application
site. As with the previous application, the principle of development had already
been established. In this case, a single garage accompanied the dwelling and the
County Highways Officer had considered the proposal and raised no objection
subject to the conditions set out in the Committee report. A number of traditional
features had been incorporated into the design and both the scale and design would
have an acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the area. The
drainage would be dealt with in a similar way to the previous application and the
Lead Local Flood Authority was happy with that proposal. As set out in the
Additional Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1, condition 7 in relation to
ecological enhancements had been reworded at the request of the applicant’s
agent. Further to that, the applicant’s agent had suggested alternative wording for
condition 8, as per condition 10 of the previous application and, whilst Officers were
happy with the suggestion, it was necessary to consult the Council’'s Ecological
Adviser to ensure they were satisfied.

The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee. The applicant’s
agent indicated that, given the similarities between this and the previous application,
he did not intend to repeat himself in detail. As Members were aware, permission in
principle existed for residential development on this land and the proposal before
the Committee reflected the scale, character, design and proportions of the
development at Plot 1 and entirely met with the design expectations of the
development plan. The development would be served by an existing point of
access which both met the prescribed visibility standards and enabled adequate
space for turning and manoeuvring within the site. The siting, scale and design of
the dwelling would complement that at Plot 1 and other existing neighbouring
properties in the area, particularly considering its spacious setting. As per Plot 1,
mature boundary treatments would be retained and all appropriate development
management standards would be met through the application. The applicant’s
agent hoped that Members would permit the application in light of its clear
compliance with the development management policies and the boost it would
provide to housing supply.

The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to delegate authority to
the Development Manager to permit the application, subject to the amendment of
condition 8 provided that the Ecological Adviser was satisfied with the proposed
rewording, and he sought a motion from the floor. It was proposed and seconded
that authority be delegated to the Development Manager to permit the application in
accordance with the Officer recommendation. A Member sought clarification as to
why two separate applications had been submitted when the permission in principle
had been granted for two dwellings on the site. In response, the Development
Manager explained that it had not been necessary for two applications to be
submitted; however, in this instance he understood that two separate applications
had been made as the plots were in the process of being sold to two different
parties.

10



26.28

26.29

26.30

26.31

26.32

26.33

PL.21.09.21

Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That authority be DELEGATED to the Development Manager to
PERMIT the application, subject to the amendment of condition 8
provided that the Ecological Adviser was satisfied with the
proposed rewording.

21/00729/FUL - 41 Battle Road, Tewkesbury

This application was for the erection of single storey side and rear extension and
retention of a 1.8 metre fence along the north-west boundary.

The Planning Officer advised that the application related to a detached property
located on an estate in Tewkesbury. The proposal was to add a single storey side
and rear extension onto the dwelling and to retain a 1.8 metre close boarded timber
fence along the north-west boundary. A Committee determination was required as
Tewkesbury Town Council had objected to the proposal on the grounds that the
fence was out of character with the surrounding boundary treatments; whilst these
concerns had been noted, the Officers’ view was that the proposal was in keeping
with the surrounding development as outlined in the Committee report.

The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item. The Officer
recommendation was to permit the application and he sought a motion from the
floor. It was proposed that the application be permitted in accordance with the
Officer recommendation. The proposer of the motion indicated there were many
examples of such fences in the vicinity which was the only reason for the Town
Council’s objection. A Member noted there was no condition requiring the hedge
removal to take place outside of bird nesting season and the Development Manager
confirmed the hedge had already been removed. The Member subsequently
seconded the proposal and, upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the
Officer recommendation.

21/00277/FUL - Tresco, Langley Road, Winchcombe

This application was for the erection of a single storey rear extension, first floor
extension and dormer windows.

The Planning Officer advised that the proposal was to erect a single storey rear and
first floor extension including a raise in the ridge height and the addition of dormer
windows in the front and back of the dwelling known as Tresco located on Langley
Road, Winchcombe. A Committee determination was required as Winchcombe
Town Council had objected to the proposal based on the scale of the extensions
and the proposal’s lack of conformity with the requirements of Policy 3.3 of the
Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan relating to bungalow
development. Three letters of objection had been received in relation to the
application on amenity grounds - one of which related specifically to the revised
scheme - and concerns raised included potential overlooking, overbearing impact
and loss of light to the adjacent dwelling to the east. These concerns had been
taken into account in determining the application but it was not considered that the
proposal would have a significant adverse impact on the amenity of the
neighbouring properties. The Town Council’s concerns had been considered and it
was recognised that the proposal would not fulfil the requirements of the bungalow
development policy; however, it was Officers’ view that the proposal would be
reasonable in the context, considering the scale and location of the development
and the orientation of the dwellings in the locale. In addition, planning permission
had been granted on the site for a one and half storey replacement dwelling and
detached garage in 2020 and the property benefited from permitted development

11



26.34

26.35

26.36

26.37

PL.21.09.21

rights, allowing for extension into the roof space without the need for planning
permission — these represented realistic fallback positions. It was therefore
considered that the proposed extensions would be acceptable in the context and
would not have an adverse impact on residential amenity, as such, the Officer
recommendation was to permit the application.

The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee. The applicant’s
agent explained that planning permission was being sought for extensions to the
existing bungalow to provide more appropriate living space. The application had
come to the Committee for determination purely on the basis of the objection from
the Town Council that the proposal conflicted with Policy 3.3 of the Winchcombe
and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan in relation to the retention of
bungalows. As the Committee report thoroughly explained, planning permission
had been granted in 2020 for a replacement dwelling at the site and that scheme
was for a new property similar in scale to the one before Members today which
resulted in the loss of all ground floor bedrooms. The Town Council had raised no
objection to the replacement dwelling, nor had it objected to the recent application at
Giles Piece, also on Langley Road, which proposed enlarging the roof space to
relocate all bedrooms to first floor level and had been granted planning permission
in April 2021. Policy 3.3. of the Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood
Development Plan did not appear to be applied rigidly or consistently by the Town
Council and, with reference to this and other sites, the applicant’s agent could not
see why it had objected to this scheme. That aside, the current application retained
two bedrooms on the ground floor and so enabled the single storey living that Policy
3.3 sought to secure. The aim of the policy was being met, even though it was not
in other applications the Town Council had not opposed. The Town Council had
also raised concerns about perceived overdevelopment of the site; however, the
Committee report carefully assessed the proposal, including the streetscene and
neighbouring amenity, and found it to be acceptable in all respects. The proposals
showed a good design approach with no adverse effects and the resulting
development allowed a local family to stay in their home for the long term, in a way
which complied with the Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development
Plan. The applicant’s agent fully endorsed the Officers’ thorough analysis of the
application and asked that Members grant planning permission in line with the
recommendation.

The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to permit the application
and he sought a motion from the floor. It was proposed and seconded that the
application be deferred for a Planning Committee Site Visit to assess the proposal in
the context of the streetscene and neighbouring properties. Upon being put to the
vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be DEFERRED for a Planning Committee
Site Visit in order to assess the proposal in the context of the
streetscene and neighbouring properties.

20/00089/FUL - Phase 1B, East Site, Homelands, Gotherington Lane, Bishop's
Cleeve

This application was for the removal/variation of conditions 2 (plans as set out), 4
(landscaping compliance) and 11 (noise assessment) of planning application
reference: 17/01131/FUL.

The Planning Officer advised that the application site related to the commercial
centre of the Homelands development and planning permission was being sought to
regularise the landscape work that had been undertaken and to discharge a
condition requiring the submission of an additional noise impact assessment. It was
noted that the hedge adjacent to Gotherington Lane had not been removed but had
been cut back and was slightly shorter in length to facilitate the cycle path and

12



26.38

PL.21.09.21

streetlighting in the area. Whilst the concerns of the Parish Council were noted, it
was considered that the character of the area had become less rural with the
permission for the residential development and commercial centre. The existing
hedge and areas of grass provided a soft landscaping buffer to the commercial
centre and the proposal was considered acceptable in terms of landscape
character. The noise impact assessment had previously been discharged in part of
building A (the Co-op) and a noise impact assessment was required for the two
other buildings before the installation of extraction ventilation equipment. The noise
assessment had stated that noise levels would be limited to a rating no higher than
existing background levels and hours of operation would be restricted to between
0700 and 2100 hours. The Environmental Health Officer considered the noise
assessment to be acceptable and that there would be no undue impact to
neighbouring properties, subject to the noise level and hours of operation being
controlled by condition. The Planning Officer explained there were some minor
discrepancies in terms of the plans submitted - the plans in question showed the
location of the cycle storage area and some of the landscaping which did not
correspond - Officers had sought these revisions prior to the Committee but, as they
had not yet been received, the Officer recommendation had been changed to
delegated permit.

The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item. The Officer
recommendation was that authority be delegated to the Development Manager to
permit the application, subject to conditions and revised plans to address the minor
discrepancies relating to the location of the cycle storage area and landscaping, and
he sought a motion from the floor. A Member indicated that she knew the area well
as she drove past the site several times each day, it was used a lot by local
residents and she had some safety concerns in relation to that. She explained that
the site was at the front of the fish and chip shop at the bottom of the building
fronting onto Gotherington Lane and children sat on the grassy bank outside where
there was no kerb. As there was no speed limit on the road, cars came quickly
around the roundabout and she had grave concerns that one would plough across
the bank where people were sitting, especially as the lights were not currently
working. She would like to see bollards introduced, similar to those in front of the
fish and chip shop in Bishop’s Cleeve, particularly now the hedgerow would
potentially be removed, in order to create a separation between cars and residents
waiting for their supper. In response, the Planning Officer clarified that the
hedgerow would not be removed and would remain in situ. The verge was quite
narrow approaching the fish and chip shop and it may be possible to negotiate with
the applicant in terms of the provision of a hard boundary. The County Highways
representative indicated that this was a new request so had not been assessed by
County Highways and he was unsure whether it was highway land. Whilst the
hedgerow would provide an element of safety, he would need to defer to the
Planning Officer as to whether bollards could be requested as part of this
application or if a new planning application would be required. It was subsequently
proposed and seconded that the application be deferred in order to investigate the
installation of bollards to address highway safety concerns. The seconder of the
proposal expressed the view that the photographs did not show the extent to which
the grass bank slanted down into the carriageway — people sitting on the bank
risked falling into the carriageway if they were to bend backwards. The
Development Manager explained that bollards may not necessarily be the right
approach so that was something which would need to be explored with County
Highways and the applicant’s agent, should Members be minded to defer the
application.

13



26.39

26.40

26.41

26.42

PL.21.09.21

A Member indicated that she did not understand the technicalities of the noise
assessments which made it very difficult to vote with an informed mind; the
Committee report stated that the Parish Council claimed the noise report was out of
date as it had been carried out in 2020 and she questioned whether a more up-to-
date assessment was needed. She also queried whether the earlier reference by
the proposer of the motion had been to streetlighting and the proposer confirmed
there was no streetlighting. A Member indicated that he was concerned about
reqguests to remove or vary conditions and, in this instance, condition 4 had required
trees to be planted and referenced the upkeep of trees for a five year period which
would ensure that any which died would be replanted so he did not wish to see that
removed. Inresponse, the Development Manager advised that the purpose of
securing revised landscaping plans was because the trees previously shown were
not shown on the current plan and it was hoped that amended plans would be
received through the deferral. In terms of the noise assessment, should Members
be minded to defer the application, he would speak to the Environmental Health
Officer and, if necessary, invite them to attend the next Committee meeting to
explain in more detail the response to the Parish Council’s concerns. The proposer
and seconder of the motion indicated that they were happy to include this within the
deferral and, upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be DEFERRED in order to investigate
installation of bollards or other measures to address highway
safety concerns; to allow revised plans to be submitted to
address the minor discrepancies in relation to the location of the
cycle storage area and landscaping; and to enable the
Environmental Health Officer to explain in more detail the
response to the Parish Council’s concerns regarding the noise
assessment report being outdated.

20/00956/FUL - 25 Paynes Pitch, Churchdown

This application was for demolition of an existing dwelling and erection of five
dwellings and associated access. The application was deferred at the Planning
Committee meeting on 17 August 2021 in order to allow further conversations to
take place in relation to access and design and to allow Officers to establish the
proximity of Flood Zone 2 to the site.

The Development Manager explained that a number of additional objections had
been received, as set out in the updated Committee report and the Additional
Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1. It was noted that the matters
raised within the objections were addressed in the report. There had been concerns
about the construction access; however, as advised last month, recommended
condition 18 required that work must be carried out in accordance with the
submitted Demolition and Construction Method Statement. With any development
there would be a degree of noise and disturbance but controls could be put in place
to mitigate against that and it was the Officer view that, in this case, that would not
warrant refusal. In respect of design, the agent had suggested three options with an
alternative materials palette for the proposed dwellings and these and the location
of Flood Zone 2 were shown on the presentation for Members’ information. Officers
agreed with the agent’s view that the materials originally proposed were acceptable
given the contemporary design of the dwellings and the variety of design in the

area, therefore, the recommendation was to permit the application.

The Chair invited a local resident speaking in objection to the application to address
the Committee. The local resident indicated that he was speaking on behalf of the
residents of Dunstan Glen and the wider village community and he pointed out there
had been 151 letters of objection to the proposal. In terms of construction site
access, this was the second choice and should be refused on the grounds of

14



26.43

PL.21.09.21

multiple safety issues. A freedom of information request had confirmed that County
Highways had not undertaken a pedestrian survey, or any other form of site survey,
and strategies such as “banksmen” and site notices would not mitigate the risks or
meet the duty of care required by the stakeholders to protect the public to
acceptable levels. An independent pedestrian survey had concluded that 18,078
persons would pass the entrance over the build period, yet there were no footpaths
in Dunstan Glen so pedestrians could not be segregated and protected from site
traffic, raising a high risk of personal injury. He pointed out that gardens were open
plan and children played both in the gardens and on the roads. Both roads would
have densely parked vehicles 24 hours per day, seven days per week and the local
school also used the roads which included a sharp, blind bend that made it entirely
unsuitable for Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs). This was all contrary to Paragraph
7.19 of the Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Development Plan,
construction logistics and community safety standards and the National Planning
Policy Framework in relation to highway safety. In terms of design and
overdevelopment, the local resident indicated that the cramped development was
neither sympathetic to the local character, nor did it create a high standard of
amenity. It failed to address the urban structure and grain of the locality in terms of
street pattern, layout, mass and form and it failed to address the scale, type, density
and materials appropriate to the site and its setting. The colour palette of black and
grey bricks with dark blue roofs and split gable design did not integrate with the
immediate vicinity in his view. Furthermore, five properties were being shoehorned
onto the plot — two had no garages, due to lack of space, and faced four properties
in Dunstan Glen. The proposal therefore failed to comply with Paragraphs 11 and
12 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy SD4 of the Joint Core
Strategy and Policy CHINZ2 of the Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood
Development Plan. The local resident pointed out that the site had a gradient of
three metres and No.’s 21 and 23 Paynes Pitch had flooded in the past; the planned
1,250 square metres of impermeable ground would only exacerbate this and the site
would flood if the surface water retention tank failed. This was contrary to
Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework and INF2 Flood Risk
Management. The local resident also raised concern that 65% of the hedgerow was
to be grubbed out, along with fencing not within the applicant’s ownership, which
could result in the culling of hedgehogs. In terms of land ownership, he explained
that Bovis Homes had granted him the sole ownership and its title deeds for
services to the community over the last 36 years. He indicated that this failed to
comply with Paragraph 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Section 4 of
the Joint Core Strategy and Policies CHIN3 and CHIN9 of the Churchdown and
Innsworth Neighbourhood Development Plan. On that basis, he respectfully
requested that the Committee refuse the application.

The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee. The applicant’s
agent confirmed that he wholly endorsed the Officer recommendation to permit the
application, subject to conditions. Members would be aware that the site was not in
open countryside, it was within an existing settlement and contained a sizeable
building in a poor state of repair. The proposal would provide much needed family
homes in a very sustainable location, at a time when Tewkesbury Borough Council
was unable to meet its housing supply targets. The applicant had worked very hard
with Officers over the last 11 months to address initial concerns raised which had
resulted in a reduction in the scale of development from six to five homes, as well as
changes to the proposed levels, increased distances to neighbouring properties and
enhancements to the proposed landscape scheme. The applicant’'s agent was
mindful that some concerns had been raised during last month’s meeting in respect
of design; whilst the development adopted a modern approach, external materials
could be controlled by planning condition. The applicant’s agent was of the view
that the originally proposed materials would be wholly appropriate, given the mix of
styles and materials found within the local area; however, he had provided some
illustrative elevations showing both a buff brick and red brick option that would be

15



26.44

PL.21.09.21

consistent with those immediate properties, should Members consider that
approach to be more appropriate. Concerns had also been raised in respect of site
access but it was important to understand that the existing access from Paynes
Pitch was currently deemed unsafe and sub-standard — this would be permanently
stopped up as a result of the proposal. Whilst the new access had been designed
to meet highway safety standards, it also included provision for a new footway to
take pedestrians off Dunstan Glen. No objections had been raised by County
Highways and the access would be a significant improvement when assessed
against the existing arrangement. The applicant’s agent reminded Members that
matters relating to ownership were strictly civil and should have no bearing on the
decision today; however, for information, he clarified that the applicant did have
access rights over the land and that had been confirmed by their legal team. He
went on to advise that an updated Demolition and Construction Method Statement
had been supplied which could reduce the impact of the construction stage on
neighbouring residents by controlling a range of factors such as hours of working,
vehicle parking, wheel washing and noise emissions. In summary, the development
would not give rise to unacceptable impacts. The application had been submitted in
October 2020 and had consistently experienced significant delays yet it clearly
accorded with prevailing policies and would help the authority meet its housing
supply needs in a sustainable location. The homes were modern and well-
designed, set within an existing residential area and would allow a site in desperate
need of regeneration to be improved.

The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to permit the application
and he sought a motion from the floor. It was proposed that the application be
refused on the basis that it conflicted with Paragraphs 12, 14 and 125 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy and
Policies CHIN2, CHIN3 and CHIN9 of the Churchdown and Innsworth
Neighbourhood Development Plan. The Development Manager asked the proposer
of the motion to elaborate on the reasons why he felt planning permission should be
refused in order for Members to decide whether they could second or support the
proposal. In response, the proposer of the motion indicated that he would first like
to ask some questions of the Officers in order to inform his response. He noted that
Planning Officers continued to emphasis at Page No. 7, Paragraph 7.6 of the report,
circulated separately, that Tewkesbury Borough Council had a 4.35 year housing
land supply and he asked whether that was correct; he indicated that Members had
been told that the borough’s annual housing supply had been more than met over
the last three years and he asked whether that was correct; and he queried what the
housing need was for this application and what evidence was available to support
that. In response, the Development Manager confirmed that the 4.35 year housing
land supply was the current position and he clarified that it was the annual housing
requirement that had more than been met over the past three years as opposed to
the housing land supply, although he did not have the figures to hand. In terms of
evidence for housing need in this area, that was not particularly relevant to the
current application which was in an area where the principle of development was
acceptable in accordance with the Council’s policies and the tilted balance was in
play which meant that, as the Council could not demonstrate a five year housing
land supply, planning permission should be granted unless there were significant
and demonstrable reasons otherwise. The proposer of the motion went on to clarify
that he felt the application should be refused as Paragraph 12 of the National
Planning Policy Framework which related to the presumption in favour of
sustainable development stated that, where a planning application conflicted with an
up-to-date development plan, permission should not usually be granted. Paragraph
14 set out that, in situations where the presumption applied to applications involving
the provision of housing, the adverse impact of allowing development that conflicted
with the Neighbourhood Development Plan was likely to significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits provided that: the neighbourhood plan became
part of the development plan two years or less before the date on which the

16



26.45

26.46

PL.21.09.21

decision was made, the neighbourhood plan contained policies and allocations to
meet its identified housing requirement, the local planning authority had at least a
three year supply of deliverable housing sites against its five year housing supply
requirement and the local planning authority’s housing delivery was at least 45% of
that required over the previous three years — the latter two points had been
confirmed by the Development Manager. Paragraph 125 b) stated that the use of
minimum density standards should also be considered for other parts of the plan
area and it may be appropriate to set out a range of densities that reflected the
accessibility and potential of different areas, rather than one broad density range. In
terms of the Joint Core Strategy, he felt the proposal conflicted with Policy SD4 in
relation to design requirements set out at 1.i) that new development should respond
positively to, and respect the character of, the site and its surroundings, enhancing
local distinctiveness and addressing the urban structure and grain of the locality in
terms of street pattern, layout, mass and form; it should be of a scale, type and
density, and use materials appropriate to the site and its setting; design should
establish a strong sense of place using streetscapes and building to create
attractive and comfortable places to live, and have appropriate regard to the historic
environment. Policy SD4 iv) set out that new development should ensure that the
design of landscaped areas, open space and public realm were of high quality,
provided a clear structure and constituted an integral and cohesive element within
the design; however, he considered that the new dwellings would be incohesive with
the existing development. Turning to the Churchdown and Innsworth
Neighbourhood Development Plan, Policy CHIN2 stated that proposals for new
development should contribute towards the local distinctiveness of Churchdown and
Innsworth and should integrate positively received local design features, avoiding
negatively received design features; Policy CHIN3 set out that new residential
development proposals should demonstrate how they retained, and where possible
enhanced, the environmental setting of Churchdown and Innsworth, in particular,
the provision of green spaces, verges, trees and hedgerows; and Policy CHIN9 set
out that proposals that incorporated design features which encouraged local wildlife
to thrive would be strongly supported. The proposer of the motion felt that the
development conflicted with all these policies as a considerable number of trees and
hedgerows would be lost to the development. The proposal to refuse the
application was subsequently seconded and the seconder of the motion indicated
that, in her view, many of the issues presented by the local resident who had
spoken in objection to the proposal were not insurmountable but she could not
support the application as it currently stood. If it were to be permitted then she
would wish to see conditions added.

A Member indicated that she did not actively support a refusal; however, she had
objected to the design at the previous meeting of the Committee on the basis of the
proposed colour palette. In her view grey was very much an ‘on trend’ colour which
was being used a lot currently but fashions clearly changed over time and she did
not think it was the most appropriate colour to use considering the existing
properties. She felt that the alternatives put forward by the applicant were
preferable and would fit in better with the colour palette of surrounding properties.
The Chair suggested that if the motion to refuse was lost, a proposal to permit could
be made and voted upon and, if carried, there could then be proposals as regards
the conditions. The Legal Adviser stated that any motion to permit would need to
include what was to be included by way of conditions prior to the vote being taken.

The Development Manager recognised that the proposer of the motion to refuse
had given a comprehensive list of policies which was helpful; however, the Legal
Adviser having confirmed also that the reasons for refusal needed to be clear prior
to Members voting on that motion, for further clarification, from the discussion that
had taken place, he surmised that the proposer and seconder of the motion
considered that, by reason of its design, layout and overdevelopment the proposal
would not respect the character of the area and sense of place; it would not result in

17



26.47

PL.27

27.1

27.2

PL.21.09.21

a high quality and cohesive development nor would it enhance the existing
settlement contrary to the policies outlined. The proposer and seconder of the
motion confirmed they were happy with the suggested wording and, upon being put
to the vote, the proposal to refuse the application was lost.

A brief debate ensued regarding the preferred colour palette for the proposed
dwellings and the Chair suggested that option 3 — a mix of buff and red brick -
would be most suitable as the two tone palette would reduce the bulk and massing
of the buildings. It was subsequently proposed that authority be delegated to the
Development Manager to permit the application, subject to amendments to change
the colour palette to buff and red brick in accordance with option 3 of the proposed
alternatives put forward by the applicant. A Member indicated that she had
concerns regarding condition 14 which had been put forward by County Highways
and required secure and covered cycle storage facilities for a minimum of two
bicycles per dwelling. She had raised this concern with such conditions at previous
Committee meetings as she felt the condition was unnecessary. She believed
people buying bicycles for themselves and their children would provide their own
storage and she pointed out that, in this instance, three of the five dwellings would
have garages so she would like the condition to be removed. The Development
Manager advised that there was a good policy rationale for the inclusion of the
condition and the dwellings were in a location where sustainable forms of transport
should be promoted. He appreciated that the Member had raised this before but
indicated that was in the context of developments in areas such as Wormington
where cycling may not be an appropriate choice of transport generally. Whilst
Officers felt there was merit in including the condition based on the location of the
dwellings, the Development Manager noted that most of the houses would have
garages which would probably satisfy the requirement of the condition and it was in
Members’ gift should they wish to remove it. The proposer of the motion to permit
the application understood that the condition often required cycle storage provision
over and above garages and he made reference to an application in Toddington
where both properties had garages but cycle storage had to be provided in addition
to that. He confirmed he was happy to amend his proposal to include the removal
of condition 14 and the proposal was duly seconded. A Member indicated that she
did not agree with removing the condition and also had concerns about the removal
of the hedge and southern boundary and some of the points raised within the
ecological survey. The proposer of the motion indicated that he was not willing to
amend his proposal further and, upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That authority be DELEGATED to the Development Manager to
PERMIT the application, subject to amendments to change the
colour palette to buff and red brick in accordance with option 3 of
the proposed alternatives put forward by the applicant and the
removal of recommended condition 14 in relation to cycle storage
provision.

CURRENT APPEALS AND APPEAL DECISIONS UPDATE

Attention was drawn to the current appeals and appeal decisions update, circulated
at Pages No. 199-203. Members were asked to consider the current planning and
enforcement appeals received and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government appeal decisions issued.

Accordingly, it was

RESOLVED That the current appeals and appeal decisions update be
NOTED.

The meeting closed at 11:56 am

18



PL.21.09.21

Appendix 1

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS SHEET

Date: 21 September 2021

The following is a list of the additional representations received since the Planning Committee
Agenda was published and includes background papers received up to and including the
Monday before the meeting.

A general indication of the content is given but it may be necessary to elaborate at the meeting.

Item
No

ba 21/00398/FUL
Land South Of Wheatpieces, Walton Cardiff

Three further letters of representation have been received and are summarised
below and reiterate observations raised by other residents which are set out in
the Committee report:

- Out of keeping with the estate

- Should be on a business park

- No other commercial buildings

- Influx of vehicles would conflict with resident's vehicles and pedestrians
- Road cannot cope

- Extra noise

The outstanding ecological matters have been resolved and the Council’s Ecological
Adviser is satisfied with the proposal subject to the conditions set out below.

The recommendation remains to permit, subject to the completion of a legal
agreement, the conditions set out in the Committee report and additional
conditions set out below:

19. Prior to undertaking any site clearance a Landscape and Ecological Management
Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The LEMP should
expand on the Ecology report recommendations for site wide ecological
enhancements which shall also include details of timescales for implementation,
persons responsible for managing and monitoring the site. These works shall be
completed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first use of the
development.

Reason: To ensure adequate wildlife protection

20. Prior to undertaking any site clearance a pre-commencement check for signs of
badger activity shall be undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist. If a sett is present
and disturbance is likely, appropriate mitigation details will need to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local planning Authority. Any necessary works shall be
undertaken in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure adequate wildlife protection.

19



PL.21.09.21

21. No part of the development shall be occupied until an external lighting scheme
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority detailing location
and specification of the lighting supported by contouring plans demonstrating any light
spill into adjacent habitats. The eternal lighting shall be installed and thereafter
maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To reduce light pollution and ensure adequate wildlife protection.

22. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the ecological mitigation
measures detailed within Ecological Assessment (Ecology Solutions, February 2021),
eDNA survey (Ecology Solutions, May 2021) and Reasonable Avoidance Measures
(Ecology Solutions, September 2021).

Reason: To ensure adequate wildlife protection.

5c 21/00594/FUL

Unit 1412, Charlton Court, Gloucester Business Park, Brockworth

The plans in the Committee report are incorrect. They should be as attached.
5e 21/00411/FUL

Land West Of Manor Cottage, Walton Hill, Deerhurst

The rewording of the condition relating to ecological enhancements proposed at the
request of the Agent from correspondence received via email dated 15 September
2021 to the Planning Case Officer.

Condition 7 as proposed:

"Prior to the commencement of the development, a plan detailing the location and
specification of the ecological enhancements including but not limited to hedgerow
enhancements, new native planting, bat and bird boxes recommended in the
Ecological Impact Assessment (Swift Ecology, January 2021) and Updated survey
(Swift Ecology, June 2021) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To provide adequate biodiversity enhancements and ensure the protection of
habitats."

At the request of the Agent, the following re-wording is sought:

"Within 3 months of the commencement of development, a plan detailing the location
and specification of the ecological enhancements including but not limited to
hedgerow enhancements, new native planting, bat and bird boxes recommended in
the Ecological Impact Assessment (Swift Ecology, January 2021) and Updated survey
(Swift Ecology, June 2021) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To provide adequate biodiversity enhancements and ensure the protection of
habitats."

All other mitigation and compensation measures from table 5.1 of the Ecological
Impact Assessment, Swift Ecology dated January 2021 are covered by the detailing
within Condition 5.

20



PL.21.09.21

5f

21/00412/FUL
Land West Of Manor Cottage, Walton Hill

The rewording of the condition relating to ecological enhancements proposed at the
request of the Agent from correspondence received via email dated 15 September
2021 to the Planning Case Officer.

Condition 7 as proposed:

"Prior to the commencement of the development, a plan detailing the location and
specification of the ecological enhancements including but not limited to hedgerow
enhancements, new native planting, bat and bird boxes recommended in the
Ecological Impact Assessment (Swift Ecology, January 2021) and Updated survey
(Swift Ecology, June 2021) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To provide adequate biodiversity enhancements and ensure the protection of
habitats."

At the request of the Agent, the following re-wording is sought:

"Within 3 months of the commencement of development, a plan detailing the location
and specification of the ecological enhancements including but not limited to
hedgerow enhancements, new native planting, bat and bird boxes recommended in
the Ecological Impact Assessment (Swift Ecology, January 2021) and Updated survey
(Swift Ecology, June 2021) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To provide adequate biodiversity enhancements and ensure the protection of
habitats."

All other mitigation and compensation measures from table 5.1 of the Ecological
Impact Assessment, Swift Ecology dated January 2021 are covered by the detailing
within Condition 5.

5h

21/00277/FUL
Tresco, Langley Road, Winchcombe

Additional representation from a neighbour. See attached below.

5i

20/00089/FUL
Phase 1B, East Site, Homelands, Gotherington Lane, Bishops Cleeve

The Agent has informed the Case Officer on 15.09.2021 that they are unable to
provide the revised plans to address the minor discrepancies prior to the Committee
date. Therefore, the Officer recommendation has changed to DELEGATED
PERMIT.

21



PL.21.09.21

5]

20/00956/FUL
25 Paynes Pitch, Churchdown

Since the Planning Committee on 17 August 2021 a further 14 objections have
been received (summarised):

The access route to the site presents unacceptable dangers to local residents
and passing pedestrians and Oldbury Orchard and Dunstan Glen are narrow
roads which are suitable for light residential traffic.

The limited on-road parking opportunities already create informal, blind
chicanes that present hazards to pedestrians and cyclists from the passage of
moderate size vehicles, let alone lorries used for
demolition/delivery/construction purposes.

There is no room for turning large lorries so they will have to be reversed back
out of the surrounding roads.

If lorries park up behind each other it will prevent emergency vehicles having
access, especially fire service.

The drives of the existing houses are also very close to each other so any lorry
parking will block normal access for the residents in at least ten houses.

Dunstan Glen is a narrow cul-de-sac with no pavement and the site
access/egress is well used by pedestrians and the construction access
arrangement would pose a health and safety risk for pedestrians and cyclists
including children and elderly residents.

The Construction Management Plan is inadequate and may not be complied
with.

The construction vehicles will give rise to congestion.

No amount of signage, traffic management or banksmen could make the use
of the roads by HGV's, of a sufficiently low risk to meet Tewkesbury Borough
Council's public duty of care.

Vehicle access from Dunstan Glen will impact on the retained TPO trees and
ecology including hedgehogs.

The site would sacrifice an excessive area of permeable ground and render
adjacent properties in Paynes Pitch vulnerable to flooding.

The road surface in Paynes Pitch already becomes a fast flowing river during
heavy rain with storm drains completely overwhelmed. The proposal will
exacerbate this issue.

The over-development of site consequentially means that that there is
inadequate space for green infrastructure and drainage control mechanisms to
mitigate the risk of flooding.

The design is an over-development of the site and properties would have an
appearance at total variance in appearance and quality with adjacent
properties in Dunstan Glen, Paynes Pitch, and Oldbury Orchard.

The primary use of monotone materials conflicts with the traditional red-brick
or Cotswold stone appearance of the immediate area.

The proposed parking provisions are inadequate in size and quantity for
properties of this nature, exacerbated by the absence of adjacent on-street
parking.

22



PL.21.09.21

The property frontage presents no meaningful landscaping to soften the view
and is dominated by car parking

The proposal extends beyond its legal boundaries.

Concerns about what procedures will be in place for the safe removal and
disposal of buried asbestos and gas tanks.

23



PL.21.09.21

ltem No. 5c¢ - 21/00594/FUL - Unit 1412, Charlton Court, Gloucester Business Park,

Brockworth

24

o m W w0
v — —
e

PLANNING -
APPROVAL |

e

BULDING 1412
‘GLOUCESTER BUSINESS PARK

LOCATION PLAN

‘Arlington

LIMITED

10N ow
20097 230221

20007-FSAGINCORADI0 P2



PL.21.09.21

»

Scdo1 1250

) PLANNING N
0 —— - APPROVAL %

|

7-\rlington

ASSOCIATES

LIMITED

TT
VoEd
[ 1

25



26

PL.21.09.21

]

Scdo1 1250

PLANNING g»
APPROVAL J

BUI 2
‘GLOUCESTER BUSINESS PARK
o

250@A1 o
7



2

9 08 1
Sean 1150

PL.21.09.21

@ mwm mm 18, eﬁ. a m
[ NS HEE
o2 i3y o¢ B ERE oS =
HE B i1 2Eutis
LI a1 h5hi 1= - Jik!
;
o
AN |

I
w—a

E_

Ot g
oy

100321

20037
20037-FSA03.00-0R-A0213

27



PL.21.09.21

01 2 I [
L ———

Scale 1100

PLANNING
APPROVAL

West Elevation

North Elevation South Elevation

NG 1412
‘GLOUCESTER BUSINESS PARK

EXSTING ELEVATIONS

‘Arlington

LIMITED

1:10@A

East Elevation

20037 230221

S
20037-FSAOIELORAI0 PO

28



PL.21.09.21

PLANNING
APPROVAL

Notes
B Lowe
£ Louno (conceaed by oot fascia)

West Elevation

North Elevation South Elevation
o S
;AILD“E 1412
ol PARK.
=
PPROPOSED ELEVATIONS
Arlington

East Elevation FERER e
1:100@A1 CcAP
2007 20221
2O7FAQIELDRAZIT O3

29



PL.21.09.21
Item No. 5h - 21/00277/FUL - Tresco, Langley Road, Winchcombe

Dear Councillor and Planning Committee Member

REF: 21/00277 — Tresco, Langley Road, Winchcombe — Proposed erection of a single storey
rear extension, first floor extension and dormer windows.

| write with respect to the above application which you will consider at you meeting of 21°*
September 2021.

. recognise and accept that many properties are purchased for their development

potential. Tresco was purchased by the applicants in May 2018 and plans were first drawn
up to alter the dwelling in February 2019. In September 2020 planning permission was
granted under reference 20/00095/FUL for a replacement dwelling. Whilst we were not
keen on the plans we were grateful to the planning case officer for seeking amendments to
the scheme to reduce the impact on The Birches.

Points made by the Planning Case Officer, in his delegated report relating to the
replacement dwelling, are noted below followed by our comments on the current
application below (our emphasis in bold) and plans to illustrate the points where
appropriate:

e REPLACEMENT DWELLING - ‘The building would have a similar form from the front
elevation and whilst it is higher the hip roof approach would lessen the mass of the
roof and help it to recede more into the plot’

CURRENT APPLICATION — The scheme includes increasing the height of the building
and the gable elevation within 1m of The Birches. The proposed extension does not
see the building hipped thereby increasing the impact on The Birches.

@i o @

iR — B

We are grateful that the scheme has been revised to include the two pitched gable
elements on the rear in place of a large flat roofed element with high eaves but the
proposed extension still has a much greater impact on The Birches than the
approved scheme.

e REPLACEMENT DWELLING - ‘The proposed hipped roof of the replacement dwelling
would slope away from the Birches. The potential impact that would occur would
arise from the additional height of the eaves (approximately 0.4m) over and above
the existing building, which is not considered excessive in its context. The roof slope
rises away from this elevation and notwithstanding the increase in overall height it is
considered that the light received to the first-floor windows (The Birches) would be
minimally impacted by the development’

30



PL.21.09.21

CURRENT APPLICATION — The impact is from the increase in the eaves height and the
increased ridge height and enlargement of the gable facing The Birches thus
impacting more significantly on light received by the first floor windows in The
Birches.

o REPLACEMENT DWELLING - ‘The proposed building would be deeper than that of the
building it is replacing, this would result in long side elevations that project towards
the rear garden. Concerns were raised that these elevations may appear (when
viewed from the side) as large areas of rendered mass. The applicant has sought to
address this by including areas of timber cladding to break this massing up. This
approach is considered acceptable’

CURRENT APPLICATION — The scheme would see a huge extent of wall within 1m of
the boundary of The Birches with no relief.

The delegated report into the replacement dwelling also noted that the replacement
dwelling would be some 17m in depth, 8 metres further from the rear conservatory of the
Birches (11.5 from the rear elevation). The current application is 2m longer at 19m ie. 10m
beyond the rear conservatory of The Birches (13.5m from the rear elevation). The proposed
19m depth of the building is nothing short of monstrous and completely at odds with
anything in the surrounding area. The site plan below shows the scheme compared with
surrounding dwellings. We struggle to see how this is acceptable under current local plan
policies.

Oh‘vers

Wes,buo’

31



PL.21.09.21

Itis noted that Winchcombe Town Council did not raise objection to the replacement
dwelling but have objected to the current scheme in both its original and revised forms as
below:

22 March 2021

Winchcombe Town Council objects to this application, because it proposes an excessively
large flat roofed extension creating a negative impact on the residents of neighbouring
properties. Policies in the Winchcombe Neighbourhood Plan are designed to limit the
upward extension of modest homes, to help ensure a supply of homes suitable for older and
retired people. The extension proposed in this case, albeit mainly on the ground floor, would
also have a similar effect in reducing the pool of relatively modest properties in the town.

6 August 2021
Objection still stands, it is still to greater an extension and not compatible with the
Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Plan. Policy 3.3 Bungalow development.

The revised NPPF states at paragraph 30 that ‘Once a neighbourhood plan has been brought
into force, the policies it contains take precedence over existing non-strategic policies in a
local plan covering the neighbourhood area, where they are in conflict; unless they are
superseded by strategic or non-strategic policies that are adopted subsequently.’

Policy 3.3 Bungalow Development of the Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Plan
seeks to resist the upward extension of dwellings. This policy should therefore take
precedence over non-strategic plans in the local plan.

The planning case officer for the current application relies on the existing permission for a
replacement dwelling and permitted development rights to justify the setting aside of Policy
3.3 of the Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Plan and recommending approval of
the current proposals. However, it is clear that in order to extend into the roof space in a
meaningful way, the ridge height of the property needs to be increased. This would not be
permissible under Permitted Development and would require permission in itself. Further,
as has been demonstrated, the fall-back position i.e. the approved replacement dwelling is
preferable in terms of the impact on The Birches. The replacement dwelling includes a
hipped roof which sees the gable on the boundary with The Birches removed and is 2m less
in length, again reducing the impact on The Birches.

In conclusion, we do not agree that the current proposal would have a lesser visual impact
in terms of scale and design than the replacement dwelling granted permission in 2020. We
consider that there would be significantly greater harm caused to The Birches. Winchcombe
Town Council did not object to the replacement dwelling but have objected to the current
scheme of extension. The resulting dwelling some 19m in depth goes wholly against
development plan policies that seek to ensure that extensions are in keeping with and not
out of proportion with the host dwelling.

32



PL.21.09.21

We would be grateful if you would consider our comments and refuse the application as it
stands. We are not against an extension provided it is respectful of Tresco and amenities

currently enjoyed_

Yours sincerely

33



Agenda Iltem 5a

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: Tresco

Langley Road
Winchcombe

Application No: 21/00277/FUL

Ward: Winchcombe

Parish: Winchcombe

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension, first floor extension and

dormer windows.
Report by: Pippa Brown

Appendices: Site location plan/existing ground floor plan
Site plan/block plan
Proposed floor plans
Existing elevations
Proposed elevations

Recommendation: Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 This application relates to Tresco, a detached bungalow constructed in the 1950s, located
on the southern site of Langley Road in Winchcombe. The site lies within the Cotswolds
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and within the Winchcombe and Sudeley
Neighbourhood Development Plan area.

1.2 Permission was granted on the site in 2020 for the demolition of the existing dwelling and
erection of a one and a half storey replacement dwelling and detached garage
(20/00095/FUL).

1.3 A committee determination is required as Winchcombe Town Council have
objected to the proposal, as revised, on the basis of the scale of the extensions in
relation to the site and the fact that it would not conform with the requirements of
policy 3.3 of the Winchcombe and Sudeley NDP.

1.4  This application has been deferred from the committee meeting on 21 September
2021, for the purpose of a Planning Committee site visit, at the request of Members.

34



2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Number

Proposal

Decision

Decision Date

95/00282/FUL

Alterations and

PER

30.05.1995

extension to provide
kitchen

Alterations and PER 21.10.1982
extension to existing
dwelling to provide a

conservatory.

82/00006/FUL

81/00005/FUL Alterations and PER 14.04.1981
extension to existing
bungalow to provide

an enlarged bedroom.

20/00095/FUL Erection of a PER 25.09.2020

replacement dwelling

and garage

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD7 (The Cotswolds AONB)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environment Quality)

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

— Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions)

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)

— Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings)

35




3.5

3.6

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

Neighbourhood Plan
Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan — 2011-2031
- Policy 1.1 (Protecting the Distinctive Character of the Area)
- Policy 3.3 (Bungalow Development)
- Policy 5.1 (Design of New Development)
Other relevant policy
— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)
CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Winchcombe Town Council — Objects to the proposal on the basis that the proposed
extension is too great for the site and is not compatible with policy 3.3 of the
Winchcombe and Sudeley NDP (Bungalow Development).

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

3 letters of representation were received, 2 objecting to the original proposal and 1
objecting specifically to the proposal as revised. Issues raised include:

- Loss of light to adjacent dwelling (The Birches).

- Overlooking from proposed Velux window.

- Potential overbearing impact on adjacent dwelling (The Birches).
POLICY CONTEXT
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
proposals be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 provides that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the

Development Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material
considerations.

36


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided
his current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with
those policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less
weight depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an
emerging plan and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS
Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design
while Local Plan Policy HOU8 provides that development must respect the character,
scale and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

The proposal would involve raising the ridge height of the existing dwelling, resulting in a
one and a half storey dwelling. Whilst this would be a clear change from the existing
dwelling and would increase the bulk of the dwelling, this would not appear out of
keeping with the area as there are a range of dwelling styles with varying ridge heights
on this part of Langley Road.

The adjacent dwelling, known as ‘The Birches’, comprises two storeys and therefore the
additional height proposed to Tresco would not appear visually prominent or incongruous
in the context.

The dwelling as existing, is set back from the highway by around 9 metres (measured
from the front building line of the gable). This set back would remain unaltered as a result
of the proposal, meaning the alterations to the front of the dwelling would not appear
visually prominent in the street scene.

In addition, the use of render for the external surfaces of the dwelling would be

appropriate in the context, as there are a number of rendered properties within the street
scene, meaning the proposed would not appear wholly incongruous.

37



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

710

7.11

7.12

713

The proposed single storey rear extension would be significant in scale, covering a floor
area of around 100 square metres, and representing an increase in floor area of around
69 square metres, when the existing single storey elements are taken into account. It
would be located in the rear garden of the dwelling, meaning it would have a minimal
impact on the character or appearance of the street scene, only being partly visible from
the sides of the dwelling.

By virtue of the roof design, with two pitched gable elements, the proposed rear
extension, as amended, would appear an acceptable addition to the dwelling, as it would
avoid the addition of a large flat roofed element. The inclusion of the dual pitched roof
shapes would be similar to the gable feature at the front of the property and would
therefore appear in keeping with the style of the dwelling.

Whilst it is recognised that the proposed extensions do not wholly conform with Policies
HOUS8 or RES10, by virtue of their scale, relative to the existing dwelling, on balance, the
proposal as revised would be considered acceptable in the context. It is considered that
the current proposal would have a lesser visual impact in terms of scale and design than
the replacement dwelling granted permission in 2020, with the alterations therefore
appearing appropriate in the location.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local
amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS8
provides that extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact
on adjacent property and residential amenity.

The proposed alterations to the existing dwelling would include the raising of the ridge
height of the main part of the dwelling by 450mm and the front gable by 650mm. Whilst
this may have some impact on the amenity of the adjacent property (The Birches) in
terms of overshadowing, this would be minimal due to the orientation of the properties
and therefore would not be considered to cause any adverse harm.

Notwithstanding the points noted by the neighbouring residents, any impact of
overbearing or overshadowing caused by the proposed rear extension would be less
than substantial due to its single storey nature. In addition, the proposal, as revised
would include two dual pitched roofs, sloping away from the East and West boundaries
shared with adjacent properties, reducing the potential overbearing impact on the
adjacent neighbouring properties.

In addition, the proposed extensions would lie solely within the residential curtilage of the
host dwelling, with a gap of around 1 metre between the proposed rear extension and the
shared boundary to the East. There would also be a gap of around 7 metres between the
dwelling itself and the adjacent dwelling to the East (The Birches). This distance would
not be altered from the existing situation and is considered to not have a detrimental
impact on the residential amenity of the occupants of the neighbouring property.

The proposed additional skylight on the eastern roof slope at first floor level would serve
a dressing area (not a habitable area) and would be a secondary window in the room set
a minimum of 1.7m above floor level . Whilst there may be some potential of overlooking
as a result, the harm this would cause would be less than substantial due to its location
and likely use.

38



714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

By virtue of their locations and the orientation of the dwelling and those nearby, there
would not be any adverse impacts of overlooking resulting from the other proposed
additional windows, over and above the existing situation. Therefore, it is not considered
appropriate or necessary to apply a condition, requiring windows to be obscure glazed.

Policy 3.3 of the Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan
(Bungalow Development)

Winchcombe Town Council have objected to the proposal, as revised, on the basis of the
scale of the proposed extensions and consider that the proposal would not conform with
the requirements of Policy 3.3 of the Winchcombe and Sudeley NDP (Bungalow
Development).

Policy 3.3 of the Winchcombe and Sudeley NDP outlines how proposals to extend
existing dwellings into their roof space should be resisted in order to maintain single
storey dwellings to suit the needs of people looking to live in single storey dwellings and
the older population looking to live independently.

Officers acknowledge the fact that the current proposal would result in the loss of a
bungalow, by adding additional habitable accommodation to the dwelling at first floor
level, which would be contrary to Policy 3.3, outlined above.

Guidance set out in the GPDO allows for extensions into the roof space such as that
proposed, to create habitable living space, subject to the fulfilment of other criteria. The
application site benefits from Permitted Development rights and therefore it would be
possible for some extension into the roof space, without the need for planning
permission.

In addition, the site benefits from extant permission for the demolition of the existing
bungalow and construction of a one and a half storey replacement dwelling
(20/00095/FUL). Through this, the principle of a one and a half storey dwelling in the
proposed location has been established.

Notwithstanding the fact that the scheme would not comply with the requirements of
Policy 3.3 of the Winchcombe and Sudelely NDP, It is considered that, given the extant
permission and permitted development rights which the property benefits from, the
current proposal would be acceptable in the context.

Landscape Impacts (Cotswolds AONB)

JCS Policy SD7 outlines how development proposals within the Cotswolds AONB should
conserve and where appropriate, enhance its landscape, scenic beauty and other
qualities. Similarly, Policy 1.1 of the NDP outlines how development should respect local
character and where relevant, protect and enhance the Cotswolds AONB.

Tresco lies within the Cotswolds AONB on the edge of an existing, built up area. The
proposal would increase the overall scale of the dwelling, and would alter the street
scene. However, the changes would not appear incongruous in the context, due to the
range of dwelling styles in the area and would not have a harmful impact on the
Character of the AONB.

39



8.0

8.1

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

It is considered that the proposal would not be unduly harmful to the appearance of the
existing dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss
of residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an
acceptable size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined
above. Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1.

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:

— Drawing TW.PR. 02 REV B - Proposed elevations @A1 (received 14.07.2021)
— Drawing TW.PR .01 REV B — Proposed floor plans @A1 (received 14.07.2021)
— Drawing T.W.PR.04 REV A — Proposed block & site plan @A1 (received 02.09.2021)

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those specified in the approved plans.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the existing dwelling.

INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought
to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s
website relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus
enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

40



LONS' ML, Jeauvis v,
N 1202 %4 n

cenn,
994 d
e roman = - 00G:1 7Iv2S
s S NYd zugmm@
Y
DUHES NOLINHASN
suoyg — $1009Q bunsxy [ e l:..“. |||||
Rt 0 T & r
0G:1 3V
NV'1d 30014 ANNOYDH @
PQWICOYIUIN
pooy Kaibuo
09594]
o
s !
w0 SION | NOSATH
12022094 NS5 Sy °
00z L INos
NY4 31S @

SNY1d ~ STIV.LAJ ONILSIXF
SOT9) “AGWOIHINIM ‘00SaN |




E— W=
v Y0 ddML, Jeuvss s,
1202 904 dn _ 1207 %93 an
el e e -
[P —— Y.
Ll —ad
=
]
Ty
SIWHES NCUDNHLINOD
SI01Q NS Pesodosq
o
PQUICOYIUIN
pooy Kaybuo’
0594
iand 00Z:1 IWOS
e s
w0 Saon | nosAn
20T 2094 NSS! LSS 0
207 6070 PSS ROWD poy v

STIv.L3g 3.LIS a3s0ododd
SOT9 ‘FGWOJHOINIM ‘00S3d ]

42




g LOdd'WL, Jeaws v, ]

1202 993 %_ 120 @93 an
% T = by

T e R e

SW|g J00j4 — uoISUNXT PIsodoig
R

BQUWCOUIUIN
pooy £abuo)
09594 AN
o
w0 SION | NOSATH
1TOT 09 INSS A o .y
202 206! Ses0d Gun) bumirty Py W puo 1 POy
(20700 | rewes s aung Bamiry poensy 0 P i D0
PUD 505 LOGWDQ PO LA
001V ¥B10(8) Uil PHONSA oM LA _ﬁ
PRI D MO :
100 0G4 X 0QL YONW XFA nv !
1
SUOOAIOQ 004 FL
10} 60K JUBA DLO |05 U | MN
004 44 MOP A S0USOQ
LK0.00Q IO MOPM e

Bougpo

A4 W03 0 IOMPAS KKy

woopag

pa
sBupeo Buces josume ]

wangz
= B0 1004 04 00 WL

B

«3; u.—(nnvﬂ
NY1d 80074 LSuid

SR

105003 DU UAUGY 10X 10 195
T I ORI WALOSE - 1404 maN

SNY1d 30014 d3sododd
SOT19 ‘AGWOIHONIM ‘00S3d ]

Boug po
A Loy O/ OM DS DAL

z € v
051 IWos
NY1d 40014 ONNOYD @
oo
. A &
PUNOLING
P P0G FADSS 093 Ui 19} | JoUDNAD S5 MOEUM e UM
ot i LRIy soquo> L
011 Mot = 9K 134 PUD 5 el | woqpog
wou koD s800D N6y i - =
wopum ”
oo  EE———y el PO
Buog
PSUOINE 4 UOCRIIDA X0y 15|
0] 0K U DUD IO WA || MIN
I°H ecuouy3 eynsu3

E Bnug

& 0 Woop
W DUD X2 Ll PO &N

[ POAUR 0w ANAUND

3 WOy
.izgéﬁ
D1POAY IO 202 10 T

ADAOY 3950 MOpUM.
OO0 WALOBS X 0RL FINW XA

il
MOPM PUC PBACL ADwuosp Buysdy

C1 UM OPM UALGGS = SI0E MON

MON

e oBounp posadons

e Moo By

 ubypinou ) fug

mE

PuNOLE
DO PO 94045 0C Uik IS4 OF: | B

-
DIV UBYDLY

59091 BUISTD U PULIO) D MaN

DU TN PAICO

o e

9} eBounip Iy
(9Bu0X) YWSOOL | Mk = 980400 ey

PO fomosp Buyby

Do)
BuNGA0 J03P PUD PANOUIE MOPULW

A G xoe ny

9bBoIDY
I | |

m sy Bulig H_
| | [ -

10088
204Q UOLENS WD

oA IO DS R,

1M W0 VYOS DU
0514 ZEMZ ANH Y POy Ay
K02 unQ| $9puSs PN
LI Y20 9190000

NZ £ W0 O 00 8O [BABY
01O UOPUSUOS IOM IR

UORONAD OpfE % Smopupe AT B
NRE JOOI

10gNS 0f SUDAQ I94IS 10 UYO20]
000 POs0io) Of Buppop ©POD

0P

9A0QU SUSBL!PATON) “IBHUNS WOy
DO0U: Of "UOM 1001 MO AJCUDd ©
E0G 0| 00U Wi 10 [0 K094 PG

PoLCIH AP WM S0P OUBAS
POz LB WUOSTZ XopM WS |15




ZONSML, Jeans s

1202 994
)

%_ 1207 %3 dn
e S -

i R e

L ]
ey
o
Y

SIWHES NCUDNHLINOD

4

sUsOAI(] — 50)9Q Bunsxy
P

2QUICOYIUIN
pooy Aarbuoy
09594

o

SION | NOSAY

12022010

NSS! 14

Q01 3Wos

NOLLVA3T3 LS3M

001:1 35
NOLLVATT3 HLNOS

Nimlp |

ANy

X

Q0!:1 IWos
NOILYA3T3 Lsv3

No |

O mml%

001!l IWS
NOLLVYATT HLYON

W al

(1]

B e

SNOILYATTH - STIV.LAQ ONILSIXT
SOT19 ‘AGWOIHONIM ‘00S3d ]

44




g 204dML , fews s,

1202 709¢ NSS!

A 3 bumirey paAy
(20T | S s g Bumarsy paeaay

ADRA 10002 MODUM BLIOD SOW I

0011 38 001:1 3vds

NOLLVATTI IS3M NOLLYATIZ HINOS

J0UB U{COUS PENORD

. pawwoy

KO K092 MU RIUOD UM I3

2

00!l IWs 00L:1 IW2s
NOILYA3T3 1SV3 NOLLYAITT HLYON

SNOILYAT T3 d3s0ododd
SOT19 ‘AGWOIHONIM ‘00S3d ]

ODUM
4014 10080 MOXAM LUOD BOMINS  WLASDL X 004 L MOPU SBULOQ

W00 A0
SMOPUMA JOO) LULUOBS X 0L PONN XHOA

A3 Ly PRS00 UCISPOR BT

]

WALOSS AQ IS 100U §0 UOKDG 005

ALKy AQ DORD) N0 O JOC UOW.




Agenda Item 5b

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: Beech Cottage
Stockwell Lane
Woodmancote
Application No: 21/00247/FUL
Ward: Cleeve Hill
Parish: Woodmancote
Proposal: Erection of a two storey side extension, front porch, demolition of

existing garage and rebuild and alterations to existing dwelling
Report by: Pippa Brown

Appendices: Site location plan
Topographical plan (existing site)
Proposed street elevation and garage plan
Proposed floor plans and elevations
Existing elevations and floor plans

Recommendation: Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application relates to Beech Cottage, a two storey detached dwelling, located on the
northern side of Stockwell Lane, in Woodmancote. The site lies within the Cotswolds
AONB and is within 50 metres of a grade Il listed building (The Wooltons).

1.2 This application seeks to redevelop the site by removing the existing garage and
rebuilding a new garage, set further into the plot than the existing, adding a two-storey
side extension to the dwelling, adding a porch to the front of the dwelling and altering
fenestration and materials used in the dwelling.

1.3 Numerous revisions have been made to the original scheme, resulting in the final design,
considered in this application.

1.4 A Committee determination is required as Woodmancote Parish Council has
objected to the scheme, on the basis of its concerns around highway safety,
resulting from the proposal and the potential impact the proposal would have on
surface water flooding further down Stockwell Lane, in Woodmancote and
potentially elsewhere in the Borough.

46



2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Number | Proposal Decision Decision Date

T.5024 Garage and vehicular | PERMIT 27.07.1966
access.

T.5024/A Kitchen extension on | PERMIT 17.07.1968

ground floor and
bedroom over on first
floor.

T.5024/B Erection of a double PERMIT 22.09.1971
garage. New
vehicular access.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD7 (The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB))

— Policy SD8 (Historic Environment)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environment Quality)

— Policy INF1 (Transport Network)

— Policy INF2 (Flood Risk Management)

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

— Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions)

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
— Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings)

— Policy TRAC9 (Parking Provision)

a7




3.5

3.6

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3
4.4

5.0

5.1

5.2

Neighbourhood Plan

The proposal lies within the designated Woodmancote Neighbourhood Area. The
Woodmancote Neighbourhood Development Plan is at an early stage, and as such, does
not carry any weight in the decision-making process at this current time.

Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)

— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Woodmancote Parish Council — Object to the application on two grounds:

- The potential impact of the proposed development on surface water flooding
further down Stockwell lane, within Woodmancote and potentially in other parts of
the borough.

- Concerns over the highway safety on this part of Stockwell Lane, caused by the
potential increase in vehicle movements on the road and potential for on street
parking. In addition, the visibility of vehicles pulling out of the driveway has been
raised as a potential issue.

Woodmancote Parish Council were reconsulted on the revised scheme for a period of 14
days and did not offer any further comment on the scheme, during the time. Therefore,
their original objection would still apply.

Gloucestershire County Council Highways — No objection.

Conservation Officer — No objection

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days and no letters of representation were received.

Following the submission of revised drawings, a revised site notice was posted for a
period of 14 days and no letters of representation were received.

48


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’'s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan
and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent
to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections,
the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF
(the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS
Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design
while Local Plan Policy HOU8 provides that development must respect the character,
scale and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

Whilst the detached dwelling, as existing is modest in scale and is not of any architectural
significance, the proposed side extension, as revised, would be of an appropriate size and
design which, by virtue of its design, would be in keeping with the character of the existing
dwelling.

The proposed side extension would continue the ridge line of the existing dwelling and
would not protrude further forward than the existing front building line. Therefore, whilst
not appearing subservient, it would not appear a dominant feature of the dwelling and
would not appear incongruous in the setting.

The proposed porch would be minimal in scale and would be of a style in keeping with the

character and appearance of the dwelling. It would be a subservient addition to the
dwelling.

49



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

710

7.11

712

713

The proposed extensions would use materials to match the existing dwelling, with some
rendered elements. The rendered elevations would not be highly visible from the street
scene, aside from the proposed front porch and therefore would have minimal impact on
the character or appearance of the street scene. Notwithstanding this, a range of
materials can be seen on Stockwell Lane, meaning it would not appear incongruous in the
setting.

As part of the proposal, the existing garage would be demolished and a replacement
erected, set slightly further back into the plot. The existing garage is set into the bank,
upon which the dwelling is located (see topographical plan). The proposed garage would
be set further into the bank, involving some excavation in this location. By virtue of the set
back and the location and design of the existing garage, the proposed would not have an
adverse impact on the character or appearance of the dwelling and would not appear
visually prominent within the street scene.

The associated landscaping and retaining wall, included in the proposal would be of a
style appropriate to the context of the dwelling and topography of the land, using
materials, sympathetic to the location of the site within the Cotswolds AONB.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed extensions and alterations, as revised, would
be appropriate in the site context and would not have a detrimental impact on the
character or appearance of the area. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal would
conform with the requirements of the relevant policies outlined above.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local
amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS8
provides that extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on
adjacent property and residential amenity.

Beech Cottage sits within a spacious plot, with neighbouring dwellings located
sporadically on this part of Stockwell Lane. As such, there would not be any adverse
impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents in terms of overbearing or
overshadowing.

The proposed side extension would include the addition of a Juliette Balcony to the rear
and an additional window on the front elevation at first floor level. Despite the elevated
position of the dwelling, there would not be any issues of overlooking that would affect the
amenity of nearby properties.

Highways Impacts

Concerns have been raised by Woodmancote Parish Council over the potential highway
safety of the area. These concerns have been noted, however officers consider that the
impacts on highway safety resulting from the proposed development would be less than
substantial, since the proposal seeks to extend the existing parking area, therefore
lessening the likelihood of the need for parking on the street, where it is noted that this
could cause issues.

In addition, Gloucestershire County Council Highways have raised no objections to the

proposal, demonstrating that there would not be any adverse impacts on the safety of
pedestrians and road users on this part of Stockwell Lane.

50



Landscape Impacts

714 JCS Policy SD7 outlines how development proposals within the Cotswolds AONB should
conserve and where appropriate, enhance its landscape, scenic beauty and other
qualities.

7.15 Whilst Beech Cottage lies within the Cotswolds AONB and at an elevated position, in
relation to Stockwell Lane, the proposed alterations and extensions, by virtue of their
scale and use of materials would not be visually prominent in the context or have an
adversely harmful impact on the Cotswolds AONB.

Other matters

7.16 Woodmancote Parish Council have raised concerns over the potential impacts on surface
water flooding, resulting from the proposed development. This has been considered by
officers. However, it is considered that the proposed extensions and replacement garage
would not cause a significant adverse impact on surface water flooding over and above
the existing situation.

717 The site lies within 50 metres of a listed building (The Wooltons, located to the east),
however by virtue of the nature of the proposals and the relative location of the dwellings,
there would not be any harm to its setting. The Conservation Officer was consulted and
raised no objection to the proposed development.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1 It is considered that the proposal would not be unduly harmful to the appearance of the
existing dwelling, nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss
of residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an

acceptable size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined
above. Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:

— Drawing 200 — Proposed floor plans & elevations @A1 (received 16.09.2021)
— Drawing 210 — Proposed street elevation & garage plan @A1 (received 16.09.2021)
— Site location plan @A4 (received 01.03.2021)

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

51



3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed

development shall match those used in the existing dwelling, unless otherwise specified in the
approved plans.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the exiting dwelling.

. The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the proposed

dwelling/garage has been fitted with an electric vehicle charging point. The charging point shall
comply with BS EN 62196 Mode 3 or 4 charging and BS EN 61851 and Manual for
Gloucestershire Streets. The electric vehicle charging point shall be retained for the lifetime of
the development unless it needs to be replaced, in which case the replacement charging point
shall be of the same specification or a higher specification in terms of charging performance.

Reason: To promote sustainable travel and healthy communities.

INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’'s website relevant
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to
be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

52



Beech Cottage

L L L
NMatres
ReQuestaPlan

pian procuced o [

Date Preduced: 01 Mar 201
Plan Reference Number:  TORGM21060 123845805
Scale 11250 @ A4

53

© Crown copynight end database rghts 201% OS 100042766




~
)

\mvt ey
fteq sse r\

auveq
[Tam1003

69°pOT

pZort

4
Lo

aby




10196 8 20 AWHH
AL £
104195 (D10) 3. IWVINALTEO

LARALS TN 1T
V) RGPV (SN VTS NOS VT VIRINY

RO0g uey (& 01z
am

[e— ]

SUCHBAI[F ATEIED)
Vo051 ¥ AN wang pasodaid

ueEAIy Auay TuoRuAYy WIS 1 UonuAL] apIS
00L/0;

“PYT swagIy [y

- —u&!-!lu._ﬂuuﬁ'_- =

Do o1 Saa racey 1307 Sev eat
S L &

WG YD 15 NP G N g PO IT0T AN W N
L 0 60 v paroy |36 en) 13 1
) i) e e PR 7 o T X
3 4
a

B UGt o it ingin.

W%%%@%EE@EE.? (0 TN DR ]

MIA PINS

=
e

= o
o

!
i
)/\v
L
W

I
§

e —lhio o - p nin o KN 0 o0 00 oaff

W

o




L1096 (€ 18L0) 2 i
ST SDOOE

015 DTI0 IR FVHNALTIE
LTINS SONT £

V) ATV (RIVIE VTN NOSXOVE VIILNY

“PYI sy [y

A g o) |08 W G N
Ul DY 12K 2% 0 K

vosrd

n FAPAL 1T 40 B X

N
- W 34 o
» ~ S
01 9% o KjpE ' 24 90 SORERTS ANERIY TIE 99 BT H
mones 5 X o mopanvo wnsspo 165t ey W )
e 34 8 vorsom s (2K 4 L
Tmnp> s e vy 127 983 95
o q paraual vy 1 102 W1 LT D
A q parvabal vy 10T W 0T @
ooy

asT=2F

i

=

1 uopwAN SnS

BI=

—

H
T




57

] _* il

S|
/
i
A\
! | ’-\\
e Ny




Agenda Iltem 5c

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: 8 Keriston Avenue
Churchdown
Application No: 21/01008/FUL
Ward: Churchdown St Johns
Parish: Churchdown
Proposal: Erection of a two storey side extension.
Report by: Pippa Brown
Appendices: Block plan

Site location plan, existing plans and elevations
Proposed plans and elevations

Recommendation: Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 This application relates to 8 Keriston Avenue, a semi-detached, chalet bungalow style
dwelling, located on a road of similar style dwellings, in Churchdown. The dwelling is
located within a spacious plot and is bordered to the South by a public footpath.

1.2 This proposal seeks to erect a two-storey side extension to the dwelling, in the same style
as the existing property, continuing the ridge height and box dormers on the front and rear
of the dwelling.

1.3 A Committee determination is required as Churchdown Parish Council has
objected to the proposal, as it considers the proposed extension to be out of
proportion with the existing dwellings in the area. It also considers that the
proposal would represent overdevelopment of the site.

58



2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Number | Proposal Decision Decision Date

67/00061/FUL Residential PER 17.02.1967
development on
approx. 6.8 acres of
lane. Construction
of estate roads.

68/00065/FUL Erection of 3 PER 12.02.1968
detached and 21
pairs of semi-
detached dwellings.
Construction of an
estate road.

Scheme of
landscaping as
required by condition
(c) of consent ref.
G.2485/Z.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environment Quality)

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

— Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions)

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
— Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings)

Neighbourhood Plan - Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Development
Plan — 2011-2031

- Policy CHIN2 (Layout and Appearance of Residential Development)

59




3.6

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Churchdown Parish Council — Objects to the application, as they consider that the
proposed development would represent overdevelopment of the site and would be out of
proportion with the dwellings in the area.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days and one letter of representation was received, with a neutral stance on the
application. Comments were made raising concerns over the potential impact of the
proposal on surface water drainage, at times of heavy rainfall.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan
and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent
to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections,
the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF
(the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

60


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.5

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS
Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design
while Local Plan Policy HOU8 provides that development must respect the character,
scale and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

Policy CHIN2 of the Churchdown and Innsworth neighbourhood Development Plan
outlines how proposals for the redevelopment of existing buildings should contribute
towards the local distinctiveness of the area and demonstrate high quality, sustainable
design and architecture that respects and responds positively to the best examples of the
neighbourhood area’s character.

Whilst it is noted that the proposed extension would increase the living area in the
dwelling by a considerable amount, notwithstanding the objection raised by Churchdown
Parish Council, it is considered that the proposed side extension would be proportionate,
considering the scale of the plot and orientation of the dwelling.

The proposed extension would increase the width of the two storey element of the
dwelling by around 4 metres. The proposed development would involve the removal of a
single storey element on the south side of the dwelling. Therefore, whilst the overall bulk
of the dwelling would significantly increase as a result of the proposal, the width of built
form on the site, would only be increasing by around 1 metre.

Despite the scale of the proposed extension, a significant amount of garden area would
be maintained. For this reason, officers do not consider the proposal to represent
overdevelopment.

The extension would comprise two storeys (chalet bungalow style), reflecting the existing
design and proportions of the host dwelling. The ridge line would continue and the box
dormers on the front and rear would also be continued to the south. By virtue of this, the
proposed extension would be in keeping with the style of the dwelling and others in the
street scene and would not appear incongruous in the setting.

In addition, by virtue of the location of the dwelling, at the south end of Keriston Avenue
and its orientation, in relation to neighbouring dwellings, the proposed extension would
not appear visually prominent in the street scene. It would therefore not have an
adversely harmful impact on the street scene and would be considered by officers, an
acceptable addition.

Whilst no other properties on Kerison Avenue have been extended in this way, the host
dwelling, benefits from a unique position at the end of the road, not bordered to the south
by another property. As such, the proposed extension would appear an appropriate
addition and would not be harmful to the character of the street scene.

For these reasons, it is considered that the proposed extension would be in keeping with

the character and appearance of the dwelling and wider area and would conform with the
requirements of the relevant local and neighbourhood plan policies.

61



Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

7.10 Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local
amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS8
provides that extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on
adjacent property and residential amenity.

7.11 By virtue of the location of the proposed extension and the orientation of the dwelling,
there would be no adverse impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring dwellings in
terms of overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking.

7.12 Whilst the site is bordered to the south by a public footpath, there would be a gap of at
least 3.6 metres (measured from the south east rear corner) maintained between the
edge of the proposed extension and the boundary fence. Therefore, there would not be a
significant or adverse overbearing or overshadowing impact on users of the public
footpath.

7.13 Due to the factors outlined above, it is considered that the proposed extension would not
have an undue impact on the residential amenity of local residents and would comply with
the requirements of JCS Policy SD14 and Local Plan Policy HOUS.

Other Matters

7.14 Concerns were raised by a local resident around the potential impact the proposed
development could have on the surface water drainage in the immediate vicinity.

7.15 This has been noted; however, it is considered that the proposed development would not
have a great impact on surface water run off over and above the existing situation. The
issues currently experienced would therefore be unlikely to be exacerbated to any
significant degree by the proposed extension.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1 It is considered that the proposal would not be unduly harmful to the appearance of the
existing dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss
of residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an
acceptable size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined
above. Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

62



The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:

— Drawing A371P/242/20 REV B — Block plan @AZ2 (received 09.08.2021)

— Drawing A371P/242/01 REV A — Existing elevation & site location plan & ground/first
floor plan @A1 (received 18.08.2021)

— Drawing A371P/242/10 REV A — Proposed elevations & ground/ first floor plan & section
A-A @A1 (received 18.08.2021)

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those used in the existing dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the exiting dwelling.

INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought
to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s
website relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus
enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

63



B8 ABY 02/2heidLLEY

a3HDIHD W awvea

BT L I 1z Ony aiva
ueid ¥o0|g

NOILINOS3a

Fuw

9B5F 1L ZS¥L0 18L
‘410 15719
‘weyuajayd ‘peoy Jejsaono|g
‘UOIIIBUUOY ‘UOUSABIS ‘FE IUN
'PI Wweyuayay) ysd

AHYPOIIAS AOVEAT FRasH D)

J0931ydJe

2ASd

SUOISIAGY aneg Ay

Asepunoq oj Buoua) oysnody - pappe SjoN 12, oy v

PApUSLLE BUING AIBPUNDY SIS 12, By a

Ayges ays 10) MESUOHE OIERUOD U
‘SUOSEAFIFIS UG |8 1900 20U S

R o R1eeBuT [RINENAS P 2 o) 56
“SSIUMARLGCS UCINNSU0D 10 pace)d
105100 AU 910y uoq 1 I Buppous s ] L
Buipasoaid 2,050q JOPEAUOT WEW PRUCI 1GROR W 4|
uoRanEECS Jof Bupmesp woy aeas jou og

"uOfSSIULBL oYM pacnpoudad &g 10U pRous pue wiudides s Buswelp sy )

pauseysibas aonoesd pasapeys e s py | WEYUE

608650001 OU 82usan SO 202 sWbu eseqejep pue JyBukdod umaid @

002:T © ueld ajs

— -

Keriston Avenue




W A LOEREILLEY

- av
AIIHD M
v B 0gis Lz fiop
IwE uva
BURSIXG SE SUDHEASD PUE SUElY
ML 30

ISd

EIE

pampd
ey OS] SMELEY PO

LA

Vald yim
paialsibal so110e1d palsueyo e si p)] weyus)ayd YSd

HVAY

05z1:1 ueid uoyeoon

50BASOD0L O S9URI1] SO 1207 10U FEPqEER PuB WiLAIDD LG @

uoneAs|d apIs

uolleAs|a leay

uoneas|e JuUol4

ueid Jooy 1s114

L peg

€ peg

ue|d JooJ} punoig) |
ol
O

Kiojensssuon

T

abeien

abuno

N

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
—]
|
|
|
|
i




W AR OLIEREIdELEY

- av
amaaHa v
L @05

Fwoe ETL]

1z, By |

pasodosd se
SUCHEAZ|T PUR UONIIS ‘SUBIY

NOLAHIEI

«um-:._u:m

2A8d

_ e “a

vard yim
paia)siBel sonoeid paiepeyo e S| pr Weyua)syd YSd

V-V uonoes

HVAY

UONEAD|D JBaY

wg . wo

FHNOM 30 INALGE

|
.
=

_

_

(e|eos 0} J0U) | MaIA

ueld Jooy puncge |
© |

ue|d Jooy} 18114

j -._ A i
N

e

¥ peg

abeien

afunon 7

_
__|
_
I
|
_
_
| !
" _
D _: —|
| .|._..\. _
|
|
|
|
I
f
_
_
_
_




Agenda Iltem 5d

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning

Date: 19 October 2021

Site Location: Framfield
Two Hedges Road
Woodmancote

Application No: 21/00702/FUL

Ward: Cleeve Hill

Parish: Woodmancote

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension (resubmission)

Report by: Sarah Barnes

Appendices: Site location and block plan x2

Proposed elevations
Proposed floor plans
Existing floor plans
Existing elevations
Proposed floor plans
Proposed elevations

Recommendation: @ Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site relates to Framfield, a detached dwelling located along Two Hedges
Road in Woodmancote (site plan attached). The site falls within the Green Belt.

1.2  The proposal is for a single storey side extension (plans attached).
1.3 A Committee determination is required as the Parish Council is objecting to the proposal

on the grounds that the proposed extension would be overdevelopment and there would
be a negative impact on the Green Belt.

67



2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Number Proposal Decision Decision Date

19/00346/FUL Erection of a two PER 03.07.2019
storey side and a
single storey rear

extension.

20/00462/FUL Erection of a single REF 06.11.2020
storey side extension

20/01273/CLP Erection of two CLPCER 13.05.2021
outbuildings.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD5 (Green Belt)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environment Quality)

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

— Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions)

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
— Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings)

Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)

— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

68




4.0

41

5.0

5.1

5.2
6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Woodmancote Parish Council — objects on the grounds that the proposed extension
would be overdevelopment and there would be a negative impact on the Green Belt.

The property has already been extended significantly and this additional extension must
increase the original ground floor footprint beyond 50%. Adding a further single storey
extension onto the recent two storey extension, will reduce parking provision to the side
and rear of the property. Such an extension in the green belt would be an
overdevelopment and the size and scale would look out of keeping with the street scene.
If permitted, they request that a planning condition is attached that prevents commercial
use.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

No letters of objection have been received from neighbours / local residents.
POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan
and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent
to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections,
the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF
(the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

69


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.5

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS
Design, Visual Amenity and Green belt

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design
while Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that development must respect the character,
scale and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

Policy SD5 of the JCS similarly advises that within the Green Belt, “development will be
restricted to those limited types of development which are deemed appropriate by the
NPPF, unless very special circumstances can be demonstrated”.

Section 13 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out that the
construction of new buildings is inappropriate in Green Belt. However, there are
exceptions including:

. the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building;

. the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and
not materially larger than the one it replaces

Planning permission was granted in 2019 (19/00346/FUL) for a two storey side and single
storey rear extension. These extensions created additions of about 50%. Later in 2020 a
refusal was issued for a single storey side extension (20/00462/FUL) which would have
resulted in a 65% addition when combined with the previous extensions. This was
considered to be a disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original
dwelling, and the proposal was considered to comprise inappropriate development.

A Certificate of Lawfulness application was then submitted in March 2021 (20/01273/CLP)
for two substantial detached outbuildings within the curtilage of the property to be used as
a garden room and a studio (plans attached). The certificate was granted in May 2021.

The Parish Council have objected on the grounds that the proposed extension would be
overdevelopment and there would be a negative impact on the Green Belt. The property
has already been extended significantly and this additional extension must increase the
original ground floor footprint beyond 50%.

Recent appeal decisions have established that where there is a reasonable prospect that
accommodation not requiring planning permission would be implemented in the event
planning permission was denied for similar extension, that this permitted development
'fall-back’ position can amount to very special circumstances.

70



7.8

7.9

710

7.1

712

713

714

8.0

8.1

In this case, the ‘studio outbuilding’ as granted under the 2020 CLP would be in the same
location as the proposed extension and only marginally smaller. Indeed, the proposed
extension would only be 0.2m wider and would provide a commensurate level of
accommodation. There is therefore a reasonable prospect that the CLP proposal would
be implemented if the current application were to be refused. This is considered to be a
realistic fallback position and is a fresh material planning consideration since the 2020
refusal.

Whilst the proposed extension would be a disproportionate addition (65%) when added to
the previous 2019 extension, the realistic fallback position is considered to amount to very
special circumstances.

In terms of openness, the proposed single storey addition would have a modest impact.

With regards to the Parish Council’s comments about the extension resulting in
overdevelopment, this would only be a relatively modest single storey side extension and
there would still be adequate garden space remaining at the front / rear of the dwelling.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local
amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOU8
provides that extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on
adjacent property and residential amenity.

The impact of the proposal upon neighbouring properties has carefully been assessed
and it is considered that there would not be an undue impact upon their amenity in
accordance with Policy HOUS of the Local Plan and Policy SD14 of the JCS. No
objections have been received from any of the neighbouring dwellings.

Other Issues

The Parish Council have also raised concerns about the loss of parking at the site and the
future use of the extension. In terms of the parking at the site, there would still be space
for over 3 cars to be parked off road and this is this is considered to be acceptable. With
regards to the proposed use of the extension it would be used as a studio for their own
private use. A condition would be attached to the permission to ensure that the use
remains as ancillary to the existing house.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

It is considered that the proposal would not be unduly harmful to the appearance of the
existing dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss
of residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an
acceptable size and design. Whilst the extension would constitute a disproportionate
addition to the dwelling and comprise inappropriate development, an alternative proposal
that could be built under permitted development rights constitutes a realistic fall-back
position. This is considered to comprise very special circumstances that would clearly
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm
resulting from the proposal. Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

71



CONDITIONS:

1.

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:

Plans 200709/PL/001, 200709/PL/004 and 200709/PL/005 dated 14th June 2021 except
where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those used in the existing dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the exiting dwelling.

The development hereby permitted shall only be used in conjunction with and as ancillary to
the residential enjoyment of the adjoining dwelling house known as Framfield.

Reason: To define the terms of the permission.

INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought
to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s
website relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus
enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

72



W JO WBLADOD 8| UMOYS LORBULOU IV

"Bupmaip S|y Woy efeds Jou ¢cq
O 100/71d/60£00¢
rou Bupmosp

Y005 08211 ‘o|pos
ozIL oyep

mear tq pexoeyd

war tAq umosp
Bujuuely

sniois

Ue|d %00/g pue uojeoo]
Buimo.p

1d6 2579 ©J00UBLIPOOA
‘peoy sebpe om]
‘ploywely,

d0}
1d6 2SO 8j00UBWPOOM
‘peoy sebpeq om|

‘Pleywely,

‘Buip|ing olpnis

Keau03s 9)Buis pesodoid

- fo0fo.d

uw NIISIASY As
oz/z/LL ‘asnoy woy

Payoe3ap UoISUAXD OIpPMS Y
L2/1/S1 papuawe apy pafoid g
L2/€/9Z pappe ued olpnis LUapieS D

3N°"02°8INJO8)|YDJEPUSIXS MMM M
)N"00°8INJ08)|YoJepusIXe@oju|
12698 00620

339 2519

weyus)yeayd

peoy se||iA weyuspAs sp

anpsyyoly RIERVE]

0scL:L oleos

(Bupsix3) ue|d uoneoo

7

00S'L
(pasodoud) ueld 3o0|g

aleog

0002

?

94018 /WCos uspPiob
Kauoys 9|buls
wgoxwQ| pasodoig

UOISUBIXd
olpms Kauols
9|buis pasodoig

—_— /
|
um:EmE/\\ N
= L

oooe

0002

73



W9 JO WBUAGO) S| UMOUS LORBULOJU| IV

"Bupmaip S|y Woy efeds Jou ¢cq
+00/1d/60L00cC

‘ou Buimo.p

005708211 ‘8|oas

oLt ‘8yop

mar 4q pexoeyo

mar tAQ ump.p

Buiuuelq

snyojs

Ue|d »00/g pue uojeoo]

Buimo.p

1d6 2519 ©]00UBWPOOM
‘peoy sebpe om]
‘PIoywely,
I

jua|2

Joy

1d6 2SO 8j00UBWPOOM
‘peoy sebpeH om]
‘Pleywely,

‘uoisuexe olpnjs

Keau03s 9)Buis pesodoid

efo.d
vt

uw NaISIAZS A3

3N°"02°8INJO8)|YDJEPUSIXS MMM M
)N"00°8INJ08)|YoJepusIXe@oju|
12698 00620

339 2519

weyus)yeayd

peoy se||i\ weyuspAs sp

anpsyyoly RIERVE]

0SZL:L 8jeos
(Bunsix3) ue|q uoyeoo]

00S'L 9©eds
(pasodoud) ueld 3o0|g

UoISUDIXD
oipnis £a.0)s
916uis pasodciy

74




Materials:

1. Two course red engineering brick
plinth.

2. Reclaimed red facing brickwork.

3. 'Silva' Western Red Cedar cladding,
PEFC Grade No.2 microline channel
19x144mm.

4. uPVC bifold deors, glazed personnel
door and glazed screen, Col:Anthracite
Grey.

5. Red plain clay roof and ridge tiles.

6. Plain half-round/round PP coated
gutters and downpipes by Guttercrest
Ltd. Col.Black.

7. Velux rooflights.

8. Solid timber framed, ledged and
braced door, door and frame painted
Anthracite Grey.

/

L[> ]
IS

AII AI/
y _— === === === =
| I
| = iy |
| |7 |7 | nl
| Store L L |
| | Il
g | |
g Yl ] L
o | § . I
| Studio It
| ,.=.|
| |
| |
| —— |
e S . S L. M —J
-
HEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEN|
| HENEEEEEEEEEEEEEESEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
| NN N N N N N N U |
IIIIIIIIIIIIIQIIIIIllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIUI»IIIIIII L1111
| HEEEEEEEE NN NN NN E .|
| ENEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
*
18] g
*
o , 4.
= =
*
4]
)r 7 7 AC
East Elevation Proposed
/\ lllllllllll 1
NN
LT L
NN, - JITITT1
/ \ [ITTITT 1T I I ITTTTTTT]
. 1 1'.
South Elevation Proposed West Elevation Proposed
client
'Framfield’, Two Hedges Road,
o o Woodmancote GL52 9PT
project

Proposed single storey garden building,
'Framfield’, Two Hedges Road,

Woodmancote GL52 9PT

' 1.
North Elevation Proposed

§ - -

IIlllllllllllllllllllllllllllll[llllllllllllll

| B 5 B 52 I
7|Il.‘bllllllll 7 |l

L1111

| I N

lll[lllIIIIIIIIIIIII

[T I LTI T I T I T I T LI I I T T T ITI I ITIITITT]

6.

1111

drawing
Proposed Plans & Elevations

S‘I';ur:ning 75
- B

26/3/21
1. 100@A3

=y au=lale] Architecture

7 Wistley Road, Charlton Kings,
Cheltenham GL53 8NP

07900 876971

e: info@extendarchitecture.co.uk
w: www.extendarchitecture.co.uk

drawing no.

200709/PL/006

Do not scale from this drawing.
All Information shown Is copyright of eA.



Paved patio

L1111 11

111

111

[TTT1T1

11111 LTI TTT ]
[TT11 LJJ iLJJ JTTTTTTITTITTITTITTITTITITTT

111
LLHLJI LIJJI

11
I

L 11

| I N N O |

[ TTTTTTITTITITT]
[ TT T T T T T TTT]

T
(11 [TITT] [TII1] [TITII]
6
L i
[TTTT|R" IIHIIR/L [TTITIR" R’/
TTTI1] T1T1 TIIT11]1 TT11
[TTT1 111111,, [TITITIL L JTTIT]
ITIIIII T TT IIITTIITIIJLIIIIIIITIIITIIIT
_iJ} | ; { |
m § Shwr.Rm.1 B hwr.Rm.2 Bedroom 3
| Op NG rnE -
Landing {Mg
[
|:H Bedroom 1 "—E [—I l—l
— 1 Wd{:
i ED L. E
de::lrcom2§ D

First Flecor Plan Proposed

Paved patio

[T11

[TTTTT1

IIIIIHIH

[

} I

IIIIIIIIIII]II

T

T TTTTTTTTTTTT

N.EWalls and roof structure to be as per Si’'s
details. Walls to be insulated to 028W/m?K,
and be either single sxin/plers/drylining or
insulated cavity walls.

Bifold doors
1 Z %* NB. © ween boun
D_-_.‘ . -~ —-Garden r_ la'ﬁ‘fﬂ line and. s?de; of stt::iio e
H - 1 oom | . H ﬂ:] !I-l : [::n chould not be lece thot 2m
I | 1 I |
: ; R - S [ T
M O = e to sockaway
= 7 = _1 or sw drain
P O | ’\
I e |
oy gg , % noms71y Y
1 7
‘ Dining Rm.
Y ’- l_ Utility Rm.
| (O o v
Z=z
Hall 7 U —
Hall 7
Sitting Rm.
A f Study
D\IN .
— %
\\/ ShwrWC v 2
@ N Recessec pcnel
2
o2 to sockaway
nAr ew drain
Ground Floor Plan Proposed & *
L 7000 boundary
7 house to boundary 7
Ry REVISIN e project client _ .
A. Studio extension detached from house. Proposed single storey €X t €n d Architecture
11/12/20 studio building, 'Framfield’, 45 Sydenham Villas Road
B. Project title amended 15/1/21 ‘Framfield' Two Hedges Road Cheltenham
C. Dimensions to boundary added 26/3/21 ’ ) GL52 6EE
imensions to boundary 12 Two Hedges Road, Woodmancote GL52 9PT  gronn 876074

Woodmancote GL52 9PT

for
76

drawing
Proposed Plans
status
Planning
date; 27720

scale: 1100247

e: info@extendarchitecture.co.uk
w: www.extendarchitecture.co.uk

drawing ne.

200709/PL/004 C

Do not scale from this drawing.
ulmmmnwdu\



W JO WBLADOD 8| UMOYS VORI I
"Bumaip S|y WOy 8feds Jou ¢q

Noo\._n_\monoom

::::::::

V80011 ‘e|pas
273 ‘8jep
mear t4q pexoeyd
mar ‘AQ ump.p

Buiuuelq

snyojs

sue|d Bugsix3

Buimo.p

1d6 2519 9j00UBLUPOOA\
‘peoy sebpaH om |
‘Pleyjwel,

ey

1o}

1d6 2SO S100UBLWIPOOAL
‘peoy sebpaH om |
‘Pleyweld,

‘uojsuSIxe ojpnys

Aeu0)s o|Bujs pesodoid
joefoad

auve NTAZY AR

3N°09°8INJO8}|YDIEPUSIXS MMM M
)N 00" 81NJ08)|YoJepusIxe@oju| @
146948 00640

33926719

weyusjyayn

peoy se||in weyuspAs i

syl [RIERNE)

WA S

pasodoud uejd 100/ 1S4

. _ | I ! I ! —I\ @
T Jemm HEFT
] [] m
JE.://P | wooipeg D
N [=[wn] W ﬂﬂ, Buipue
. Orrdr-T
€ wooipaeg MH % wymy ﬂ r.EmscDm E
1 F— ——
/v 2/y /4 /Y
oned paaed

N

7\

pasodoid ue|d J00|4 punoJd

DN 7EQ{

Apny
) L ‘wy Bumis ;
%r " - N IIeH
o o1 | [T = )
fiued _\,\‘._.L;/.Em Aunn l.mi ﬁ

‘wy Buuig Hﬁ

[P———
{5 W B |
) _1
==t T
JTJed ! !

D ] weow |
=l=!m| S uep9 -
=== ‘

oy
sioop pIoyig

ok
I

oned pored




W® JO WBADOD 8 UMOYS LORRULOJU] IV
“BUIMIP SIY) WOY 91eds 10U ¢

€V @ 00}:} 9Jeds

€00/1d/604002 £V ® 00k} O[eos
“ou Bumo.p Bunsixg uoneae|3 (epig) 1seq Bupsix3 uopeAs|3 (Jeey) yinos

Buiuuelq
SNyD}s

suopens|3 Bugsix3

Buimo.p

1d6 2519 8JCOUBWPOOM
‘peCy SOBPeH oML
‘ployweud,

|

juslp

10}

1d6 251D ©}00UBWIPOOAL
‘peoy sebpaH omL

_— [ o R
= [ = = =

‘Ployweld,
‘uojsuaxe olpnys
Aauo)s o|bujs pasodoid
JEEICT
€V @ 00L: 1 81E0S
Bunsi3 uoneas|3 (epis) 1IsoM
€V @ 00}:1 8[edS
Bupsixz uogeas|3 (uoid) yuoN
M=/ L1 11l i) i, ﬁ —=
/ - L [ |
Wﬂm - - = || lo==m |
: ( I f Pt
3N"00°8INJO8)|YOIEPUSIXS MMM A
3N"00"2INjo8YYdIepUBIXS DO B
126928 00620
339 2519
weyusyeyd

peoy se||iA weyuspAs sy

syl [RIERNE)

/8



sy

-]

REVISIN

Paved patio

R/L R/L R/

I 1

I | I |

T

T

il
L
m Bedroom 1

 —
UU gl @

Shwr.Rm.1

hwr.Rm.2

IC

Landing

T

rd!

é Bedroom 3
A

L

—

-
= UAd

Bedroom 2

[J

L]

T
r

]
] LlHs
w,
A

A

First Floor Plan Proposed

Paved patio

Bifold doors

O30

-
-

s
]Q: :

N
M — I

—

Dining Rm.

Hall

Sitting Rm.

Do)

-~~~ Garden -

NEWalls and roof structure to be as per SE's
details, Walls to ke insulated to (.28W/m*K,
and ke either single skin/piers/drylining o
insulated cavity walls.

&=
Room : i [:] =
S

to sookeway

or sw drain

Utility Rm.

Ground Floor Plan Proposed

project

Proposed single storey
studio extension,

‘Framfield',
Two Hedges Road,
Woodmancote GL52 9PT

for
79

1280 h N
AN
AN
A o .
e 8l

Y Nom.2630 /

-:1 Recessed panel /

§ to soakaway

% Qr sw qarain

lient .
— [ au=lgled Architecture
'Framfield', 45 Sydenham Villas Road
Two Hedges Road, g’:gg"gﬁ";m
Woodmancote GL52 9PT 57900 876971
drawing e: info@extendarchitecture.co.uk
Proposed Plans W: www.extendarchitecture.co.uk
;«Iﬂu: | drawing nc.
anning

date; 7720 200709/PL/004
seala: 1100243 Donotesels flom e

All information shown is copyright of eA.



3N"00°8JNJO8}YOJBPUSIXS MMM (M

WO 4O BAGOD 91 UNOYS LORBULOHI IV

3N"09°aINP8)ydIBpuUSIXaDoju| ‘ e suopeas|3 pesodoid ™
116918 W-omho Buimoup 1d6 2519 Sjoousipoom ‘Bugsixa yojew o) sadidumop pue sienb HAdN ¥oeig L
mOO\J n_\ WONOON 1d6 ZS1O ©100UBLIPOOA ‘peoy sobpoH om] ‘Bunsixa yoiew o) sajn 8oy pue ‘sen diy 18UUoq ‘saln Joos ueld UMOIQ PAX O
339 2519 s ou Bumosp . (@Acqe [&jun) wwog Aq paSSaa ‘[aued YIOAI0IQ PaIZpUBI [1yul'S
weyusysyd evBooL:! ..o_uon ‘peoy) sobpoH om ] PEywely, o0 peey vo“Mh [nm ..o“vuvooo._a pue peBpej powey Jequil'y
’ . . “Buns ! ! I N UM
PEOY SBIIIA WeYUSPAS Sy 10 ployuwe.d, uoisuelxe olpnis T O P oD i oo e
3IN}O3U2IY JeliERD €] Buuuely Aeuqys e|buss pasodoid '$¥ug Bulise Ylew 0} ‘uid ¥04q Bude pas 850 oML
snjojs pofoud is|eliajew
€V @ 00}:} ©|E0S
€V @ 0041 o[eog  pesodoid uonesd|3 (opis) ise3 pesodoid uonenei3 (esk) uinos < uossue3 >
‘L _
— n
n
M E : - m
(/] \ =
) -] [ -] | . a3
| = E =] = =
u _H_- .D E |

/4| = =

\ o

—

=

€V @ 0011 0[eos  pesodoid uoneAe|] (epiS) Isem

C uojsueixg

3

£V ® 001:1 o[eos
pesodoid uoneas|3 (juo.d) yuoN

(L] Ji
) —

N

BT

Il




Agenda Item 5e

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee:
Date:

Site Location:

Application No:
Ward:

Parish:
Proposal:
Report by:

Appendices:

Recommendation:

1.0

Planning
19 October 2021

25 Tudor Close
Churchdown

21/00657/FUL

Churchdown St Johns

Churchdown

Erection of a two storey rear extension and garage conversion.
Sarah Barnes

Existing floor plans

Existing elevations

Proposed ground floor plan

Proposed first floor plan

Revised proposed elevations

Revised proposed ground floor plan

Permit

SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

11 The application site relates to 25 Tudor Close, a detached dwelling located in
Churchdown (site plan attached).

1.2

1.3

The proposal is for a two storey rear extension and a garage conversion (plans attached).

A Committee determination is required as the Parish Council is objecting to the proposal

on the grounds of overdevelopment and privacy issues.

2.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

types - approved
under
00/8971/0101/APP

Application Number Proposal Decision Decision Date
00/00101/APP Erection of 47 houses | APPROV 11.08.2000

with associated works
01/00377/FUL Substitution of house | PER 14.06.2001

81



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environment Quality)

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

— Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions)

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
— Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings)
Neighbourhood Plan

Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Development Plan — 2011-2031

Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Parish Council — object due to overdevelopment of the site and privacy issues.
Revised plans — still object for the same reasons as before
PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

82


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

71

Six letters of objection were received from four local residents to the original plans and
one letter of support from a local resident. The reasons for objection are summarised as
follows:

- Overlooking and loss of outlook to the dwellings at the rear in Armada Close
- Overdevelopment
- Increased noise levels
- Loss of parking spaces / parking concerns
- It's already a small plot with a small rear garden
POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan
and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent
to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections,
the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF
(the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS

Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design

while Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that development must respect the character,
scale and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

83



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

1.7

7.8

7.9

The Parish Council have objected on the grounds of overdevelopment and the loss of
privacy to neighbouring dwellings.

The Parish Council’s concerns have been taken into consideration as revised plans were
submitted on the 30t July 2021 omitting the proposed front gable extension and reducing
the size of the two storey rear extension (see attached plans). Specifically, the length of
the first floor aspect of the extension has been reduced by 0.5 metre. In relation to
overdevelopment, there would be adequate garden area free from extensions / additions
and there have been no previous extensions at this site. With regards to visual amenity,
the proposed extensions would be of a suitable size / design and constructed from
matching materials. There are also other similar sized extensions on this estate e.g.
permission was granted in 2019 for a two storey side extension at 42 Tudor Close.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal as revised would be of an appropriate size and
design in keeping with the character and appearance of the property. Therefore, the
proposal would have an acceptable impact on the character of the surrounding area and
complies with the requirements of Policy HOUS8 of the Local Plan and Policies SD4 of the
JCS.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local
amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOU8
provides that extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on
adjacent property and residential amenity.

Objections have been received from local residents and the parish council on the grounds
of loss of privacy. The nearest neighbouring dwellings at the rear of the site are 15 & 16
Armada Close. The ‘window to window’ distance from the revised two storey rear
extension to their nearest windows would be about 20 metres so the overlooking is not
considered to be harmful / unacceptable.

In relation to the loss of light / outlook to the immediate neighbours either side at 24 & 26
Tudor Close, the impact of the proposal upon these neighbouring dwellings has been
carefully assessed. Whilst there would be a loss of light / outlook, the proposed two storey
rear extension would not breach a 45 degree horizontal splay from the neighbouring
dwellings closest windows. Furthermore, given that the orientation of the sun, the
proposal would not result in an unacceptable loss of light or outlook that would warrant a
refusal on these grounds.

Overall, the impact of the proposal upon neighbouring properties has carefully been
assessed and it is considered that there would not be an undue impact upon their amenity
in accordance with Policy HOUS8 of the Local Plan and Policy SD14 of the JCS.

Parking

In relation to the concerns raised about the loss of parking, there would still be space for
at least 2/3 cars to be parked on the front drive and this is considered to be sufficient.

84



8.0

8.1

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

It is considered that the proposal as revised would not be unduly harmful to the
appearance of the existing dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an
unacceptable loss of residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would
also be of an acceptable size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies
as outlined above. Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1.

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:

Revised plans dated 30" July 2021 except where these may be modified by any other
conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those used in the existing dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the exiting dwelling.

INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought
to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s
website relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus
enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

85



0 A0y
£V @ 05’} :0eds
+202/¥0/52 21eQ

WP
I 46400 WY SUOM EIO U

4INDI5Q TINLIIUHIYY

uopi09) phoi Ag umeiq ST b asnon
sue|g Joo|4 Bunsix3 :Bumeiq L
RUE e}
8s0|D Jopn] Gz :1oaloid P
0s'L NV1d ¥0014 1SHI4
-y
—
wooJipag
wooipag
|Zﬁ )
ah ayns-u3
h a
1eH —
woolpag \
woolyleg
L_—
‘\\\.
| — oopee
e

mmmm“_

oy !
<-<¢

SNV1d J0014 ONILSIX3

NV1d 400174 ANNOYO

—
v-vY

afieien

uayoiy

/ wooy Buuig

o0
o0

Aun

Jequieyd uonpadsu|

Jaquey) uonoadsu|

86



0 A9y
eV @ 00L:L :0[e0S feAorinrripere oy LN 30110Wdd Q3YILYVHO SNOILVAIT13 ONILSIX3

1202/b0/52 ‘91eq
i
1VIO &

uopio9) pAo|] Ag umesqg

SUOjeA’| Buimelq
QeI

8s0|D Jopn] Gg -108loid

00L:L NOILVYA313 34AIS NOILVYA3T3 ¥V3d

I
ya

i b

87

NCILVYA3IZ 3AIS NOILVA3T3 LNOY4

il B B — [

|

= |9AB] JOO} 114
‘.\\ ooovu _m
19A9) mw>mw®|f
Avg




0 A8y

£V @ 0G:) :0eos

1202/v0/ST ‘8eq

uop.o9) pho|7 Ag umelq

ue|d Joo|4 pwnotg pasodold Bumeiq
I 010

9s0|D Jopn] Gz :1o8lold

w0 A
FHEANE 164E0 " GNSWI 3P0

ANLIILHINY

1VID &

NV1d 40074 ANNOYO d3SOd0dd

0Z'k VL30 HOOT4 NCLLYONNOS

88

L uiesp jos
Buysix3

+|+ wooy
009 Hl BUIAL
- g
|
M
B
N‘.ﬂ:
Il
1
=)
o
o
| [l
E T — T | T _ L _
- Ml t-rFt-pt—pa |
TLIHONOD MWN00s iy - -
HSINIS HOOd WNOZ » 0>> N/er __ L - L - L ._-_. ._I. -
. Iem pns’
o — 1 ) >da ] Hhu Bunsix3g I F .W. ]
uoRENSU| AWeS W0l e umog \_ | _ |
LT F L
7 o
| | |
)
,\l@.m._m I
V-V NOILO3S noRee Jr
LAl o — ‘m
0 0Ae7 | 11 13as ‘
w uo.__mwmm E usuoYy
, aqfew
:o:co__Q%ITI JlooNI B I>Ed ||||||| -
g L4 oo . S
— | YT ] g JaquieLy
A _ | uoipadsu
ﬁ 006V
|oA8] saAea
) B  Wv381331S
<\ | |
000¥
LY

vy



05 Y o NV1d HOO014 LS¥HI4 d3S040¥d

¢V @ 0G:) 9180 FRUNE Lo s 10 14 VY
1202/v0/SZ -eeq ¥INDHIO WRLIILIONY —

uoplo9 pAor Ag umelq L

ue|d Joo|4 SiI4 Luimelq
quelD _ _

3s0| Jopn | GZ 393/0.d

SO1U8d OOY® HZD WW P X WWG/ |
[8A8) 1s10l 100} 1811y BUNSIX® YJIM [9A3] UNJ 0} SISIOP J0O| IS4 I_ e e - T

uolje|NSUl J0j PaX}08YD 8q 0} Jooly abunc pasodoid

U110 AQ pawLijuod aq o) ysiuly Jooy (g)

100} 83210U02 WwEQ! (2) woapag wooipag

19Ae| uaneledas (9)

¥661:L-1¥2S SG vonensul pibu wwoQ ) (g)
"ZL0Z :/95€1 N3 Sg aueiquaw jooid dweq (1)
Buipuiq pues wwQz ()

auojs auo Jybn pajoedwod wwQ! (2)

aJ00pieH wwoQ} (1) —NG
-0ads 100J) punoio
1eA9] 2dQ Qyns-u3
Bunsixe yum |ena)| eq o} |ans| odQq Jool punolb pesodoid @
I1eH —
1006 OSIN3 S9 O =

SJO0Op pue smopuim je pauoljsod sainsojo ||lem Ajned
G1Z8 Sg 0} pie| Aeu) jooud dweq
60671 N3 Sg 01 |2A8) Jooj) Bunsixa abelo)s woolpeg
JO|9A3| 3y} aA0ge ww(Qg| pre| 8s1nod jooud dweq |1 1s10(
100}} 3841 JO
L'G¥8 N3 S8 0} |[EjuOzlIoy Spsidpun ._rl._ |||||| _ _ I e _H
wwoOe ‘[edniaA Wwwosy xew pauoiisod saj |jlem Ajaed pajeso pue |_
U1 paxoq 0T = S -~ -~ = A
2q 0}
$}00|g d[ewdy ] WWGLZ X Wwoyy X Wwoo adid jos T wooipag _
Bunsixe yojew 0} SHOUQ WWGY X G|Z X WwQ| | |
9/99 Sg ©} speg uoiensul [0OM 4001 I 3
llem KiABD WWDO L Yum [[em ANned [Builxg 8pim Wwwoos N || @ e
) woouyjeg A
‘S
siooulbus Joqui) Aq peubisep aq 0} Jooy \nﬁ_.l
sweaq |9a)s 10) palinbal suonenoe) @ subisap sisauibug jeinjonng /m
10)08dsu| Bulpjing 8y} Ag pawujuod aq 0} pasodold jJo yidaqg uonepuncy m\ _
‘uoneoyioadg ~ L L
T i ’ 29v2 ’

Alepunoq ay} sprujoid 0} JON pasodold
9}IS U0 PaY)OdYO 8q 0} 8Je suoisuswiq ||V

89

000€

‘SO1ON



0 A8y
£V @ 0011} :0/eds
1202/v0/52 eeq
uopio9) pAo|] Ag umelq

SUONEA2|T P! Bumeiq
qualD

95010 Jopn] G :}08loid

30ILOVHd QIYILYVHO SNOILVA313 d3SOdOdd

1VID &

001} NOILYA3T3 30IS NOILVA3I3 dv3d

B

O\

90

NOILVYA3T3 3dIS NOILVAII3 LNOYd

:: | O_D>®J Q ED
il

4JBA8

|1oA8| Jooy }sii4

| Loosyl l“_
|9AS] SOARD

JT

\




| Ay

£V @ 0§} :0eos
1202/L0/5T ‘8eq
uop.o9) pho|] Ag umelq

ue|d Joo|4 pwnotg pasodoid Bumeiq
. oo

8s0|D Jopn ) G¢ -108lo.d

TULIUONOD Mook
HSINIJ OO0 WNOZ

w0 A
FHEANE 164E0 " GNSWI 3P0

ANLIILHINY

1VID &

0Z'k VL30 HOOT4 NCLLYONNOS

o
009

000}

Lo

V-V NOILO3S

-
! 2dg
fe1y Aned

\ﬁ\zm
0074,
ZOP(QZ.-Ou

NV1d 40074 ANNOYO d3SOd0dd

0
e%ﬁ%%; |
\

0092
m |2A8] Jooy 18114 )
A _ I

006V

|[9A8] seAea

1
-
abuno wooy
5 BuiAr
i
|
-
4|
N‘p:
I
1
] L
—l_ T T T T T T m |
_ T e e i oL
Tl
om N\ s =+=*=477
X IIEM PNYS” I 1
] @ Bunsix3 iy
umoq || L
el —— L
7 I F T
|
_ 133Ls 13als.
paunbey E uayoN
agfew .
uoneoldde r~ JooNI B I>Ed ||||||| A
Jjenoping L
PUENNENEIS ﬁl
Jaquieu)d
uonpadsu)
1= _|weemme © T T T
000%

91

L uiesp jos
Buysix3

oY
vy



Agenda Item 5f

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT

Committee:
Date:

Site Location:

Application No:
Ward:
Parish:

Proposal:

Report by:

Appendices:

Recommendation:

MANAGEMENT
Planning
19 October 2021

15 Swallow Crescent
Innsworth

20/01024/FUL
Innsworth
Innsworth

New attached 2 bedroom dwelling to the side of 15 Swallow
Crescent

Dawn Lloyd
Plan 1 - Site Plan
Plan 2 - Site location plan, Proposed Elevations, Floor plan and

Block Plan, Streetscene

Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

The application site relates to the garden land to the side of 15 Swallow Crescent,
Innsworth, which is a two storey semi-detached dwelling. The immediate area is
characterised by semi-detached properties, although there are examples of bungalows,
detached and terraced properties in the wider area.

The proposal seeks full planning permission for the erection of a dwelling that would be
attached to No.15 Swallow Crescent. Amended plans were submitted on 17th August
2021 to amend the design to a two bedroomed property. The development would create
a row of 3 terraced properties. There is a similar form of development at 22 Swallow
Crescent. The property would occupy the driveway for number 15 and the parking
provision for number 15 and the proposed dwelling would be provided in the front amenity
space and on the road.

92



2.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Proposal Decision Decision
Number Date

20/00025/CLP | Erection of a single storey rear extension and new NOTPRO 04.09.2020

facade to existing walls.

20/00811/FUL | Erection of a single storey rear extension and re- PER 06.11.2020

cladding of main house.

3.0

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11
December 2017

Policy SP2 (Distribution of New Development)
SD4 (Design Requirements)

SD10 (Residential Development)

SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality)
INF1 (Transport Network)

INF2 (Flood Risk Management)

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
RES2 (Settlement Boundaries)

RESS (New Housing Development)

DES1 (Housing Space Standards)

ENV2 (Flood Risk and Water Management)

TRACO9 (Parking Provision)

Neighbourhood Plan
Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031
Policy CHIN2

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)

The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property)

93



4.0

5.0

CONSULTATIONS

Innsworth Parish Council - Supports the application so long as 4.6 of the
Neighbourhood Development plan adhered to. This ensures that off road parking is
properly applied for, for example the dropped kerbs to ensure the legality of off road
parking and stops un necessary street parking.

Innsworth Parish Council comments on the amended plans of 25" May 2021 —
objection not in keeping with the rest of the street. Give a cluttered look to the area.

- CHIN 1 parking for two spaces cannot be accessed and therefore on street parking
would ensue, therefore 2 spaces per unit would not be available.

-CHIN 3 no green features and does not contribute to enhancing the environmental
setting.

-CHIN 12 no consideration given to flood mitigation.

Highway Authority — No objection subject to conditions regarding installation of vehicle
crossover as approved plans, development not occupied prior to implementation of
parking provision, cycle storage, visibility splays, 5m of drive to be in a bound material and
electric vehicle charging points.

Severn Trent Water Ltd — There is a public 100mm surface wate sewer and public
100mm foul sewer located within the site. Public sewers have statutory protection and
may not be built close to, over or diverted without consent. Severn Trent will seek to assist
in obtaining a solution which protects the public sewer and the building. Under the
provisions of Building Regulations 2000 Part H4 Severn Trent can direct the Building
Control Officer to refuse building regulation approval.

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days and 4 representations of objection.

- Parking for 4 vehicles contrary to CHIN 1 of Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbour
Development Plan. Parking access is impeded by lamp post. Contrary to Gloucestrshire
manual for Streets. Street is already congested.

- Impact on streetscene

- The development would be built over an existing main sewer causing access problems
- Devaluing neighbouring property

- Internal arrangement of kitchen and downstairs wc contrary to building regulations

- Lack of parking provision, street already congested, lamp post on boundary restricts
parking.

Full copies of all the representations responses are available online at Insert text
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

94


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.0

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State
for Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On
the basis of the stage of preparation it has reached it is considered that the plan can be
afforded at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual
policies will be subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the
greater the weight that may be given).

Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood. At its Full Council meeting on the 30 June
2020, Tewkesbury Borough Council brought the Neighbourhood Plan into legal force,
under Section 38A(4) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.Plan

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS
Principle of the Development

In order to further sustainability objectives and in the interests of protecting the
countryside, the housing policies of the JCS set out a development strategy for the
borough.

The application site has not been allocated for housing in the JCS and therefore the
criterion of Policy SD10 of the JCS applies. This policy advises that housing on sites
which are not allocated for housing in district and neighbourhood plans will be permitted if
it meets certain limited exceptions.

Of relevance is criterion 4 (ii). This criterion states that development will only be permitted
where it is infilling within the existing built-up areas of the city of Gloucester, the principal
Urban area of Cheltenham or Tewkesbury Borough's towns and villages except where
otherwise restricted by policies within district plans. For the purposes of criterion 4(ii), the
supporting text defines ‘infill development’ as “the development of an under-developed
plot well related to existing built development.”

The application site lies within the existing built-up area of Innsworth and it is bound by

residential development to the north, east and west. as such the proposal is therefore
considered to constitute infill development in accordance with JCS Policy SD10

95



7.5

7.6

In terms of the Emerging TBP the application site lies within the defined residential
development boundary for Innsworth as shown on the proposals map. Policy RES2 of the
Emerging TBP supports the principle of new residential development in this location
subject to the application of all other policies in the local plan. in all cases development
must comply with the relevant criteria set out in policy RES 5.

In light of the above, the introduction of a new dwelling in this location would comply with
the strategic housing policies in the development plan. however, there are other material
planning considerations to be taken into account.

Five Year Housing Land Supply

7.7

7.8

7.9

As set out in the latest Tewkesbury Borough Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement
published in December 2020, the council can demonstrate a 4.35 year supply of
deliverable housing sites. On the basis therefore that the Council cannot at this time
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing land, the Council’s policies for the
provision of housing should not be considered up-to-date in accordance with footnote 7 of
the NPPF and in accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF the presumption in favour of
sustainable development (the ‘tilted balance’) applies. The presumption is therefore that
permission should be granted unless policies for protecting assets of particular importance
provides a clear reason for refusing the development or any adverse impacts of permitting
the development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when
assessed against the policies in the framework taken as a whole.

It is noted that a recent appeal decision at Ashmead Drive an Inspector concluded that the
Council can demonstrate a 1.82 year supply. this is principally because the Inspector did
not agree that ‘previous oversupply’, or ‘advanced delivery’ should be taken into account
when calculating the five year supply. the Council’s firm view remains that, in the context
of the plan-led system, it is wrong not to take into account houses that have already been
delivered during the plan period, essentially ahead of schedule, and which meet the needs
being planned for in the area. On that basis, the Council have come to the view that there
are robust grounds for a successful challenge and proceedings have now been issued in
the High Court. As such the Council contend that a 4.35 year supply can be demonstrated
at this time.

Nevertheless, as set out above, as the council cannot demonstrate a five year supply of
deliverable housing sites therefore the presumption in favour of sustainable development
is engaged in this case.

CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE

7.10 Section 12 of the NPPF sets out that the creation of high quality buildings and places is

7.11

fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. it continues
by stating that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creating better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities. Planning decisions should, amongst other things, ensure that
developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the area and should be
sympathetic to the local character, including the surrounding built environment.

The National Design Guide (NDG) addresses the question of how we recognise well-
designed places, by outlining and illustrating the government priorities for well-design
places in the form of ten characteristics which includes context, identity and built form.
The NDG provides that well-designed development should respond positively to the
features of the site itself and the surrounding context beyond the site boundary.

96



712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.7

7.18

JCS policy SD4 is consistent with this approach and states that new development should
respond positively to, and respect the character of, the site and its surroundings,
enhancing local distinctiveness, and addressing the urban structure and grain of the
locality in terms of street pattern, layout, mass and form. It should be of a scale, type,
density and materials appropriate to the site and its setting.

Policy RES5 of the Pre-submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan (2019) states proposals
for new housing development should, inter alia, be of a design and layout that respects
the character, appearance and amenity of the surrounding area and is capable of being
well integrated within it and be of an appropriate scale having regard to the size, function
and accessibility of the settlement and its character and amenity, unless otherwise
directed by policies within the Development Plan.

Further, Policy CHIN2 of the adopted Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Plan
states that proposals for new development should contribute towards the local
distinctiveness of Churchdown and Innsworth. They should demonstrate high quality,
sustainable and inclusive design and architecture that respects and responds positively
to the best examples of the Neighbourhood Area’s character.

The proposal would add a dwelling to the existing pair of semi-detached properties,
introducing a terrace form into the street scene. Although the built form is predominantly
semi-detached dwellings, there are small section of terraced properties on Swallow
Crescent and in the wider area.

In terms of design, the proposal would be broadly consistent with neighbouring two
storey semi-detached properties. In particular, the hipped roof design would be similar to
that of existing dwellings along Swallow Crescent. The external walls of the existing
dwelling are concrete panels however permission was granted under application
20/00811/FUL for its recladding with facing bricks . The proposed materials for the new
dwelling materials (facing brick and interlocking tiles) would be in keeping with the
existing dwelling, character of the area and deemed appropriate to the site's
surroundings. The width of the plot would be slightly reduced in comparison to other
dwellings in the area but the proposal is considered to make best use of an under-
developed plot by providing a 2-bed unit and the separation from neighbouring
properties, particularly to the north and east would not result in a cramped form of
development when viewed in the wider context. The proposal is therefore considered to
present an acceptable design which responds positively to the character of the site and
its surroundings in accordance with the requirements of JCS Policy SD4, Emerging TBP
policy RES 5 and CHIN2 of Churchdown and /Innsworth NDP.

The dwelling has been amended to a two bedroomed property. The room sizes accord
with the National Described Spaces standards in accordance with emerging Borough
Plan Policy DES1.

There are many other examples of similar terraces in the area and given the mix of
building materials and house types in the area the proposal is considered to respect the
street scene and the character of the area, in accordance with SD4, emerging TBP
policy RES 5 and CHIN2 of Churchdown and /Innsworth NDP.

97



Residential Amenity

7.19 In respect of the impact of the development upon residential amenity, paragraph 127 of

the NPPF specifies that planning decisions should ensure development creates places
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. This advice is reflected in
JCS policies SD4 and SD14 which require development to enhance comfort, convenience
and enjoyment through assessment of the opportunities for light, privacy and external
space. Development should have no detrimental impact on the amenity of existing or new
residents or occupants.

7.20 The dwelling would extend beyond the rear elevation of number 15 at ground and first floor

level. The first floor would not breech the 45 degree rule to adjacent dwellings. Number 15
has recent had a ground floor extension permitted application 20/00811/FUL therefore,
the proposal would not be harmful in terms of impact of light. There is no direct
overlooking of windows. There would be overlooking of rear gardens from the first floor.
However, the adjacent dwellings are semi-detached and it is considered the harm of
overlooking from the proposed dwelling is not significantly different from that already
experienced. Therefore, the impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties is
considered acceptable.

Access and Highway Safety

7.21 The NPPF sets out that development should only be prevented or refused on highways

7.22

7.23

7.24

grounds where there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety or the residual
cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy TRAC9 of the emerging TBP states
that proposals need to make provision for appropriate parking and access arrangements.

Policy CHIN1 of the Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Plan sets out parking
standards for the provision of off-road parking for new residential development, where
possible; 1-bed dwellings should provide 1 off-road car parking space; 2 and 3-bed
dwellings should provide 2 off-road car parking spaces and 4-bed dwellings should
provide 3 off-road car parking spaces.

The existing dwelling would be provided with one onsite parking space and one on the
road. The proposed dwelling would benefit from two parking spaces in the front amenity
space.

The Highway Authority have considered the application and considered the proposed
parking as demonstrated by revised parking plan as acceptable subject to recommended
conditions in terms of highway safety. In addition the parking plan indicates cycle storage
and an electric vehicle charging point would be provided.

Drainage and Flooding

7.25

Policy INF2 of the JCS seeks to prevent development that would be at risk of flooding.
Proposals must not increase the level of risk to the safety of occupiers of a site, the local
community or the wider environment either on the site or elsewhere. This advice is
echoed in Policy ENV2 of the emerging TBP.

98



7.26 The site is located within Flood Zone 1, an area identified by the Environment Agency at a

low risk of flooding from rivers and the sea. The Water Management Statement (WMS)
submitted in support of the application confirms surface water from the site would be
discharge to soakaway. Objections have been raised with regard to the proximity of a
public surface water and foul sewer on the site. Building in proximity to, over or diverting
of public sewers are subject to the consent of the Severn Trent Ltd and would be
controlled through the building regulation process.

Conclusions

8.0 On the basis the Council cannot at this time demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable

8.1

housing land, the Council's policies for the supply of housing are out of date. In accordance
with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, the presumption in favour of sustainable development
indicates that permission should be granted unless policies for protecting areas of assets of
particular importance in the NPPF provide a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed, or any adverse impacts of permitting the development would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a
whole.

There are no NPPF policies for the protection of areas or assets of particular importance
which apply in this case and therefore, it is clear that the decision-making process for the
determination of this application is to assess whether the adverse impacts of granting
planning permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.

Benefits

8.2 The development would make a limited contribution towards the supply of housing to help

meet the objectively assessed need for housing in the Borough in an area where the
principle of housing development is considered acceptable.

8.3 In addition, the development would give rise to small social and economic benefits as a

result of its construction and future use.

Harms

8.4 The introduction of a terraced dwelling at this site would be distinct from the prevailing

character of the immediate surrounding area. However, there are short rows of terraced
properties along Swallow Crescent and in the wider area. In this context, it is considered
that, the impact on the character and appearance of the area would be limited, the harm
does weigh against the proposal in the overall planning balance.

Neutral

8.5 Having regard to the policies of the development plan and the responses of technical

consultees, subject to the imposition of suitable planning conditions, there are no objections
in respect of design, highway safety and drainage.

Conclusion

9.0 Taking into account all of the above, it is considered that any adverse impacts of permitting

this application would not significantly or demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when
assessed against the policies in the framework taken as a whole. Overall it is
recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out
below.

99



CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

- Proposed Location Plan, Block Plan, Proposed Elevations, Proposed Floor Plan, Roof Plan
Drawing Number 003 received 17" August 2021.
- Parking Plan Drawing received 10t May 2021

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

3. Building operations shall not be commenced until samples of the brick proposed to be used
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and all
materials used shall conform to the sample(s) so approved.

Reason: It is important to protect and maintain the character and appearance of the area in
which this development is located.

4 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the car/vehicle parking area
(and turning space) shown on the approved plans Drawing Number PW003 received 11th May
2021 has been completed and thereafter the area shall be kept free of obstruction and available
for the parking of vehicles associated with the development.

Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development.

5. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicle crossover has been
installed at the carriageway edge and constructed across the footway fronting the site. The
dropped kerb shall extend from the parking spaces of 15a to the east edge of the parking kerb
space of number 15 before connecting to existing kerb heights.

Reason: In the interests of safety and accessibility.

6. The cycle storage facilities shall be implemented in accordance with the submitted plans and
retained for thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.

7. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the vehicular access

shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the submitted plans with the area of
driveway within at least 5.0m of the carriageway edge of the public road surfaced in bound
material with drainage preventing run-off onto the highway/footway, and shall be maintained
thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety.

100



8. The vehicular access hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the existing
roadside frontage boundaries have been set back to provide visibility splays in
accordance with the submitted plans PWO003 received 11th May 2021 and thereafter
maintained so as to provide clear visibility at a height of 600mm above the adjacent
footway level.

Reason: To ensure motorists have clear and unrestricted views of approaching
pedestrians when pulling out onto the adopted highway, in the interest of highway
safety

9. The electric vehicle charging point shall be implemented in accordance with the submitted
plans and shall comply with BS EN 62196 Mode 3 or 4 charging and BS EN 61851 and Manual
for Gloucestershire Streets. The electric vehicle charging points shall be retained for the lifetime
of the development unless they need to be replaced in which case the replacement charging
point shall be of the same specification or a higher specification in terms of charging
performance.

Reason: To promote sustainable travel and healthy communities.

INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website
relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the
applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

2. Severn Trent Water advise that there is a public 100mm surface water sewer and a public
100mm foul sewer located within this site. Public sewers have statutory protection and may
not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without consent. You are advised to contact
Severn Trent Water to discuss the proposals. Severn Trent will seek to assist in obtaining a
solution which protects both the public sewer and the building. Please note, when submitting
a Building Regulations application, the building control officer is required to check the sewer
maps supplied by Severn Trent and advise them of any proposals located over or within 3
meters of a public sewer. Under the provisions of Building Regulations 2000 Part H4,
Severn Trent can direct the building control officer to refuse building regulations approval.
Please note that there is no guarantee that you will be able to build over or close to any
Severn Trent sewers, and where diversion is required there is no guarantee that you will be
able to undertake those works on a self-lay basis. Every approach to build near to or divert
our assets has to be assessed on its own merit and the decision of what is or isn’t
permissible is taken based on the risk to the asset and the wider catchment it serves. It is
vital therefore that you contact us at the earliest opportunity to discuss the implications of
our assets crossing your site. Failure to do so could significantly affect the costs and
timescales of your project if it transpires diversionary works need to be carried out by
Severn Trent.

101



bin and cycle bin and cycle
store store

.

scale 1:100

charging point
bound hardstanding bound hardstanding
ikt
: i ] | LR
. ! b Yy
- | parking for 15 | | parking for 15a | = | g
tg_ | | | | E | 8
3 ]y 2.4m |L0-9ml/ 24m | 24m  [0.9n]
= £ i |
3 //‘. | | |parking for 15a™
e ! | | | [N
e | | | >
,’/ L____J I____.l___7(___l \\
7 Y
v Y
= dropped kerb .
e parking on road for no.
| | 15. with dropped kerb it
i 1 should always be
| parkingiort= I| available. There is plenty
| | of roadside parking
1 available in this street

102



£00Mel i?ﬂ_

#eg

00Z'L GSZLL 00LL 05T) gpog

DS 509C BOOH ONNOHD MIN 0IS0L08d

051 WS1'ON
H0074 1S4I4 3S0d0dd

(L]

0S5°L GL'ON
HOOT4 LSHI4 350d0Hd

f 1 A

0G5} WSL'ON
HOO0Td ONNOYO 03S0d0Hd

0S5'L GL'ON
HOO074 AONNOYO 03S0d0OHd

N Id MOOTE ONY NOLLYDIO w..-."m | T ~ 7
SNOWYASTE \Wooua3a _
I

gt beg wooda3as

ONY SNV 03504084
wooda3g

i SOTD HLIHOMSNNI
IS0 MOTTVMS 51 'ON OL
DNLISIXT 40 IS O DTHIVLLY
ISNOH 039 £ MIN QIS0O0HEL

WL e

[T
| ey anpvaHnmpc rorEagal
R0 BE D) 40 TICRGE TEHTO

39NNO1 ﬁ

\\..

TIvH

Woouassg ONINIQ f NIHDLIH

BATHROOM

WOOHHLYSE

il

wooda3ag i —L-—

__".:_".—| lﬂ )

00E:L N¥Id ¥D2078 A350404d -

e P ]
el T SMEIEE e
e wm

R gy i
- S een o
f"’!.‘l-l“ I’ — y

WL VIO 00LL 910N 0L WELON o04°L GIEN
— HOO0T LS 0330u0k: BOOS L5HL OFZ00U HOOTS DNNOUE TIS0STE HOE ONRGHE QSCH0Md

L B S ' —  E— —7
ey 0®
y e e woouas
abodl ol I.ll_.hll.l woouaI nooUIER Ranoush
. s
1 | m

g1 | €

FONNOT

_ S . ™M

s B =

i onians i

gy - 1N4/11800/02 NOILYOITddY e | =
HLIM SNV1d 380d0ydd L, . e
= REAS e NOILVASIS I NOYY U3S0dONd

e = ] e
- BN — |
_ . 1 1 v

— — ) Y — = O w3EEny ___ \\\ il |
0SZ4'L N¥1d NOILYOO | P | e L

1N4/11800/02 NOILYDITddVY HLIM SNOILVAI13 d3S0d0dd o

00L:L HLNOS
NOILYAZTE LNOHd d350d04d

00L:L 1Sv3
NOILYA3T3 3415 d350d0dd

Q0L L HLHON

00L: L LS3M
NOILYATTE dv3d a35S0d0dd

NOILYAZTE 301S 03504044

|1
L ONULSIE tF —
o Fa E|DD
- “ oIV o S == —

e =g E - et e i
I | E SO0 }: BEHER o ; 2
T 4+ | L% ONNORGD : it it )
h I H i HEHBOH i + i R iitbea H
] | : i iy et e R i i

19714 OINNCEN0D

PFEEENT - ~ e
( 1l . DMULEIN 1ty
| 0 oLSo P
i i
P BTt / T
| il oNLEneE Ui
A SHLLENE MWW L 511 A
= HOLVIN DL B SR
ErEptr ONILEID
MO L S
CHHDOTALN
DURIINOT

SNOILVYATT3 d3ISOd0dd




Agenda Item 5¢g

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: Brock Farm
Church Lane
Staverton
Application No: 21/00494/FUL
Ward: Badgeworth
Parish: Staverton
Proposal: Change of use of land for the temporary siting of mobile home

(farm worker accommodation)

Report by: Dawn Lloyd

Appendices: Site Location Plan

Proposed Block Plan
Elevations, Floor Plan and Section

Recommendation: @ Permit

1.0

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

The application has been called in for Committee determination by Councillor Vines,
the Local Ward Member, to assess the suitability of this agricultural proposal given its
Green Belt location.

SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

The application site relates to land associated with Brock Farm and is located immediately
opposite the existing farm complex off Church Lane in Staverton. The site is approximately
400 metres west of the main village and currently forms part of a larger agricultural field, with
intermitted hedging along the eastern site boundary. There is an existing field gate along the
northern boundary which provides access from Church Lane.

The application site is located in the open countryside, outside of any recognised settlement
boundary. Itis also located in the Gloucestershire Green Belt. The site is not subject to any
other landscape designations and is sited in Flood Zone 1.

The current application seeks planning permission for the change of use of agricultural land
for the temporary siting of a mobile home to be used as farm worker accommodation. The
proposed mobile home would be sited in the south-east corner of the application site,
measuring approximately 19.9 metres in length and 6.7 metres in width. It would have gently
sloped dual pitched roof, with an eaves and ridge of height of circa. 3 and 4 metres
respectively. The overall height of living accommodation when measured internally would be
3.05 metres. As such, the proposed mobile home is deemed to comply with the definition of
a “twin unit caravan” in accordance with the Caravan Sites Act 1968.

104



1.4.

2.0

21.

2.2.

3.0

3.1.

The existing field access would be utilised to provide access to the proposed mobile home and
the remainder of the site would be hard surfaced to facilitate the parking and manoeuvring of
vehicles. There would be landscaping to the periphery of the site and the proposed boundary
treatments are post and wire stock fencing.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Proposal Decision Decision
Number Date
95/00830/FUL | Erection of a replacement cattle shed PER 20.12.1995
95/00824/FUL | Demolition of dwelling and erection of PER 24.08.1995

replacement dwelling
14/00195/AGR | Erection of steel framed mono pitch building NONINT 03.04.2014
19/01047/OUT | Erection of a Farm Worker's Dwelling REF 17.04.2020
21/00021/AGR | Construction of agricultural track. NONINT 19.02.2021
21/00211/FUL | Erection of a calf rearing building. Pending Consideration

As set out above, an application seeking outline planning permission for the erection of a
permanent agricultural worker’'s dwelling was refused in April 2020 (ref: 19/01047/0OUT). At
the time of determination, it was considered that the applicant had failed to demonstrate an
essential need for a dwelling in this location contrary to JCS Policies SP2 and SD10 and TBLP
Policy ARG2. It was also considered that the proposal represented inappropriate development
in the Green Belt and would cause unwarranted harm to the landscape contrary to JCS
Policies SD5 and SD6 respectively.

Since this refusal of planning permission, an application has been submitted for the erection
of a calf rearing building (ref: 21/00211/FUL). This application is still pending consideration
but it is understood from the supporting information that the applicant wishes to establish a
calf rearing enterprise to supplement the existing beef business. It is commented that the
existing buildings, which form part of the farm complex, are already in active use and/or not fit
for the purposes of calf rearing. The application therefore seeks permission for a livestock
polytunnel to be retained permanently in the same location. The provision of this building
(polytunnel) is being relied upon as the justification and ‘essential need’ for the proposed
mobile home. An update will therefore be provided to Members at planning committee on the
status of this application.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

105



3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

5.0

5.1.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - December 2017
Policies: SP2, SD4, SD5, SD6, SD9, SD10, SD14, INF1

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (TBLP) - March 2006
Policies: AGR2

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 — Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policies: AGR3, NAT1, TRAC9

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property)

CONSULTATIONS

Staverton Parish Council: No response received at time of writing.

Environmental Health Officer: No objection in terms of any noise / nuisance issues.
County Highways Officer: No objection.

Flood Risk & Drainage Officer: No comments or objection to make to this application.

Agricultural Consultant: Objection. There is not considered to be an essential need for a
dwelling at Brock Farm.

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at:
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21 days.
No letters of representation have been received.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved

policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number
of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

106


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

7.0

71.

7.2.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination in
Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main Modifications
letter was received on 16th June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his current view as
to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those policies in the Pre-
submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main modifications may now
attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those policies which do in the
Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight depending on the extent of
the changes required.

The TBP remains an emerging plan and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies
will still be subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight
that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS

Principle of development

Criterion 4 (ii) of JCS Policy SD10 ‘Residential Development’ sets out that on sites that re
neither allocated or previously developed land, housing development will only be permitted
where:

(i) It is for affordable housing on a rural exception site in accordance with JCS Policy
SD12;
(i) It is infilling within the existing built up areas of the City of Gloucester, the Principal

Urban Area of Cheltenham or Tewkebsury Borough’s towns and villages except
where otherwise restricted by policies within District Plans;

(iii) It is brought forward through Community Right to Build Orders; or

(iv) There are other specific exceptions / circumstances defined in District or
Neighbourhood Plans.

In this case, criterion (iv) is applicable as Saved TBLP Policy AGR2 ‘Agricultural Dwellings’
supports proposals for the siting of a mobile home or caravan provided it is justified and for a
temporary period only. Policy AGR2 goes on to state that the siting of accommodation should
where possible enhance the environment in its location, scale and design. Where practicable,
any temporary or permanent accommodation should be sited close to existing buildings. It
must be proven that that there is no suitable alternative accommodation elsewhere and that
there is a need for 24-hour attendance or supervision. The scale of the proposed dwelling
should be related to the size and function of the farm unit. Within the reasoned justification for
this policy, it is stated that when a farmer is unsure of the business prospects for a proposed
enterprise, or where a temporary venture is proposed, the Council may consider granting a
temporary permission for a mobile home or caravan, normally for a two or three year period.

107



7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

A similar policy approach is set out in emerging TBP Policy AGR3 ‘Agricultural and other rural
workers dwelling’ which states:

Proposals for new dwellings in relation to new agricultural, horticultural, forestry or
other rural businesses may be granted a time-limited permission for temporary
accommodation, such as a mobile home or caravan, to allow time to establish that the
business is financially viable and there is a genuine functional need for a permanent
dwelling. Temporary accommodation will normally be permitted for a period of three
years, subject to meeting relevant criteria set out above. Proposals in relation to new
business must provide clear evidence in the form of a business plan that shows a firm
intention and ability to develop the enterprise on a sound financial basis.

At a national level, paragraph 84 of the NPPF supports the development and diversification of
agricultural and other land-based rural businesses. Paragraph 80 of the NPPF states that
planning policies and decisions should avoid the development of isolated homes in the
countryside unless, inter alia, there is an essential need for a rural worker, including those
taking majority control of a farm business, to live permanently at or near their place of work in
the countryside.

As such, the principle of development cannot be established without first assessing if there is
an essential need for a temporary agricultural worker's dwelling in this location. This is
examined in detail in later sections of this report.

Green Belt

It is also the case that the application site is located in the Green Belt. JCS Policy SD5 makes
clear that development in such location will be restricted to those limited types of development
which are deemed appropriate by the NPPF, unless very special circumstances can be
demonstrated.

Unlike the previous refused application which sought the erection of a permanent dwelling, the
current proposal concerns the change of use of agricultural land to allow for the temporary
siting of a mobile home. Paragraph 150 of the NPPF allows for certain other forms of
development in the Green Belt — including material changes in the use of land - provided they
preserve its openness and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it.

In this case, it is considered that the proposed mobile home would result in the introduction of
a large, albeit temporary, structure on to an otherwise undeveloped site. It would be sited
separate to the existing farm complex, on the opposite side of Church Lane, and would have
a sizeable volume (circa. 435 cubic metres) which would undermine the spatial openness of
the Green Belt. In addition, the associated change of use of the land from agriculture to
residential, with large areas of hardstanding, the parking of vehicles and associated domestic
paraphernalia would cause harm to the visual openness of the Green Belt. It would also fail
to safeguard the countryside from encroachment thus conflicting with one of the five purposes
of including land within the Green Belt. For these reasons, the proposal is deemed to
represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt which is, by definition, harmful and
should not be approved except in very special circumstances.

The NPPF makes clear that when considering any planning applications, the local planning
authority must ensure substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special
circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt, by virtue of its
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by
other considerations.

108



7.10.

7.11.

7.12.

7.13.

7.14.

The applicant has not made a case for very special circumstances in support of the proposal,
however, if it can be demonstrated that there is an essential need for a temporary agricultural
worker’s dwelling in this location then it is accepted that this may constitute the ‘very special
circumstances’ needed to justify the development in the Green Belt. This has been considered
in detail below.

Agricultural Need

The NPPF replaced Planning Policy Statement 7 (PPS7) which provided guidance on the need
for new agricultural dwellings. Nevertheless, the tests set out in Annex A to PPS7 are still
generally accepted as an appropriate way to assess need. In respect of agricultural dwellings,
Annex A advised that the following evidence would normally be expected to justify the need
for such a dwelling:

e Clear evidence of a firm intention and ability to develop the enterprise concerned.
e Functional need.

o Clear evidence that the proposed enterprise has been planned on a sound financial
basis.

e The functional need could not be fulfilled by another dwelling on the unit, or any other
existing accommodation in the area which is suitable and available for occupation by
the workers concerned.

e Other normal planning requirements, e.g. on siting and access, are satisfied.

The application has been accompanied by a supporting Planning Statement which provides a
detailed account of the existing agricultural business and the applicant’s intentions to extend
the enterprise. The statement sets out that Brock Farm is a mixed beef and arable farm which
extends to 138 hectares of owned farmland plus 106 hectares of long-term rented farmland; a
total 255 hectares (630 acres). The core business relies on buying in young (store) cattle
(aged 18 — 20 months) and rearing on-site for typically 7 - 9 months before being sold on to
slaughter. There are approximately 450 beef cattle housed at any one time, with the existing
buildings at Brock Farm accommodating 250 beef cattle from November to April each year.
The farm also grows approximately 220 acres of arable crops (wheat, barley, rye, grass and
maize).

At present, there are two full-time and one part-time farm labourers, including the applicant
and his grandson. The supporting Planning Statement explains that the applicant’s grandson
will take over the running of the business once the applicant retires and, in moving towards
this change, the farm business seeks to diversify into calf rearing to provide additional income
and make better use of resources. This fits with the existing beef rearing model and while
some calves may be sold there is also an opportunity to rear them on. This is the justification
for the proposed polytunnel (ref: 21/00211/FUL).

Brock Farm comprises a set of farm buildings only; there is no dwelling on-site. The applicant
resides at Woodfold Farm, approximately 3 miles from Brock Farm, which is the only house
associated with the agricultural holding. The applicant does own a pair of semi-detached
houses in Staverton (1 & 2 Church Lane) but these are approximately 700 metres from the
buildings at Brock Farm and currently let out on Assured Shorthold tenancies.

109



7.15.

7.16.

717.

7.18.

7.19.

7.20.

7.21.

Establishment and Viability

The Council’s Agricultural Consultant is satisfied that this is a sustainable farming business
that can support at least a full-time worker and is likely to remain as such for the foreseeable
future. The application for the erection of a calf rearing building (ref: 21/00211/FUL)
demonstrates there is a clear intention held by the applicant to develop this new enterprise
alongside the existing farm business.

Functional Need

With regard to the existing beef rearing enterprise, the Council’'s Agricultural Consultant points
out that generally during the farming year livestock husbandry would be largely routine and
would generally be carried out during the working day, with checks as appropriate. There may
be times when urgent action needs to be taken; however, it is currently mature cattle that are
being managed as opposed to calving cows. The Agricultural Consultant is therefore of the
opinion that the housed cattle could continue to be managed remotely with checks first and
last thing. The vast majority of health issues would be picked up during the day and through
such checks, with minimal risk to welfare.

The new calf rearing enterprise would result in approximately 60 calves on site under 3 months
old at any one time. The Agricultural Consultant has advised that calves under 3 months of
age would require vigilance with regular inspections and potential treatment of health issues
synonymous with young calves, such as pneumonia and calf scour. Once they reach 12
weeks the calves would be weaned and hardier. It is commented that with the number of
calves proposed it would be prudent for there to be a stock person within easy access. Thus,
there is considered to be a functional need.

Security and rural crime is always an issue for farms and the Agricultural Consultant
recognises that this is a factor when considering functional need. However, it is advised that
each farm should be considered on its merits and there are always steps that can be taken to
make a yard, buildings and equipment more secure. Therefore security would not be sufficient
reason in its own right to warrant a functional need for somebody to be based within easy
access of the buildings.

Full-time Labour

The supporting Planning Statement sets out there is a requirement for approximately 3.4 full-
time equivalent (FTE) workers when taking account of current stock numbers and applying the
industry standard figures (The Agricultural Budgeting and Costing Book 88" Ed.). The
proposed calf rearing enterprise would give rise to additional work and increased labour
requirement of 4.06 FTE workers when using the same calculations as above.

The Council’s Agricultural Consultant is satisfied that the beef enterprise warrants at least the
equivalent of a full-time worker.

Other Dwellings

As set out in paragraph 7.11 above, where a functional need has been identified, it is
necessary to investigate the availability of existing dwellings and to ensure that “the functional
need could not be fulfiled by an existing dwelling on the unit, or any other existing
accommodation in the area which is suitable and available for occupation by the workers
concerned”.

110



7.22.

7.23.

7.24.

7.25.

7.26.

7.27.

7.28.

In this case the Council’s Agricultural Consultant considers no weight can be attached to the
potential availability of the farmhouse at Woodfold Farm. This is owned by the applicant — the
current farmer — and he should be able to retire there if he wishes to do so.

Significant weight however should be given to the ownership of the two dwellings in Staverton.
The tenancy types have not been disclosed but the Agricultural Consultant contends that it is
likely one of the cottages would be on an Assured Shorthold Tenancy and therefore considered
potentially available.

Furthermore, the Agricultural Consultant has explained that while there is a functional need, it
is not considered necessary with a calf rearing unit for somebody to be within sight and sound.
However, it might be considered important for a qualified worker to be within easy access of
the calves. The cottages (1 & 2 Church Lane) are situated approximately 700 metres from the
buildings at Brock Farm. This distance can be walked in five minutes and the site could
obviously be reached faster if travelling by vehicle i.e. quad bike. The Agricultural Consultant
considers that if an issue was identified in the evening, resulting in the need for a night time
visit to administer medication or night-time check for example, then the cottages are within
reasonable distance.

Other Material Circumstances

Within the supporting documentation accompanying the application, it is advised that the
personal circumstances of the applicant’'s grandson should be taken into account when
determining this application. The Agricultural Consultant has been made aware of the health-
related conditions pertaining to the applicant’s grandson and has given this due consideration
as far as reasonably practicable. It is acknowledged that regardless of whether there is a
functional need or not, the ability to manage the farm from one of the cottages in Staverton
may not be an option for the applicant’s grandson.

Notwithstanding the above, the Agricultural Consultant has advised that there is not
considered to be an essential need for a dwelling at Brock Farm.

Landscape Impact

The application site is not subject to any landscape designation but is located within open
countryside. JCS Policy SD6 requires development to protect landscape character for its own
intrinsic beauty and for its benefit to economic, environmental and social well-being. Proposals
are required to have regard to the local distinctiveness and historic character of the different
landscapes in the JCS area. Proposals are also required to demonstrate how the development
will protect or enhance landscape character and avoid detrimental effects on types, patterns
and features which make a significant contribution to the character, history and setting of a
settlement or area.

The proposed mobile home would appear visually prominent when viewed from Church Lane
given the open nature of the surrounding land and the lack of any screening vegetation. The
impact would be mitigated to a degree given the presence of existing farm complex on the
opposite side of the road although it would still represent an encroachment into the surrounding
landscape.

111



7.29.

7.30.

7.31.

7.32.

7.33.

7.34.

7.35.

The supporting Planning Statement has sought to explain the reason behind the siting of the
proposed mobile home, commenting that this location is deemed preferable as it would be
close to, but not within, the existing farmyard thus avoiding obvious health and safety issues.
The existing farm buildings and associated yard / working area are also tightly constrained by
field boundaries and it is acknowledged that there would be no room to accommodate the
proposed mobile home within this area without potentially compromising the efficient working
of the farm itself. As such, it is likely that the proposed mobile home would result in
encroachment into the surrounding countryside wherever located, potentially with the added
necessity for a new access track. At least in its proposed siting, the mobile home makes use
of the existing field gateway and has been positioned close to field boundaries. It is also sited
as close to existing buildings as practically possible, only separated by Church Lane, and
would be read against this backdrop in mid to long range views.

Nevertheless, on the basis that an essential need for a dwelling in this location has not been
established, it is concluded that the proposed mobile home would result in unwarranted
encroachment that would harm the landscape character and visual attractiveness of the area
contrary to JCS Policy SD6.

Residential amenity

JCS Policies SD4 and SD14 require development to enhance comfort, convenience and
enjoyment through assessment of the opportunities for light, privacy and external space.
Development should have no detrimental impact on the amenity of existing or new residents
or occupants.

Given the remote location of the application site and, taking account of the fact that future
occupants would be closely associated with the agricultural activities taking place on the main
farm complex, the proposal is not considered to give rise to any residential amenity issues.

Access and highway safety

JCS Policy INF1 sets out that planning permission shall only be granted where the impact of
the development is not considered to be severe. It further states that safe and efficient access
to the highway network should be provided for all transport means.

Access to the proposed mobile home would be provided through an existing field gateway
onto Church Lane. There would be adequate space within the application site to safely
accommodate the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles. The County Highways Authority has
raised no objection to the proposal and it is not considered that the proposed development
would have a detrimental impact on the safe and efficient operation of the highway network.

Flood Risk and Drainage
The site is located within Flood Zone 1 (low risk) as defined by the Environment Agency's
most up-to-date flood risk maps. The development is therefore unlikely to be at risk of

flooding or cause significant risk of flooding to third party property. It is noted that the
precise drainage arrangements would be subject to building regulation approval.

112



8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

For the reasons set out above, there is not considered to be an essential need for a temporary
agricultural worker dwelling in this location. While it is accepted there is a functional need
based on the new farm business model, there is alternative accommodation within close
proximity to Brock Farm which must be afforded significant weight in establishing whether
there is an essential need. Thus, in this case, the provision of alternative accommodation
within easy reach of Brock Farm means there is no essential need and the principle of
development has not therefore been established.

The proposal is also deemed to constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt which
is, by definition, harmful and should be afforded substantial weight against the proposal in the
determination of the application. There would also be harm to openness and failure to
safeguard the countryside from encroachment thus conflicting with one of the five purposes of
the Green Belt designation. Other harms have been identified in respect of landscape impact
and the unwarranted visual intrusion into open countryside.

There is no advanced case for very special circumstances to outweigh the harm to the Green
Belt and other harms resulting from the proposal. Therefore, the proposal is deemed contrary
to the development plan and is recommended for refusal for the reasons as follows:

REASONS:

1.

The proposal does not represent infilling within the existing built up area of a town or village,
does not meet any of the other criteria within Policy SD10 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham
and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 (2017), and there are no other specific
exceptions/circumstances defined in district or neighbourhood plans which indicate that
permission should be granted. The proposed development therefore conflicts with policies
SP2 and SD10 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-
2031 (2017) in that the proposed development does not meet the strategy for the distribution
of new development in Tewkesbury Borough and the application site is not an appropriate
location for new residential development.

The proposed development conflicts with Policy AGR2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Local
Plan to 2011 - March 2006, Policy ARG3 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan Pre-Submission
Version (October 2019) and Paragraph 80 of the NPPF in that the applicant has failed to
demonstrate that there is an essential need for a temporary farm worker’s dwelling at this
location given the close proximity of alternative accommodation within the applicant’s control.

The proposed development conflicts with Policy SD5 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 (2017) and Section 13 of the NPPF (Protecting
Green Belt land) in that it represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt that would
compromise its open character, appearance and function.

The proposed development conflicts with Policy SD6 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 (2017) and Section 15 of the NPPF (Conserving
and enhancing the natural environment) in that it would result in an unwarranted intrusion
into the landscape that would be harmful to the rural character and appearance of the
surrounding area.

113



INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF, the Local Planning Authority has worked
with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner in order to seek solutions to overcome
the planning objections and the conflict with Development Plan Policy by seeking to negotiate
with the applicant to address identified issues of concern and providing on the council's
website details of consultation responses and representations received. However, negotiations
have failed to achieve sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the area.

9.0 UPDATE

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

The application was considered by the planning committee on 17th August 2021.
Members were advised that, since the Committee report had been published,
additional information had come to light which had resulted in a change to the Officer
recommendation. This was set out in the Additional Representations Sheet, attached
at Appendix 1, and related to the assessment as to whether there was an essential
need for the proposed accommodation. Contrary to the agricultural need assessment
detailed at Pages No. 243-246 of the Committee report, the applicant had asserted that
the alternative accommodation within their control was not readily available as both
properties were on protected tenancies. The Council’s Agricultural Consultant had
requested additional information be provided to assess the security of tenure and the
applicant was in the process of gathering that but had not been able to provide the
relevant documentation in advance of the current meeting. It was also relevant that
the essential need for the temporary farm worker accommodation was heavily reliant
on a proposed calf building that was subject to a separate planning application
(reference: 21/00211/FUL). For those reasons, the Officer recommendation had been
amended to defer the application to allow further information to be provided and for
the application concerning the proposed calf building to have been determined.
Members voted to defer the application as per Officer’s recommendation.

Application 21/00211/FUL for a calf rearing building was permitted on 27t September
2021.

Additional information was submitted with regard to the need for someone to be on
site for calf rearing business and that the need can be met by existing cottages owned
in association with the agricultural business.

Six public representations in support of the proposal were received.

The additional information indicates that 1 and 2 Church Cottages are not on modern
Assured Shorthold Tenancies which allow landlords to serve a notice to gain
possession. There are extremely limited grounds for possession and therefore neither
property is available. In addition, the Agent has considered housing available in
Staverton and maintains that there are none available within easy accessibility of the
farm. Furthermore, the Applicant has put forward personal circumstances for living
within easy access of farm.

The calf rearing building has now been permitted and it is now accepted that some
alternative accommodation within easy reach of the buildings would be required to
enable the calf enterprise to develop. Furthermore, the availability of 1 and 2 Church
Cottages in the future is not certain, and there appears to be no easily accessible
accommodation in the village. Having considered this new information, together with
the applicant’s personal circumstances, the Council’s Agricultural consultant
considers, on balance, the essential need for a temporary dwelling has been

114



9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.1

established.
Green Belt

The site lies within the Green Belt and this material consideration was considered
within the officer’s report. Para 150 of the NPPF allows for material changes of use of
land provided they preserve openness and do not conflict with the purposes of
including land within it. The proposal was found to conflict with Green Belt policy in
this regard and therefore considered inappropriate development.

As set out at paragraphs 7.6 to 7.10 above, the proposal constitutes inappropriate
development in the Green Belt. Officers now conclude that on the basis of the
additional information provided that an essential need for an agricultural worker’s
mobile home in this location has been demonstrated. These are factors which are
capable of constituting very special circumstances.

Landscape

As set out at paragraphs, 7.27 to 7.30 above, it is considered that the proposed mobile
home would result in encroachment into the surrounding countryside. This previously
constituted a reason for refusal. However, it was acknowledged that in its proposed
siting, the mobile home would make use of the existing field gateway and would be
positioned close to field boundaries. Furthermore, it would also be sited as close to
existing buildings as practically possible, only separated by Church Lane, and would
be read against this backdrop in mid to long range views.

However, the essential need for an agricultural worker’s mobile home has now been
demonstrated and this need is considered to outweigh the landscape harm in this
instance.

Green Belt balancing exercise / Conclusion

The proposed development is inappropriate development in the Green Belt.
Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt, and should not
be approved except in very special circumstances. However, in this instance, it is
considered that there is an essential need for temporary accommodation to support
the calf rearing agricultural business and that there is no available accommodation
within easily assess to the agricultural unit. This therefore constitutes very special
circumstances which clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness and any other harm arising from the proposal.

Therefore, it is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the
following conditions:

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved documents:

- Site location Plan received 15 Apr 2021
- Proposed Block Plan received 28 Apr 2021

115



- Proposed Elevations received 15 Apr 2021

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this
permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved plans.

Within 5 years of occupation of the mobile home as agricultural workers
accommodation, the mobile home shall be removed from the site and the site restored
to agricultural land.

Reason: In order to safeguard the openness of the green belt.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no fences/gates/walls/ garages/buildings/extensions/dormer
windows shall be erected other than those expressly authorised by this permission.

Reason: In order to safeguard the openness of the green belt.

The occupation of the mobile home shall be limited to a person solely or mainly
employed, or last employed, in the locality in agriculture as defined by Section 336 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, or in forestry, or a dependant of such a
person residing with him or her, or a widow or widower of such a person.

Reason: The site is not in an area intended for general development. Permission is
granted solely because the mobile home is required to house a person or persons
employed, or last employed in agriculture or forestry.

INFORMATIVE

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has
sought to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering
pre-application advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to
the council's website relevant information received during the consideration of the
application thus enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was
proceeding.

116



Z _ _ ‘faning
(vv 1e) 0SZL:L 2208 aaueupiQ Jo uoissiwiad soud ay) Inoyum payqiyosd si 1ed ul Jo ajoym ui uononpoiday

e (Z£5650001 Jaquinu souaol|) LZoZ Wb aseqelep pue yybukdos umoin @
LZ0Z 'Z L 4dy uo paonpoid

ey y0sg

SILNYLITIANSNOD Al¥W3doud

dde pue) syl ue|d sUS wie4 »o0.1g o ADNACD)



Z (v 18) 005:1 3|89 ‘famng asueupiQ Jo voissiuuad Joud ayl Inoypm pauqyord s ped uj Jo
ajoym uj uonanpoiday “(ZES6S0001 Jaquinu aduadll) LZOZ By aseqelep pue Jybukdod umos) @
[ woL | *LZ0Z '£Z Jdy uo paanpaxd

118

ealy Buipuelg pieH

ue|d »00|g Uol}epowLLIOddY
Aelodwsa] - wie4 yoo.g

dde pue) aylL



|_—8.; muuﬁu r

9049

0186V

119

uoligAsid BqeQ judsy

SERPEBSCTE SSAE = FrIS e




Agenda Item 5h

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: Land Adjacent To The Bungalow

Down Hatherley Lane
Down Hatherley

Application No: 20/01179/FUL

Ward: Severn Vale South

Parish: Down Hatherley

Proposal: Erection of two single storey dwellings
Report by: Victoria Stone

Appendices: Existing and Proposed Location Plan

Site Plan as Proposed

Floor Plans and Elevations as Proposed

Inner Elevations and Garage Elevations as Proposed
Landscaping Plan and Materials Schedule

Recommendation: Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 This application relates to a parcel of land associated with a property known as ‘The
Bungalow’, which is located in a set-back position off Down Hatherley Lane (see
attached Location Plan). The Bungalow is accessed via a private driveway from Down
Hatherley Lane although there is a secondary gated access off Ash Lane.

1.2 The site is generally level, covers approximately 0.21 hectares (excluding Ash Lane) and
laid to grass. The eastern boundary is formed by post and fail fencing, the southern
boundary is formed by post and wire fencing. The northern boundary is currently open.

1.3 The site is not subject to any formal landscape designation but is located in an area of
safeguarded land.

1.4  This application is submitted in full and seeks permission for the construction of a pair of
semi-detached bungalows. Vehicular access to the development would be via the existing
access off Ash Lane. Each property would benefit from at least two off-road parking
spaces. In addition, one of the proposed dwellings would have an integral garage, while
the other would benefit from a detached garage.

1.5 Permission in principle (PIP) was granted in May 2020 on the southern part of the site for
the erection of a single dwelling, planning reference 20/00233/PIP. In doing so, the PIP
established that the site subject to that application was suitable in principle for the
erection of a single dwelling.

120



1.6

2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

Since the application was first submitted, the proposal has been subject to revisions to
address concerns raised by officers which include a reduction in the site area and a
subsequent reduction in the number of dwellings proposed from five to two. The revised
site area is now the same as the site for the approved Permission in Principle; the
proposed development under this application would not extend beyond the site already
approved for housing development, albeit for one dwelling. A new notification and
consultation period has been carried out.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Proposal Decision Decision Date

Number

20/00233/PIP Erection of 1 No. PERMIT 28.05.2020
infill dwelling.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG) and National Design Guide (NDG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

Policy SP2 (Distribution of New Development)

— Policy SD3 (Sustainable Design and Construction)
— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD5 (Green Belt)

— Policy SD6 (Landscape)

— Policy SD9 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity)

— Policy SD10 (Residential Development)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality)

— Policy INF1 (Transport Network)

— Policy INF2 (Flood Risk Management)

121



3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
— Policy RES4 (New Housing at other Rural Settlements)

— Policy RES5 (New Housing Development)

— Policy DES1 (Housing Space Standards)

— Policy ENV2 (Flood Risk and Water Management)

— Policy TRAC9 (Parking Provision)

Neighbourhood Plan

Down Hatherley, Norton and Twigworth Neighbourhood Development Plan — 2011-2031
Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Down Hatherley Parish Council — The Parish Council are opposed to this application,
as they were for the original PIP application for one dwelling and the original proposal for
five dwellings. Although the numbers have been reduced to two, the arguments against
the approval are as valid as ever. The Parish Council have also highlighted that since the
previous comments were drafted, there has been a Resident’s Petition against any further
development on Ash Lane. The reasons for opposing the development are summarised
below:

- No evidence to justify the additional dwellings.
- Over-development of the plot and Ash Lane.
- Any development on this site would not accord with the NDP.

- Drainage/sewerage infrastructure unable to cope with additional demand — adding more
dwellings would add greater burden to an already broken system.

- Plot sits within an area designated under the JCS as Safeguarded Land — development
cannot be approved without the specific support of a JCS Review.

- Development does not meet the criteria for ‘very special circumstances’.
- Proposal would not represent infill development as the plot lies behind the linear street in

a residential garden forming part of the open space which helps to promote the semi-rural
nature of the local environment.

122


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.0

5.1

- The proposal would fail to maintain the rural character of the settlement.

- Parish Council does not support the concept of sub-dividing a planning unit.

- Cramming in unnecessary development to the detriment of the local environment.
County Highway Authority - No objection subject to conditions.

Severn Trent - No objections subject to a condition requiring details of the drainage plans
for the disposal of foul and surface water flows.

Flood Risk and Management Officer - No objection.
Ecological Advisor - No objection.

Urban Design Officer — The revised proposal has addressed most of the concerns
raised with the original proposal.

Environmental Health Officer (Air Quality) - No adverse comments with regard to air
quality.

Environmental Health Officer (Noise/Nuisance) — No objection or adverse comments
to make in relation to noise.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The receipt of amended plans has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for
a period of 14 days. Ten representations objecting to the revised proposal have been
received. The comments are summarised below:

- Exacerbate existing flooding issues along Ash Lane.

- Inadequate drainage/flood management.

- Foul sewerage infrastructure not fit for purpose — this is exacerbated by the piecemeal
approach to planning and development on Ash Lane.

- Land suffers from surface water flooding.

- Too close to the pumping station access.

- Area should remain safeguarded land — it should not be built on.
- Development would not be infill.

- Development would be contrary to the NDP.

- Proposal would not protect the Green Belt.

- Development would fail to maintain the rural character of the settlement.

123


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

5.2

- Adverse impact upon neighbouring amenity.
- Insufficient parking spaces on site which will cause overflow parking along Ash Lane.

- Increased traffic movement along Ash Lane will compromise highway safety and the
surrounding highway network.

- Access should be directly onto Down Hatherley Lane or the A38 in accordance with the
JCS.

- Semi-detached dwellings not in keeping with the house types on Ash Lane (detached).

- Denser housing would not respect settlement pattern along Ash Lane.

- Impact upon ecology.

- Increase noise levels.

- Impact upon nature, ecology, and flow of water.

- Poor air quality — site smells.

- No legal access to use Ash Lane.

- Lead to further development on land surrounding the site.

- Ash Lane residents presented a petition with 165 signatures to the Council in June 2021
which raised concerns with overdevelopment on the Lane and the pressure that this was
putting on the infrastructure including the high risk of flooding.

- Severn Trent require access to the pumping station — development would prevent this.

- Sewer pipe running under the proposed development — concerned building works will
damage the pipe.

In addition, the original application was publicised through the posting of a site notice for a
period of 21 days. Thirty-four representations of objection and two general comments
were received.

The objections are summarised below:

- No further development is needed along Ash Lane.

- Development would exacerbate existing drainage/flooding issues experienced locally —
there is a very significant problem with drainage and sewage on Ash Lane.

- Proposed drainage scheme not acceptable — use of soakaways not suitable.

- Recent piecemeal development along Ash Lane needs to be seen as having a collective
impact upon existing infrastructure — further piecemeal additions should not be permitted.

- Contrary to planning policy — NPD states no development for Down Hatherley and the
land is safeguarded.

124



- JCS states access to any development need to be directly onto Down Hatherley Lane or
the A38 not Ash Lane.

- Development by default is major due to other permissions along Ash Lane — as such will
avoid the obligation of developer contributions towards social housing and local
infrastructure.

- Increase in additional houses along Ash Lane — if all schemes are permitted this would
result in an increase of over 55%.

- Ash Lane not designed to take the additional traffic generation and offers no safe
passage for pedestrians.

- Insufficient parking spaces proposed.

- Construction vehicles would damage Ash Lane.

- Visibility splays not achievable.

- Development would impact on the tranquillity of the area.
- Loss of habitat for local wildlife.

- The land subiject to the application is not a ‘garden’.

- Layout would be out-of-keeping with the local environment, properties behind the built
line along Ash Lane.

- Development would not be infill.
- Access required for the Severn Trent pumping station.

- Area was once semi-rural and greenbelt — the surrounding area has fundamentally
changed the nature of the location.

- Harmful impact upon residential amenity — loss of privacy.
The general comments are summarised below:

- Some of the information set out by the objectors is not correct — only a small number of
properties were affected by flooding/sewerage overflow.

- Ash Lane has been subject to construction upgrades and is still in excellent condition.
- Severn Trent commented that the pumping station were not saturation of their system.

- Ask for a hedge to be planted on the eastern boundary to prevent any overlooking.

125



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’'s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan and
the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent to
which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections, the
greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF (the
closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS

Principle of development

Joint Core Strategy

In order to further sustainability objectives and in the interests of protecting the
countryside, the housing policies of the JCS set out a development strategy for the
Borough.

The application site has not been allocated for housing in the JCS and therefore the
criterion of Policy SD10 of the JCS applies. This policy advises that housing on sites
which are not allocated for housing in district and neighbourhood plans will be permitted if
it meets certain limited exceptions.

Of relevance is Criterion 4 (ii). This criterion states that development will only be permitted
where it is infilling within the existing built-up areas of the City of Gloucester, the Principal
Urban Area of Cheltenham or Tewkesbury Borough's towns and villages except where
otherwise restricted by policies within district plans. For the purposes of criterion 4¢(ii), the
supporting text defines ‘infill development’ as “the development of an under-developed
plot well related to existing built development.”

126



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

The site is set back from the established building line of the properties which front onto
Ash Lane. However, given the nature of the site, any dwelling would relate reasonably
well to the existing properties along Ash Lane and the cluster of properties along Down
Hatherley Lane, including the host dwelling, The Bungalow. In this respect the proposed
dwellings would not extend beyond land associated with the properties along Down
Hatherley Lane; neither would the dwellings extend beyond the established line of the
gardens of the properties along Ash Lane. As such, it is considered that the development
would be seen within the context of existing built form and would not appear divorced
from the settlement. The proposal is therefore considered to represent infilling in the
context of SD10.

Neighbourhood Development Plan

In response to the Parish Council’'s concerns that the proposal would be contrary to the
Down Hatherley, Norton and Twigworth Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031
(NDP), there are no direct policies that relate to the provision of new housing in the Down
Hatherley Parish. The NDP explains that no new housing growth is planned in Down
Hatherley Parish and therefore no settlement boundaries are defined. It goes on to state
that given the poor sustainability and the Green Belt designation over the majority of the
Parish, it is not necessary for the NDP to replicate the national and Development Plan
policies that preclude new housing development in the area. Similarly, in respect of
landscape protection, whilst Policy E2 lists a number of vistas and landscape features to
be protected, the policy reverts to the strategic policies of the JCS in respect of the
protection of the landscape, ecology and water environment. Consequently, there is not
considered to be any direct policy conflict with the NDP.

Emerging Tewkesbury Borough Plan

In terms of the Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 (“the emerging
TBP”) the application site has not been allocated for housing and Down Hatherley is not
featured within the settlement hierarchy. However, Policy RES4 of the emerging TBP sets
out that to support the vitality of rural communities and the continued availability of
services and facilities in the rural areas, very small-scale residential development will be
acceptable in principle within and adjacent to the built-up area of other rural settlements,
subject to the development complying with a number of criteria. For the reasons set out
above, it is considered that the proposal would relate reasonably well to existing building
and would be proportionate to the size and function of the settlement.

Safeguarded Land

The application site was removed from the designated Green Belt as part of the boundary
review during the adoption of the JCS and now forms part of the wider ‘safeguarded land’.
The new boundaries identified on the Green Belt map have taken into account longer-
term need by identifying safeguarded land which may be required beyond the JCS plan
period to ensure that the Green Belt does not need an early review. Criterion 7 (iv) of
Policy SD5 of the JCS sets out that safeguarded areas are not allocated for development
at the present time and planning permission for the permanent development of
safeguarded land (except for uses that would not be deemed inappropriate within the
Green Belt) will only be granted if a future review of the JCS deems the release of the
land necessary and appropriate and proposes the development.

127



7.8

7.9

710

7.11

712

Given the above policy provision, it is necessary to first establish whether the
development would not be deemed inappropriate within the Green Belt. Policy SD5 of the
JCS sets out that, to ensure the Green Belt continues to serve its key functions, it will be
protected from harmful development. Within its boundaries, development will be restricted
to those limited types of development which are deemed appropriate by the NPPF, unless
it can be demonstrated that very special circumstances exist to outweigh the harm
automatically caused to the Green Belt by virtue of the development being inappropriate
and any other harm actually caused.

The NPPF provides that, as with previous Green Belt policy, inappropriate development
is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very
special circumstances. Paragraph 148 of the NPPF provides that when considering any
planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is
given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will not exist unless the
potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is
clearly outweighed by other considerations.

Paragraph 149 of the NPPF sets out that the construction of new buildings in the Green
Belt is inappropriate other than for a number of exceptions. One such exception (e) listed
is limited infilling in villages.

The NPPF does not provide a definition of either what constitutes a “village” or “limited
infilling”. Likewise, Policy SD5 of the JCS similarly does not provide a definition in this
context therefore a degree of judgement is necessary. In terms of whether Down
Hatherley is a village, previous decisions in the immediate vicinity of the site have
established that the settlement is considered to constitute a village in this context. In
terms of ‘limited infilling’ whilst it is considered that the proposal would represent infilling in
the context of Policy SD10, it does not necessary follow that it represents infilling in a
Green Belt context. Recent case law has established that it is necessary to consider
whether, as a matter of fact on the ground, a site appears to be within a village and
whether or not a site lies outside a village boundary as designated in a development plan
should not be determinative of the point. In this instance, whilst the proposal would be
reasonably well related to existing built development the application site is predominantly
open to the east and part of the south and there is no real sense of enclosure from
existing built development. Moreover, the proposal would not fill in any form of existing
gap. It is therefore considered that the proposal would not represent infilling in a Green
Belt context.

Given the above, as the application site has not been released for development to date

and the proposal would be deemed inappropriate within the Green Belt context the
development would be contrary to criterion 7iv of Policy SD5 of the JCS.

128



713

714

715

However, it is worth considering whether the release of this parcel of land would prejudice
the proper development of the safeguarded area when the land is eventually released.
Criterion 7 (v) of Policy SD5 of the JCS sets out should any land be released in the
safeguarded areas, development proposals would be assessed against the following
criteria:

e Development must be well-integrated and planned as part of any urban extension
of strategic scale, directly and substantially physically linked to the urban area of
Cheltenham or Gloucester.

¢ Development must be well-related to public transport and other existing and
planned infrastructure and where it makes a positive contribution to the setting of
Cheltenham or Gloucester.

e Development must not lead to a piecemeal, isolated or inefficient use of land in
this area.

In this case, given the scale of the proposed development, the proximity of the site to the
existing properties in Ash Lane, and the intervening land to the east, which is in multiple
ownership, it is difficult to see how the proposal would prejudice the purpose of the
safeguarded area.

Five Year Housing Land Supply

As set out in the latest Tewkesbury Borough Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement
published in December 2020, the Council can demonstrate a 4.35 year supply of
deliverable housing sites. On the basis therefore that the Council cannot at this time
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing land, the Council’s policies for the
provision of housing should not be considered up-to-date in accordance with footnote 7 of
the NPPF and in accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF the presumption in favour of
sustainable development (the ‘tilted balance’) applies. The presumption is therefore that
permission should be granted unless policies for protecting assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development or any adverse impacts
of permitting the development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. This will be
assessed below.

Members will be aware of the recent appeal decision at Ashmead Drive in which the
Inspector concluded that the Council can demonstrate a 1.82 year supply. This is
principally because the Inspector did not agree that ‘previous oversupply’, or ‘advanced
delivery’ should be taken into account when calculating the five year supply. Appeal
decisions are not binding precedents and officers are aware that other Inspectors have
taken a different approach to previous advanced delivery/oversupply. Officers’ firm view
remains that, in the context of the plan-led system, it is wrong not to take into account
houses that have already been delivered during the plan period, essentially ahead of
schedule, and which meet the needs being planned for in the area. On that basis, the
Council have come to the view that there are robust grounds for a successful challenge
and proceedings have now been issued in the High Court. Officer’'s advice is therefore
that a 4.35 year supply can be demonstrated at this time.

129



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

Nevertheless, as set out above, as the Council cannot demonstrate a five year supply of
deliverable housing sites, the presumption in favour of sustainable development is
engaged in this case.

Access and Highway Safety

The NPPF sets out that opportunities to maximise sustainable transport solutions will vary
between urban and rural areas, and this should be taken into account in both plan-making
and decision-making. Further, development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds where there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or
the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy TRAC9 of the
emerging TBP state that proposals need to make provision for appropriate parking and
access arrangements.

It is proposed to use an existing field access off Ash Lane to provide vehicular access to
the site. In respect to the internal layout, each dwelling would be provided with sufficient
off-road parking spaces with sufficient space within the application site for turning and
manoeuvring in order to allow vehicles to enter the highway in a forward gear.

Gloucestershire County Council as Local Highway Authority (LHA) have been consulted
and have raised no objections, subject to a number of conditions.

A number of local residents have raised concerns regarding the private nature of Ash
Lane and rights of access. However, this is a civil matter and outside the scope of this
application.

Design and Layout

Section 12 of the NPPF sets out that the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve. It continues by stating that good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities. Planning decisions should, amongst other
things, ensure that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the
area and should be sympathetic to the local character, including the surrounding built
environment. This is echoed in JCS policy SD4 and emerging policy RES5 of the Pre-
submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan (2019) which states new development should
respond positively to, and respect the character of, the site and its surroundings, enhance
local distinctiveness and the grain of the locality.

The site forms part of the land associated with The Bungalow. The application site is
described as garden land and is continuous with the substantial land that surrounds the
property. Whilst the site may not represent the residential curtilage of The Bungalow, it
has a well-kept appearance and has likely been used in incidental to the enjoyment of the
residential property.

The application proposes a pair of semi-detached bungalows of a traditional design. The
properties would demonstrate a simple shape and form. The dwellings would be
constructed out of bricks (Weinerberger Terca Kempley Antique) and tiles (Marley Modern
Interlocking Concrete in Smooth Grey). Ash Lane predominantly consists of bungalows
and the host dwelling is also a bungalow and as such the design approach and the
materials proposed to be used is considered acceptable.

130



7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

The proposed dwellings would be arranged in a linear layout sited to the south-east of the
host dwelling, The Bungalow. The properties would benefit from a front garden area and a
private rear garden. It is noted that the properties along Ash Lane are detached however
the introduction of a pair of semi-detached properties would not be harmful given there
are other semi-detached properties within Down Hatherley and as it would help add some
variety of house types in the locality. There is no dispute that the site is set back from the
established building line of the properties that front onto Ash Lane and is essentially back-
land development. However, as set out previously, the dwellings would relate reasonably
well to the existing properties along Ash Lane and the cluster of properties along Down
Hatherley Lane, including the host dwelling. In this respect the dwellings would not extend
beyond land associated with the properties along Down Hatherley Lane and beyond the
established gardens of the properties along Ash Lane. As such, it is considered that the
development would be seen within the context of existing built form and would not appear
divorced from the settlement.

As mentioned in paragraph 1.6 the proposed dwelling would be located within the same
site area as the extant Permission in Principle (PIP), planning reference 20/00233/PIP. As
such the location and size of the site has been accepted as being suitable for housing
development. Whilst the approved PIP was for one dwelling, no details of how the site
could be developed was required to be submitted as part of the PIP application. Given the
size of the site it's not unreasonable to conceive that a similar sized dwelling could have
come forward under the Technical Consent.

In light of the above, the site is considered capable of accommodating this level of
development without appearing cramped and without detriment to the prevailing
settlement pattern and therefore no objections are raised in respect of the design and
layout. The proposal is considered to accord with JCS Policy SD4 and guidance set out in
the NPPF and NDG in this regard.

Drainage and Flooding

The NPPF states that major developments should incorporate sustainable drainage
systems unless there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate. Policy INF2 of the
JCS seeks to prevent development that would be at risk of flooding. Proposals must avoid
areas at risk of flooding and must not increase the level of risk to the safety of occupiers
of a site and that the risk of flooding should be minimised by providing resilience and
taking into account climate change.

The site is located within Flood Zone 1, an area identified by the Environment Agency at a
low risk of flooding from rivers and the sea.

In terms of the surface water drainage strategy, it is proposed that roof runoff is conveyed
by pipes to a private geo-cellular ‘crate’ soakaway in the back garden of each plot, and
runoff from the driveways will infiltrate at source through a permeable surfacing material
with a granular sub-base storage layer underneath. The Council’s Flood Risk and
Management Officer has considered the proposed drainage strategy and has no
objection.

131



7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

In terms of foul water disposal, it is proposed to discharge to the public main sewer.
Severn Trent Water (STW) have been consulted as the relevant statutory undertaker for
foul sewerage in the area and have raised no objections subject to a condition requiring
the specific foul water drainage details is recommended. A Drainage Plan has been
submitted as part of the application therefore this plan has been forwarded to STW to
establish whether a condition is required given the detail on the plan. An update will be
provided at Planning Committee.

There is a Sewage Pumping Station (SPS) close to the site. STW have confirmed that
any new development must not restrict access to the SPS. An informative note is
recommended to set out this out. Further to this, STW have advised that due to the close
proximity of the proposed new development to the SPS the occupants may experience
noise and/or smell pollution. In order to minimise the disruption to any future occupants,
STW recommend that all habitable buildings are constructed 15 metres from the curtilage
of the SPS compound. The proposed dwellings would be located more than 15 metres of
the curtilage of the SPS compound therefore the development could be accommodated
on site without unacceptable harm to the future occupier's amenity, in terms of noise and
smell. The Council’s Environmental Health Officers have raised no objection in this
respect.

The comments from the Parish Council and local residents regarding the
drainage/flooding issues experienced along Ash Lane are noted. As mentioned above the
Council’s Flood Risk and Management Officer has assessed the proposed drainage
strategy and has raised no objections to the proposal and therefore on that basis it is
considered the proposed development should not cause or exacerbate flooding on the
site or elsewhere.

Residential Amenity

In respect of the impact of the development upon residential amenity, paragraph 127 of
the NPPF specifies that planning decisions should ensure development creates places
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. This advice is reflected in
JCS policies SD4 and SD14 which require development to enhance comfort, convenience
and enjoyment through assessment of the opportunities for light, privacy and external
space. Development should have no detrimental impact on the amenity of existing or new
residents or occupants.

Based on the linear position, the satisfactory separation distance between the proposed
dwellings and neighbouring properties and as the proposed dwellings would be single
storey the new dwellings would be able to be accommodated on the site without
unacceptable harm to neighbouring amenity.

On this basis, it is considered the proposed development would result in acceptable levels

of amenity being maintained for the existing residents surrounding the site and secured
for future residents of the development.

132



7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

8.0

8.1

Ecology

The NPPF sets out, inter alia, that when determining planning applications, Local
Planning Authorities should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity by encouraging
opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and around developments, especially where
this can secure measurable gains for biodiversity. Policy SD9 of the JCS seeks to protect
and, wherever possible enhance biodiversity, including wildlife and habitats. Policy NAT1
of the emerging NAT1 states that development proposals that will conserve, and where
possible restore and/or enhance, biodiversity will be permitted.

An Ecological Assessment (EA) accompanies the application. This identified that the
habitats present on site are of low to negligible ecological value in terms of their
vegetation and have limited potential to support nesting birds, foraging bats, invertebrates
and small mammals. The potential for the site to support amphibians was considered low;
however, Great Crested Newts are known to be present in the local area and
precautionary methods of working are advised. The EA has been reviewed by the
Council’s Ecology Advisor who has raised no objections subject to conditions.

Other Matters

Comments have been received from local residents about the piecemeal approach of
development in area and about the ‘phased’ future development of land immediately to
the north and east of the current application site. Should any future application come
forward for the development of this parcel of land consideration will be given as to
whether affordable housing would be required, in accordance with policy SD12 of the
JCS. This policy sets out that where a development site has been divided into parts, oris
being delivered in phases, the site will be considered as a whole for the purpose of
determining the appropriate affordable housing requirement, though this will be
dependent on the circumstances of the application.

Concerns have also been raised that the appropriate notices have not been served on all
interested parties. Officers contacted the agent for the application who confirmed notices
were served to those listed on the Ownership Certificate.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

Section 38(6) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that, if regard is to be
had to the development plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the
development plan unless other material circumstances indicate otherwise. Section 70(2)
of the Act provides that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of
the development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material
considerations.

133



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

On the basis the Council cannot at this time demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable
housing land, the Council's policies for the supply of housing are out of date. In
accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, the presumption in favour of sustainable
development indicates that permission should be granted unless policies for protecting
areas of assets of particular importance in the NPPF provide a clear reason for refusing
the development proposed, or any adverse impacts of permitting the development would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies
in the NPPF as a whole. As the application site is not within the designated Green Belt
there are no clear reasons for refusal arising from NPPF policies for the protection of
areas or assets of particular importance in this case and therefore, it is clear that the
decision-making process for the determination of this application is to assess whether the
adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits.

Benefits

The development would contribute towards the supply of housing to help meet the
objectively assessed need for housing in the Borough, albeit in a limited way given the
scale of the proposed development. However, given the fact that the Council cannot
currently demonstrate a deliverable supply of housing, this weighs in favour of the
application.

In terms of economic benefits, as with any new residential development, the construction
of new dwellings brings benefits during the construction phase and following construction
through additional spending power in the local economy as a result of the increased
population. Again, this would be a modest benefit.

Harms

The application site is located within a safeguarded area and therefore as the land has
not been released for future development and because the development would be
deemed inappropriate within the Green Belt the proposal would conflict with Policy SD5 of
the JCS. However, the site is no longer within a Green Belt and therefore the application
of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance do not
provide a clear reason for refusing the development proposed.

Neutral
The design and layout of the proposed development is considered acceptable.

The proposal, should subject to satisfactory details and the imposition of appropriate
planning conditions, be acceptable in regard to highway safety and ecological impact.

There should be no undue impact in terms of residential amenity.

Overall conclusion

The harm by virtue of the conflict with Policy SD5 of the JCS is not underestimated.
However, when taking account of all the material considerations, which includes the fact
that this site benefits from a Permission in Principle for one dwelling, it is considered that

the identified harm would not significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits in the
overall planning balance.

134



8.10 Itis therefore considered that the proposed development would constitute sustainable
development in the context of the NPPF as a whole and the recommendation is to Permit
the application, subject to the conditions below.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Unless where required or allowed by other conditions attached to this permission/consent,
the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the information
provided on the application form and the following plans/drawings/documents:

- 22031/12B - Existing and Proposed Location Plans

- 22031/13 — Site Plan as Proposed

- 22031/14 — Floor Plans & Elevations as Proposed

- 22031/15 — Inner Elevations and Garage Elevations as Proposed
- 22031/16 — Drainage Plan as Proposed

- 22031/17 — Landscaping Plan & Materials Schedule as Proposed
- 22031/18 — Construction Management Plan

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

3. The construction of the external surfaces of the dwellings hereby approved shall be carried
out in accordance with the materials as detailed in the Building Material Schedule as shown
on the approved drawing no.22031/017(Landscaping Plan & Materials Schedule as
Proposed).

Reason: To ensure the new materials are in keeping with the surroundings and represent
quality design.

4, All soft and hard landscaping of the site shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved landscape scheme as demonstrated on the approved drawing no.22031/17
(Landscaping Plan & Materials Schedule as Proposed).

The hard landscaping of the site shall be completed before any dwelling hereby permitted is
first occupied.

All planting and seeding/turfing shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
in the first planting and seeding/turfing season following the occupation of any dwelling
hereby permitted.

The planting shall be maintained in accordance with the schedule of maintenance. Any
trees or plants which, within a period of five years from the completion of the planting, die,
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species.

135



10.

Reason: To protect the amenities of properties and ensure the proposed development does
not have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area.

Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted the boundary treatment shall
be erected/planted, including those to be installed between the plots, in accordance with the
details shown on the approved drawing no.22031/17 (Landscaping Plan & Materials
Schedule as Proposed)

Reason: To protect the amenities of properties and ensure the proposed development does
not have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area.

Each new dwelling shall be constructed at the floor slab levels as shown on the approved
drawing no. 22031/17 (Landscaping Plan & Materials Schedule as Proposed).

Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring properties and to ensure the development
does not have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the cycle storage facilities
have been made available for use in accordance with the approved drawing no.22031/13
(Site Plan as Proposed) and those facilities shall be maintained for the duration of the
development.

Reason: To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is
provided, to promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for
sustainable transport modes have been taken up.

The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the proposed dwellings
have been fitted with an electric vehicle charging point. The charging points shall comply
with BS EN 62196 Mode 3 or 4 charging and BS EN 61851. The electric vehicle charging
points shall be retained for the lifetime of the development unless they need to be replaced
in which case the replacement charging point shall be of the same specification or a higher
specification in terms of charging performance.

Reason: To promote sustainable travel and healthy communities.

The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular parking and turning
facilities including driveways have been laid out and constructed in accordance with the
submitted plan drawing no.22031/13, with the area of driveway surfaced in bound material,
and shall be drained so that no surface water flows onto the adjoining highway and shall be
maintained thereafter.

Reason: To reduce potential highway safety impact by ensuring that a safe and suitable
access is laid out and constructed that minimises the conflict between pedestrians, cyclists
and vehicles.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the vehicular access shall be
laid out and constructed in accordance with the submitted plan drawing no. 22031/13 with
the area within at least 5.0m of the carriageway edge of the private road surfaced in bound
material and shall be maintained thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, and to ensure vehicles are able to
pull clear of the adopted highway and avoid becoming an obstruction to oncoming traffic.

136



11.

12.

13.

14.

The development, including construction and any works of demolition, shall only take place
whilst running concurrently in accordance with the submitted Construction Method
Statement (CTP Tech Note Section 5.) and Construction Management Plan, drawing
number 22031/18, and shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into
development both during the demolition and construction phase of the development.

Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied details of any external lighting to
be provided in association with the development shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include times when the external
lighting will not be switched on. It is recommended that the lighting plan is devised following
consultation with the project ecologists. Only external lighting in accordance with approved
details shall be provided on the application site.

Reason: To ensure the proposed development does not have an adverse effect on
biodiversity within the site and the wider area.

Prior to the commencement of works a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan
(LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall expand on the recommendations set out in the Ecological Appraisal, prepared
by All Ecology (November 2020) for site wide enhancements for these species and should
include enhancement for bats. The LEMP should also detail timescales for implementation,
persons responsible for managing and monitoring the site.

The works shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved LEMP and
timetable.

Reason: To ensure the development contributes to the conservation and enhancement of
biodiversity within the site and the wider area.

Prior to the commencement of works, a Great Crested Newt Mitigation Strategy (GCN
Mitigation Strategy) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall expand on the recommendations set out in the Ecological
Appraisal, prepared by All Ecology (November 2020). It shall also include supervision of
ground clearance works such as soil trips and suggest timings for vegetation removal and
other works.

The works shall therefore be carried out in accordance with the approved GCN Mitigation
Strategy and timetable.

Reason: To ensure the development contributes to the conservation and enhancement of
biodiversity within the site and the wider area.

INFORMATIVES:

1.

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought
to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s
website relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus
enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

137



Severn Trent Water advise that there may be a public sewer located within the application
site. Although our statutory sewer records do not show any public sewers within the area
you have specified, there may be sewers that have been recently adopted under the
Transfer of Sewer Regulations 2011. Public sewers have statutory protection and may not
be built close to, directly over or be diverted without consent and contact must be made with
Severn Trent Water to discuss the proposals. Severn Trent will seek to assist in obtaining a
solution which protects both the public sewer and the building. Please note that there is no
guarantee that you will be able to build over or close to any Severn Trent sewers, and where
diversion is required, there is no guarantee that you will be able to undertake those works
on a self-lay basis. Every approach to build near to or divert our assets has to be assessed
on its own merit and the decision of what is or isn’t permissible is taken based on the risk to
the asset and the wider catchment it serves. It is vital therefore that you contact us at the
earliest opportunity to discuss the implications of our assets crossing your site. Failure to do
so could significantly affect the costs and timescales of your project if it transpires
diversionary works need to be carried out by Severn Trent.

There is a pumping station close to the site and any new development must not restrict our
access to the Sewage Pumping Station (SPS). Severn Trent Water require free access to
the SPS at all times in order to complete any programmed routine maintenance tasks and
also for any emergency reactive visits in case of failure.

138



0SZL:L 81895 Nvd NOILYD0T ONILSIX3

0SZL:1 ®1E25 Nvd NOILYD201 0350d04d




Ao sEaINHEyRadan|3 Tmmm

yn'e; 1 1 l o
BODLZG THEZLO 1

dNEZ 2579

0|9

WeYUBIeYD

188415 BGUIOIYIUIM

sMEN 11098 ) £
€L/1£022  "oN ‘Bma
0Z0Z Aine sjeg
£v @ 0054 aleag
pasodad sy

deid aug

0|9

fapayeH umog
BUET ySYy HO puE
wawdopanag |enjuapisay pasodoly

sBuiljjlemg panoiddy Ajsnoinaid

|

apisAuung

I

Kejawoy

mojebung ay

—

B

—

E e1s buidwng

waig

adien

RS
2

D

poomsde]

]

T

HOIOYsy

N/

uojysaey)

140

oplep

ayL

Il

u slojquiey ay |

Yoo AL

§
|

D

z)1eg



U2Iod OAID)

PLILEOZZ  ON Bmg
2oz Ainr =eg
£ B 0024 'Ly B o0Lk sesg

pesodoig sy
SUDRRANT B SUBld 100|4

=19
Anpsgey umaq

suE] ysy YopuE]

Juado@aR] (ERUBpEEY pasodoly

Fr T

5 sanepw o

]
"
+mocuan
_ = IO TN00
]
! v
RO
2 mocuIe
"
I " oy
im
chooumEs =

USHEAS(T IS

141



Proposed Residential Development
Land off Ash Lane

Down Hatherley

As Proposed

1100 @ A1, 1:200 @ A3
July 2021

Scale
Dwg.No. 22031115

Date

01242 521608

3 Tabbit Maws.
Winchcombe Street
Cheltenham

Glos.

GLEZ INF

1
.

admingiclivepsicharchiects.co.uk

www. clivepatcharchibects_co.uk

South Elevation (Inner)

142

Marth Elevation (Inner)

Morth Elevation




uuuuuu

P o L.

R e o s

i eria 303
s e SR
e L s e o e =

el uspond o D TPH 13 (A58 S I UIAAN (U8 BERA I W HUAA

L] e i e e s 4 o

Leneozz  oNBwg - s S 1 e i 2 141 e

+z0z Aine =eg rans P v o P 154 8 e

A e b 5 B [ ) s Wy st .

o B 00sL 'Ly B oSzt sjesg AR Dby oL ST ¢ MRS P PO o L

e T —

S bt e et 8 AR B P

YT s A A e S - as R [PE—

pasodoug sy -~y o s et i e et o, T Ty

BNPIYES SIELAIEN P UEld Buidesspue) e
e o torma
o et

o9 o e s

fapeiger e ) o i) 20 e pattopema e e oy G

o P e o P e e B e P 401 s S

BUET YSY 4o pue by oy
wawdoAeq [EIUSPRSY Pesadoid e e

L ——] L S ST e ns

e e s P LA F UG ¥ ) P I et P S v mnes e v o s bt ot v e

oy 7 P e oo 4 M 1o LG S o 4 ST T
I gl € A 0 pdanie £ gt dpes e sl Bt 0 Sy

f 1 | i oy} [ el i et e
Bugpans g uaiem iy

=
_ - j

sBuljjlemq panoiddy Ajsnol

oz
-
o

..........

nald
ey
e . ol

-
e

T
AT WA

T .‘.).M”.,\ \
G L AT
.A.Hw.,.\.k,f S Y

i -
E 1uiod uoipe|en
ey asnjey e Em

mojebung ay|

D e)s Buidwng

-

waig
adie)

i

apIsAuung

Asjowoy

Iﬁ[l—ﬁ_l

\
Bl

1 |

yoioysy

uojseleyn

— ]



Agenda Item 5i

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: Croft Amber
Green Street
Brockworth
Application No: 21/00601/FUL
Ward: Brockworth West
Parish: Brockworth
Proposal: Change of use from granny annex to separate dwelling.
Report by: Gemma Smith
Appendices: K2105-01 Rev B Location Plan

K2105-01 Rev B Block Plan
K2105-04 Existing Survey
K2105-04 Proposed Plans

Recommendation: @ Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL
Application Site

11 The Application Site relates to Croft Amber, a detached rendered dwelling located along
Green Street in Brockworth. The granny annex was granted permission to convert from a
garage/workshop under planning reference 09/01238/FUL used incidental to the main
house.

1.2 The site is located w

ithin the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). A PROW (Brockworth
49) runs in the distance to the east of the site.

The Proposal

1.3 Planning permission is sought for the change of use from a granny annex to a separate
dwelling. There would be no building or external alterations required.

144



2.0

3.0

31

3.2

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application
Number

Proposal

Decision

Decision Date

09/01238/FUL

Alterations to
existing
garage/workshop to
form ancillary
granny annexe.

PER

09.03.2010

11/00085/FUL

Single storey
extension.

PER

18.03.2011

14/00548/FUL

Erection of single
storey extension to
rear of dwelling;
erection of stable
block and tack
room.

PER

24.07.2014

15/00017/MINOR

Erection of single
storey extension to
rear of dwelling;
erection of stable
block and tack
room.

GRANT

03.03.2015

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this

application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice

Guidance (NPPG)

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11

December 2017

— Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

— Policy SD7 (The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty)

— Policy SD10 (Residential Development)

— Policy SD14 (Health and Environment Quality)

— Policy INF1 (Transport Network)

145




3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

44

5.0

5.1

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

— Policy HOU9 (Conversion/ Subdivision)

— Policy TPT1 (Access for Development)

— Policy LND4 (Landscape — countryside protection

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
— Policy RES3 (New Housing Outside Settlement Boundaries)

— Policy RES8 (Subdivision of Existing Dwellings)

— Policy DES1 (Housing Space Standards)

— Policy LAN1 (Special Landscape Area)

— Policy TRAC9 (Parking Provision)

Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Brockworth Parish Council — Objection on the grounds that this sets a precedent for
development additional properties in the AONB.

Gloucestershire County Council (Highways Officer) — No objection.
Sustainable Drainage Engineer — No objection.

Building Control — No comments received.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days. There has been no responses received.

146


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination
in Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those
policies in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan
and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent
to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections,
the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF
(the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS

The application is brought before the Planning Committee for determination as an
objection has been received by Brockworth Parish Council.

Principle of Development

Criterion 3 of Policy SD10 of the JCS sets out that on sites that are no allocated, housing
development and conversions to dwelling will be permitted on previously developed land

in the existing built-up areas of Gloucester City, the Principle Urban Areas of Cheltenham
and Tewkesbury town, rural service centres and service villages except where otherwise

restricted by policies within District plans.

The site in question is located within Brockworth, which is not identified within the

settlement hierarchy within table SP2c of the JCS however it does offer a wider range of
services and facilities and is deemed sustainable location for new development.

147



7.4

7.5

7.6

Saved Policy HOU9 of the TBLP states that the conversion or subdivision of existing
dwellings to provide an increased number of residentials units will be permitted subject to
a list of criterion as follows:

i) The residential amenity of nearby properties is not adversely affected;

ii) Appropriate standards of amenity, privacy, parking, pedestrian, cycle and vehicle
access are provided;

iii) the character and appearance of the existing building is respected, and adequate
provision made for sound insulation between proposed dwellings and existing and
adjacent property;

iv) the character and appearance of listed buildings are not adversely affected, alterations
to such buildings are kept to the minimum necessary, with architectural features
retained;

v) any extensions are of high design standard, and do not involve the loss of the
architectural integrity of an individual building or group of buildings or their settings;

vi) the proposal does not result in an unacceptable level of vehicular movements which
would adversely affect the safety or the satisfactory operation of the highway network.

The existing annex already has established amenities in relation to privacy, garden
amenity, parking and existing vehicular access. There would be no external alterations to
the existing building. The Highways Authority have no objection to the scheme and
conclude that the number of vehicular trips would be on par with the existing use. As
such, it is considered that the proposal would accord with Saved Policy HOU9 of the
TBLP.

Point 2 within emerging Policy RES3 of the PSTBLP concerns the subdivision of an
existing dwelling into two or more self-contained residential units acceptable subject to
Policy RES8. Emerging Policy RESS8 states:

1. Adequate internal accommodation is provided in accordance with the Council’s
adopted housing space standards (Policy DES1)

2. Where proposals relate to Listed Buildings, the character, appearance and significance
of the designated heritage asset is sustained or enhanced in accordance with policy
HERZ2

3. Where proposals are located outside defined settlement boundaries, the proposal does
not involve significant new extensions. Minor extensions may be permitted only where
essential in order for the new units to achieve the required internal space standards

4. Any proposed extensions or alterations are acceptable in accordance with Policy
RES10

5. The number of new residential units resulting from the proposal is commensurate with
the sustainability of the site location having regard to its relationship with the Plan’s
settlement hierarchy and its accessibility to shops, services and facilities, unless
outweighed by wider sustainability objectives.

148



7.7

7.8

7.9

710

711

712

713

714

715

The conversion would result in a two-bedroom dwelling measuring 132sq.m across two
floors. This would meet the minimum NDSS of 79 sq.m. The proposal would not result in
any external alterations.

With regards to sustainability, the Supporting Statement identifies that the single-
detached dwelling at Green Lea, just south west on the opposite side of the road, granted
permission under planning reference 16/00036/FUL was established in a ‘reasonably
accessible location for limited development’ due to the range of services including shops,
a school, a public house and access wider transport network with close bus connections
along the A46.

Five Year Supply

Notwithstanding the above it is currently the case that the Council cannot currently
demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites. Consequently, in accordance
with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, the tilted balance applies and the presumption is that
permission should be granted unless there are significant and demonstrable harms which
outweigh the benefits.

Impact on the Landscape and Cotswolds AONB

The application site is located within the Cotswolds AONB. The Framework at paragraph
170 states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by protecting and enhancing valued landscapes and, at paragraph 172,
it emphasises that great weight should be given to conserving landscape and scenic
beauty in AONBs. Additionally, it points out that AONBs have the highest status of
protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty.

Policy SD6 considers development will consider the landscape and visual sensitivity of
the area in which they are located or affect.

This is reflected in Policy SD7 of the JCS which sets out that developments are required
to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance the landscape, scenic beauty, cultural
heritage and other special qualities in an AONB.

Policy CE1 of the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan provides further guidance setting
out, amongst other things, that proposals that are likely to impact on, or create change in,
the landscape of the Cotswolds AONB should have regard to the scenic quality of the
location and its setting and ensure that views — including those into and out of the AONB -
and visual amenity are conserved and enhanced.

This proposal relates solely to the subdivision to of the existing planning unit to establish
the existing annex as a separate dwellinghouse and does not involve any external
alterations to the property.

The existing boundary treatments include a wooden fence between the host dwelling and
the rear of the annex with an access gate and a gated entrance to the driveway at the
front of the property. The only alteration will be to block up the existing gate between the
host dwelling and the annex so that the only access to the site is via the main driveway.

149



7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

Given the extent of development that can be achieved under The Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, any recommendation
for approval would seek to control future extensions, alterations, works to the roof and
fencing/enclosures which can be achieved through the removal of permitted development
rights for development falling within the provisions of Classes A to E of Part 1 of Schedule
2 together with Class A Schedule 2 Part 2 of the General Permitted Development Order
(GPDO). This would ensure that any future development would respect the rural
landscape character and avoid overdevelopment of the site.

Overall, subject to conditions, the proposal would not give rise to a detrimental impact on
the character of the Cotswolds AONB in this part.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

Policy SD4 part iii) Amenity and Space, considers new development should enhance
comfort, convenience and enjoyment through assessment of opportunities for light,
privacy and external space. Policy SD14 considers new development to cause no
unacceptable harm to neighbouring occupants and result in no unacceptable levels of air,
noise, water, light, soil pollution or odour.

Emerging Policy RES5 of the PSTBLP states that proposals for new housing
development should provide an acceptable level of amenity for future occupiers of the
proposed dwellings and cause no unacceptable harm to the amenity of existing dwellings.

The resultant dwelling would not have any detrimental impact on the amenity of the main
dwelling. The existing annex is set in considerable grounds and as such would have
ample garden amenity to serve future occupants of the resultant dwelling.

Highways and Parking Implications

The NPPF sets out development should only be prevented or refused on highways
grounds where there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety or the residual
cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS considers that
developers provide safe and efficient access to the highway network and permission be
granted only where the impact of the development is considered not to be severe. It
further states that safe and efficient access to the highway network should be provided for
all transport means.

Emerging Policy RES5 of the PSTBP states that proposals for new housing development
should make provision for appropriate parking and access arrangements and not result in
the loss or reduction of existing parking areas to the detriment of highway safety.
Emerging Policy TRAC9 of the PSTBP states that proposals need to make provision for
appropriate parking and access arrangements.

The annex already benefits from existing parking and two vehicle access points. It is

proposed to block up the existing gate between the host dwelling and the annex so that
the only access to the site is via the existing driveway and gate to the north of the annex.

150



7.25

7.26

The Local Highways Authority have been consulted on the proposal and has no objection.
It is noted that the site already generates a number of vehicular trips and benefits from
existing access. As such the conversion would not result in a detrimental impact on
highway safety.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The development is CIL liable because it creates a new dwelling. The relevant CIL forms
have been submitted.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1 In light of the above observations, it is considered that the proposal would be acceptable
on policy grounds and as such should be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this consent.
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:
-K2105-01 Rev B entitled ‘Location Plan’ received 2.08.2021
-K2105-01 Rev B entitled ‘Block Plan’ received 2.08.2021
-K2105-04 entitled ‘Existing Survey’ 21.07.2021
-K2105-04 entitled ‘Proposed Plans’ 21.07.2021
Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted

Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any other subsequent equivalent order, no
development within the following classes of development shall be carried out to the new
dwellings hereby approved, without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority:

a. Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A - enlargement, improvement or other alterations

b. Schedule 2 Class AA - enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of additional
storeys

c. Schedule 2, Part 20, Class AD - new dwellinghouses on detached buildings in use
as dwellinghouses.

d. Schedule 2, Part 1, Class B - addition or alteration to the roof

e. Schedule 2, Part 1, Class C - any other alteration to the roof

f. Schedule 2, Part 1, Class E - garden buildings, enclosures, pool, oil or gas storage
container.

g. Schedule 2, Part 2, Class A - gate, wall, fence or other means of enclosure

h. Schedule 2, Part 2, Class B - means of access

151



Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to safeguard the visual amenity of the
immediate area and Cotswolds AONB.

INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought
to determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s
website relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus
enabling the applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

152



REC LRI Su_!a@-um—nv__m uodas ‘sYs uo USISUSWIP I X342 0151 JOIDRIU0O SyL
“fuo sucsuswip paunbiy asn ‘Bupmelp syl 31vS LON oA
“WUSSUOD JNO INCYLIW PSONPOIda) JO PaIdod 3G 10U 15T PU Yd 8 ' avX 4O 1uBufdos syl 5 Buimesp sul

g LO-SOIDH U Bumelp ue 4 uopeso] B L

uorspa

[vv] oSzl @ eds 1Z0Z LOSO  @1ep anss| 1514

147 €10

311YSI31592N0 O 42NS3IN0 O
YUOMY20Ig 139015 USDID JBqUIY YoID
SS3UPPY 3US

Bul amp 21esedas 03 xauuy AUueID wWolyasn jo abueyd 122(0id

N©IS3d 8 u <
FANLOILIHOYUY VM

ANOLSATIN dd

vd1 Aq paisanbai se pappe 21035 UI8| |70z L0 0% g
Papuawie au| pay| |ZoZ LO 80 v

uondussap aep uo|siAS

SUOIS|ARI

W ZgS'L ealy a1IS

Jaquuy 1oud

389000

40ZS£000L
ASAING 2ouRUPIO |Z0Z SIYBIJ aseqelep
pue 1ybuAdoo umoid (2) sausruo

Cuidde|n

— — ~ 00ssle

155




1991 Y2) € S 01 532U edS08P | 1€ 1J0dS) ‘SYS UO UCSUSWIP | € 594D 01 § JOIDRIIUCD 3L
“Auo sucisuswip paInb)) 3en ‘Bumelp Syl 37v0S LON od
“JWSSUOD JNO INOYLIM PSONPOoIdas JO padod 34 10U 15T PUR Yd 8 B QWX JO 1ybufdoo s 5 Buimesp syl

uospey

m 0-S0EZM ©u Bumeip

UB d UoNesoT @311

[yv] 0sziL :@eds

1Z0Z LD SO @ep anss| isild

NOIS3a 8
FUNLO3LIHOYY

ANOLSAIN

Bu) amp a1esedas 01 xauuy Auuesn wouy asn jo abueyy ©  wafoid

4

311s121532N0 O 121532N0 O
‘YIIOMY 2018 ‘199015 USAUD JBqUIY YOID

14y €10

SSBUPPY IS

e
pold 8

Jaquuy 14oID

vd1Aq paisanbail se pappe 2103 ulg

lZ0Z L0 0% g

papuawe au| pay

LZ0Z LO 8O v

uondosap

29ep uo|siAS

SUoIS|IARI

2101S UIq X3

pays "xa

||||||||||||||| 00SSIc

Buijismp
o1eledsas
pasodoid

wiool
uspJeb xa

SSa00k Xo

154




1991Y2) € S 01 530U eGP |18 1J0TS) ‘SYS UO UCHSUSWIP || € 49940 O § JOIDRIIUCD 3YL
“Auo sucisuswip paInb)) 3en ‘Bumelp Syl 37v0S LON od
“JWSSUOD JNO INOYLIM PSONPOoIdas JO padod 34 10U 15T PUR Yd 8 B QWX JO 1ybufdoo s 5 Buimesp syl

£0-501D1 ©u Bumeip Aanins Bunispg @11
uospre

[ev] ooLL:@2e3s 1Z0Z L0 SO @1Bp @Nss| 15414 100 4 punoin VYV Uo 1085

14v£10

_ 3114s121522N0 D 121532N0 O |
‘YUOMY20IE 132415 USRUD JBquUIY YoId
SSBUPPY 21IS

™,
{{{{{ @,

\/

Bu| amp ajeiedas 01 xauuy AUUEBID WOoI) 35N Jo abueyd wafoid

Z wooipaq
abunon \
NO©IS3a 8 RIDOSSE o
3¥NLOILIHOUY Y] Buiuued v !
INOLSATY. o |d 8

uonduosap 2Ep uoIsina)

SUOISIARI

BuuIp/uaYIN L wooipaq

155

UINos - Uo 1BAS 3 1U0I




12911424 € BY1 01 532U BdSO6P ||€ 103! ‘3YS UO UCHSUSWIP || € 294D 01 § JOIDRITUCD 3L
“Auo sucisuswip paInb)) 3en ‘Bumelp Syl 37v0S LON od
“JWSSUOD JNO INOYLIM PSONPOoIdas JO padod 34 10U 15T PUR Yd 8 B QWX JO 1ybufdoo s 5 Buimesp syl

%05011 ©Ou Bumelp

sue d pasodoid @1

[ev] ooLL:2e%s

1Z0Z L0 SO @1ep aNSS| 15114

31|YSIANSIN0 D J21SIIN0 O
‘YUOMY20IE 132415 USRUD JBquUIY YoId

14v£10

SSBUPPY AIS

NOIS3a 8
FUNLO3LIHOYY

ANOLSAIN

4

Bu| amp ajeiedas 01 xauuy AUUEBID WOoI) 35N Jo abueyd wafoid

uonduosap

21ep

uosinGS

SUOISIARI

100 4 punoin

Buuip/uaymy

YINos - Uo 1eA® J JU0I4

Z wooipaq

*.“

| wooipaq

VYV U0 1085

156




Agenda Iltem 5]

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: Land Attached To April Cottage
39 Newtown
Toddington
Application No: 21/00347/FUL
Ward: Isbourne
Parish: Toddington
Proposal: Use of land for the stationing of two shepherd huts for holiday let

purposes and provision of associated vehicular parking area.
Report by: Gemma Smith

Appendices: Site Location Plan amended 1.04.2021
21:1930:SP02 Existing Site Plan
21:1930:02 Elevations and Floor Plans of Shepherds Huts
21:1930:03 Internal Floor Plans
21:1930:DR01 Drainage Layout
21:1930:SP01 A Block Plan as Existing
21:1930:SP05 A/1 Proposed Block Plan
21:1930:SP06 A/1 Proposed Site Plan

Recommendation: @ Permit

1.0 Application Site

1.1. The application site relates to land to the rear of the residential property 'April Cottage', 39
Newtown, a detached stone property located amongst a small row of properties on the
northern side of the B4077. The site lies within the linear settlement of New Town,
Toddington and is bounded to the east and west by residential properties. To the south of the
site lies the main B4077 and to the north lies an area of paddock land which falls within the
same ownership that is presently being used for the stabling of the applicants' horses.

1.2. The dwellinghouse is served by a front access and the rear area comprising of stable block,
paddocks and a chicken run is served by an existing private access that runs behind the
properties along this stretch from the B4077.

1.3. A Public Right of Way (Reference ATO20 Toddington Footpath 20) runs perpendicularly
along the access from the B4077 and into the fields, north, beyond.

1.4. The site lies within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

157



2.0 Planning History
Application Proposal Decision Decision
Number Date
04/01658/FUL Erection of private stable building PER 17.01.2005
96/00507/FUL Use of garden for display of activity toys for PER 20.08.1996
viewing/use of members of the public
3.0 RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

31 National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG)

3.2 Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11

Decem

ber 2017
Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)

Policy SD6 (Landscape)

Policy SD7 (The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty)

Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality)

Policy INF1 (Transport Network)

3.3  Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)

Policy LND1 (Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty)

Policy TOR1 (General Tourism Policy)

Policy TORZ2 (Serviced/Self Catering Accommodation)

Policy TOR4 (New Static Caravan/Log Cabin/Chalet Sites)

3.4 Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)

— Poli

— Policy TORZ2 (Serviced/Self-Catering Accommodation)

— Poli

— Poli

cy TOR1 (Tourism Related Development)

cy TORS3 (Caravan and camping sites)

cy LAN1 (Special Landscape Areas)

158




3.6

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

— Policy NAT1 (Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Important Natural Features)

— Policy ENV2 (Flood Risk and Water Management)

— Policy TRAC9 (Parking Provision)

Other relevant policy

— Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)

— Tewkesbury Borough Council Economic Development and Tourism Strategy

— Cotswold AONB Management Plan (2018-2030)

APPLICATION DETAILS

The Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the use of land for the stationing of 2 no. shepherds huts
for holiday let purposes and provision of associated vehicular parking area.

The shepherd’s huts with parking spaces would be sited within an existing gravelled
surface adjacent to paddocks and stables.

The shepherd’s huts would each measure approx. 5.4m in length, 2.4m in width and 2.6m
in height. Sited on wheels, the overall height of each hut would be set at approx. 3.4m.
Internally the space would measure approx. 11.3 sq.m.

The shepherd’s huts would be constructed with facing light grey colour painted horizontal
boarding under black corrugated sheeting with painted timber windows and doors. Each
hut would be on traditional style cast iron wheels finished in black.

The huts would be accessed by the existing track that leads off the B4077 that currently
serves the existing stable block to the west and the neighbouring dwellinghouses.

A landscaping scheme is proposed to blend the proposal within the landscape. This would
comprise of hedgerow planting and trees which can be seen on plan reference 21:1930
P0O6A/1 entitled ‘Part Site Plan as Proposed'.

Utilities would be supplied from April Cottage and foul drainage is proposed to be
connected to an existing drain system.

The application is also supported by a letter addressing Parish Council initial concerns
from Applicant dated 19.04.2021 with the following points:

o Access to the B4077 is an established lane which has been used previously to park
11 no. trailers towed in and out of the access on a regular basis without incidence.

o Home Farm use this lane to access their back fields with large farm machinery
such as tractors and trailers etc.

159



5.0

5.1

Subiject to the removal of the trailers, the lanes daily usage would significantly be
reduced.

The yard and stabling has been granted within the AONB over 15 years ago.
The shepherd huts proposed would blend into the surrounding environment.

Offering accommodation in the rural area would have a positive impact on the rural
area.

The shepherd’s huts would be connected to mains drainage. The drainage outlet
attachment can be disengaged at any time in order to move the huts.

The Applicants have discussed the proposed venture with the neighbouring
properties and have given their full support to the proposal.

CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Toddington Parish Council — Final Response: Objection. The Parish Council reiterate the
previous objection to the initial proposal.

O

O

O

The site is an area of AONB and its use for commercial activity is out of keeping
with the surroundings and intrusive to the landscape.

The landscaping plan submitted does not mitigate this.

Concerned with the precedent for commercial use of the land.

Initial Response: Objection summarised as follows:

O

o}

Access to the site is very poor and not suitable for traffic;
The Shepherd Huts will be sited within AONB;

The council believes the land to be classed as agricultural land and therefore would
require change of use for commercial use;

The Shepherd Huts could not be classed as temporary as they are being
connected to the mains drainage and sewers.

Gloucestershire County Council Highways Officer — No Objection subject to relevant
conditions relating to a condition seeking the provision of 1 no. electric charging point.

Gloucestershire County Council Footpaths/PROW Officer — No comments received.

Tree Officer — No objection subject to conditions with comments relating to a revised
species mix for the hedgerow proposed.

Environmental Health Officer — No objection or adverse comments to make in relation to

noise.

160


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.0

6.1

6.2

Flood Risk & Management Officer — No objection.

Severn Trent Water- No objections as the proposal would have minimal impact on the
public sewerage system. It is noted that there is apparatus in the area of the planned
development and that the developer will need to contact STW New Connections team to
assess diversion requirements.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.There have been thirteen representations received in response. These comprise of
ten in support of the proposal and three objecting to the scheme.

Ten responses have been received raising no objection to the application, making the
following comments:

o Do not anticipate disruptive volumes of traffic on the proposed access running
along adjacent neighbours rear garden in comparison to previous uses at the site.

o Do not consider that the proposal would result in a detrimental impact on the
AONB.

o The proposed shepherds huts would be more pleasing to view than 11 or so large
white trailers.

o The proposed shepherds huts would blend well within the AONB.

o Considers that the proposed shepherds huts would be attractive to view from
PROW.

o The proposal would be more in-keeping with the area than the existing uses of the
land.

o Temporary nature of the structures mean that there would be no detriment to
agricultural land.

o Inresponse to Parish Council, the access from the B4077 is used on a daily basis
by the local neighbouring properties without incidence. The proposed use would be
more positive than the existing towing of large trailers up and down the lane.

o The proposed shepherds huts would be far more sympathetic to the area than the
previous trailers on site, which no one complained about.

o Landscaped area would be an improvement
o Reduction of traffic should the proposal go ahead.

o Toddington is an excellent centre for visitors to enjoy, however there is little holiday
accommodation available.

161


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

o Benefits to the local economy.

o Following the previous year and restrictions, the small proposal attracting visitors
can only be a benefit [to the local economy].

Three objections have been received making the following comments:
o Concerns for the precedent of allowing the siting of two caravans

o Inevitably the proposed tourist use would inflict noise pollution on neighbouring
properties.

o Should the proposal be connected to sewerage system / utilities than the same
depth of scrutiny should be attributed to the proposal as residential applications.

o Contrary to Policies within the Joint Core Strategy.
o No gain to the community.

o Outdoor holiday facilities would be detrimental to the enjoyment of nearby
residents.

o The addition of extra people using the outside area will increase the impact of
noise.

o Concerns with the expansion of the business and the devaluing of nearby
properties.

o Unauthorised previous change of use of the land within the AONB from agricultural
land should not be an appropriate reason to justify another business development
from the site.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides
that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination in
Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those policies
in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan and
the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent to

162



7.4

7.5

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections, the
greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF (the
closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).
The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-
2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).
ANALYSIS
Introduction
The planning proposal is brought before Members of the Planning Committee for
determination as the Parish Council object to the proposal which differs to the
recommendation of approval from the case officer.
The key issues for the determination of this planning proposal would be:

o Principle of development

o Design, Scale and Impact on Visual Amenity

o Impact on AONB

o Impact on Neighbouring Amenity

o Impact on Highways and Access

o Drainage Matters

o Other Matters
Principle of Development
Saved Policy TOR1 of the TBLP is the general tourism policy and specifies that the
Borough will support proposals for tourism related development provided that, where

appropriate it would be acceptable on a number of key criteria:

1. The priority is given to the re-use of existing buildings in accordance with council
policy

2. There is good access including access for walkers, cyclists and those with special
needs

3. The proposal supports the local plan's wider objectives, particularly in relation to
conservation, transport, recreation, economic development, the environment and
nature conservation.

4. The siting, design and scale is in keeping with the landscape and wherever

163



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

possible and practicable seeks to enhance it
5. The proposal aims to interpret the physical and historic heritage of the area

6. A proposal that would attract substantial numbers of visitors should be accessible
by public transport as well as by car;

and subject to there being no unacceptable impact on the safety or satisfactory
operation of the highway network”
The objectives of this policy are echoed within the emerging Policy TOR1 of the PSTBLP.

Saved Policy TOR2 of the TBLP together with emerging Policy TOR2 of the PSTBLP
restricts the development of serviced and self-catering accommodation outside residential
development boundaries, except where the proposal would result in the renovation and
improved use of existing buildings.

The site lies to the east of the defined settlement boundary for Toddington as set out within
the TBLP Proposals Map, however the site remains outside of a residential development
boundary for the purposes of Saved Policy TOR2 of the TBLP. The settlement boundaries
defined within the TBLP Proposals Map were not been carried forward through the
adoption of the JCS.

Emerging Policy TOR3 seeks for proposals for new caravan for tourist accommodation
should be located within or adjacent to defined settlements as identified on the Policies
Map. Within the emerging PSTBLP it is identified that New Town is defined with a
residential settlement boundary. However whilst the host dwelling resides within the new
defined boundary, the application site lies adjacent to the emerging defined residential
boundary.

Paragraph 84 within the NPPF seeks for the promotion of ‘sustainable rural tourism’, saved
Policy TOR1 of the TBLP specifies that proposals for tourism related development will be
supported provided that, where appropriate there is good access including access for
walkers, cyclists and those with special needs.

Emerging Policy TOR1 of the PSTBP similarly specifies that Tewkesbury Borough Council
will support proposals for tourism related development and extensions to existing tourist
development provided that there is good inclusive access for all potential users. In
addition, saved Policy TOR4 of the TBLP specifies that any proposal for new static
caravan, log cabin or chalet sites must be well related to main routes.

Holiday lets are supported in the Tewkesbury Borough Council Economic Development
and Tourism Strategy 2017-2021 The strategy in point €) Encourage investment to
improve the provision of visitor accommodation.

The Cotswold AONB Management Plan is also a material planning consideration which
sets out core values for the protection and future enhancement of the AONB with relevant
emphasis placed on the creation of local distinctiveness. In addition, the plan promotes the
provision of low cost accommodation to improve access and recreation opportunities to the
AONB for all sections of society (Outcome 13).

164



8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

The site is located just outside of the emerging residential development boundary and east
of Toddington. The proposal is a small-scale venture and it is considered that the proposed
tourist accommodation would contribute, albeit in a small way, to the local rural economy
within the service village of Toddington supporting local shops and the local public house

Sited behind existing dwellings the huts would have excellent connectivity to local
footpaths for walking activities. The application site is not considered “isolated” and thus on
balance is acceptable in principle. The development is considered to represent, on
balance, a sustainable form of rural tourism. As such it is considered that the development
accords with the overarching sustainable objectives of the NPPF. Further discussion in
relation to the siting and design, impact on landscape, highway network and environment
setting are set out within the below paragraphs in this report.

There have been reports that the land in question (or in some part of) has been previously
used in association with a commercial business in particular relating to trailers. Additional
information submitted from the Applicant states that there have been previous uses on the
land in question. There is no planning permission associated with the uses of the land in
question, however the principal of the proposal is considered on its own merits.

Design and Scale

Policy SD4 of the JCS sets out requirements for high quality design while Saved Policy
TOR1 of the TBLP and Emerging Policy TOR1 of the PSTBLP seeks for the siting, design
and scale is in keeping with the built, natural and historic environment setting and
wherever possible and practicable seeks to enhance it.

The development is small in scale comprising of the use of land for the stationing of two
shepherds huts and associated parking (one space to serve each). The land in question is
adjacent to existing stables and the land comprises of existing hardstanding. The huts
would be sited on land adjacent to a stable block that was granted permission under
planning reference 04/01658/FUL

The shepherds huts themselves are small in scale and would be set at approx. 3.4m on
wheels. A revised site plan includes a landscaping scheme showing that a new hedgerow
would be planted around the northern and eastern boundaries of the site. A 1.2m tall
timber post and rail fence will be erected along the western and southern boundaries.

Overall it is considered that the proposal would be commensurate in scale and would be
constructed out of materials sympathetic to the rural context. By way of scale and height
together with the landscaping proposed it is not considered that the proposal would give
rise to unacceptable visual intrusion into the landscape.

As such, the proposal is considered to accord with Saved Policy TOR1 of the PBLP, Policy
SD4 of the JCS together with emerging policy TOR1 of the PSTBLP.

Impact on Landscape and Cotswolds AONB

The site is located within the Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. A Public Right
of Way (PROW reference ATO20) runs perpendicularly to the north east of the site.

165



8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing valued
landscapes and, at Paragraph 176, it emphasises that great weight should be given to
conserving landscape and scenic beauty in AONBs. Additionally, it points out that AONBs
have the highest status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty.

Saved Policy TOR1 of the TBLP together with the emerging Policy TOR1 of the PSTBLP
supports tourism related development provided that the siting, design and scale of the
proposal is in keeping with the landscape wherever possible and where practical seeks to
enhance it. In addition, saved Policy TOR4 of the TBLP specifies that, in considering
proposals for new static caravan, log cabin or chalet sites, overriding protection will be
afforded to the landscape, particularly with regard to siting and landscape design and
impact on local amenity. It states that particular interest will be had to the protection of the
natural landscape in the AONB and the Special Landscape Area. This is echoed within
emerging Policy TORS3 of the PSTBLP.

Policy SD6 considers development will consider the landscape and visual sensitivity of the
area in which they are located or affect. This is reflected in Saved Policy LND1 of the
TBLP, Policy SD7 of the JCS and emerging Policy LAN1 of the PSTBLP which sets out
that developments are required to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance the
landscape, scenic beauty, cultural heritage and other special qualities in an AONB.

The Cotswold AONB Management Plan (CMP) is also a material planning consideration
which sets out core values for the protection and future enhancement of the AONB with
relevant emphasis placed on local distinctiveness. The CMP considers that the sustainable
management of the landscape is therefore essential to the future prosperity of the tourism
industry. Conserving the Cotswolds’ special qualities and increasing awareness and
understanding of them whilst supporting local communities and generating income for the
area should be the basis on which tourism is developed. Policy UE1 part 3 considers that
visitors should be provided with a range of type and priced accommodation options that
are compatible with conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the AONB.

A revised site plan includes a landscaping scheme showing that a new hedgerow would be
planted around the northern and eastern boundaries of the site. A 1.2m tall timber post and
rail fence will be erected along the western and southern boundaries. The Tree Officer has
been consulted and has no objection subject to a different species mix than proposed for
the hedgerow. This could be secured by condition.

The shepherds huts are sited amongst other land uses that are compatible with the rural
landscape. The huts would be sited on existing hardstanding and in line with the existing
stables at the site. It is not considered there would be any further encroachment into the
open countryside in this part.

In relation to harm, the shepherds huts would be constructed out of a muted palette of
external materials and finishes and the landscaping proposed would blend the proposal
into the landscape. It is not considered that the boundary treatments proposed would result
in the site being viewed as an overly alien feature in the countryside given the immediate
context and scale.

166



8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

8.34

8.35

8.36

Overall, it is not considered that the proposal would be overtly prominent within the
landscape in this part that would be significant in detrimentally impacting the landscape
and Cotswolds AONB to warrant a refusal.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local
amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants.

Concerns have been raised in relation to the outdoor nature of the accommodation and the
impact that visitors would have on nearby neighbouring dwellings. There have been largely
representations of support for the proposal from the nearby neighbouring residents. There

has only been one objection made in relation to the potential of noise disturbance from the
intended use.

Clarification has been sought from the Applicant, that the shepherds huts are designed to
accommodate a maximum of two people each. Bookings would be via an online booking
platform such as Airbnb. It is hoped that there would be the flexibility to allow 52-week
holiday operations, although in reality there are quieter periods of the year, meaning that
there will never been all year-round occupancy.

Given the limitations to the number of occupants owing to the small scale nature of the
shepherds huts, it is not considered that the accommodation would give rise to large
gatherings or events. The Applicant lives at April Cottage with their private garden amenity
to the rear.

The Environmental Health Officer has been consulted on the proposal and has no adverse
comments to make in relation to noise.

As such, the proposal is considered to accord with Saved Policy TOR4 of the TBLP, Policy
SD4 of the JCS together with emerging policy

Highways Impact

Policy INF1 of the JCS sets out that permission shall only be granted where the impact of
development is not considered to be severe. It further states that safe and efficient access
to the highway network should be provided for all transport means. Emerging Policy
TRAC9 of the PSTBP states that proposals need to make provision for appropriate parking
and access arrangements.

The Local Highway Authority have been consulted on the proposal and have no objection.
They comment that the junction with the main B4077 appears to have reasonable visibility
splays and the geometry is sufficient for the proposed development and associated
vehicular movements. The proposal is therefore not deemed to result in any harm. The
Local Highways Authority seek a condition for electric charging points in order to promote
sustainable transport modes. There would be designated parking within the site to serve
each hut. An amended site plan indicates the siting of an electric car charging point.

167



8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

8.0

8.1

Concerns have been raised as to whether the access track that leads from Nursery Lane
to the west of the application site would be utilised to provide access to the shepherds
huts. There would be no access to the site using this private track. The intended access as
shown on the red line site plan is the existing access that currently serves the properties
from the rear and is used for the private stables.

Drainage Matters

Policy INF 2 Emerging Policy ENV2 of the PSTBLP requires new development to
incorporate sustainable drainage systems, manage surface water drainage, to avoid
increase in discharge to the public sewer, ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere and
to protect the quality of the receiving watercourse and groundwater.

The hierarchy of foul drainage disposal in the Planning Practice Guidance is to the public
sewerage system, and when that is not available; a private treatment plant, septic tank or
cesspool.

A drainage Report, Drainage Statement, Water Management Statement and proposed
Drainage Layout accompany the planning proposal. Drainage from the shepherds huts are
to be taken and connected to existing manhole and connected to April Cottages foul
drainage system.

The Lead Local Drainage Engineer has no objection. As such it is considered that the
proposal would accord with Policy INF2 of the JCS and Emerging Policy ENV2 of the
PSTBLP.

Other Matters

During the course of the application it was discussed with the Applicant that there have
been a number of developments at the site that do not benefit from planning permission.
The Applicant did not wish to include these developments within this application and thus
may need to be regularised in the future either by lawful development certificate or a formal
planning application.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

In light of the above observations it is considered that the proposal would accord with the
relevant policies as addressed above. As such the proposal is recommended for approval
subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

168



2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
documents:

-Site Location Plan as amended dated 1.04.2021

-21:1930:SP02 entitled ‘part Site Plan as Existing’ received 15.03.2021
-21:1930:02 entitled ‘Proposed Shepherds Huts’ received 15.03.2021
-21:1930:03 entitled ‘Proposed Shepherds Huts int Layout’ 15.03.2021
-21:1930:DR01 entitled ‘Drainage Layout for Shepherds Huts’ received 1.04.2021
-21:1930:SP01 A entitled ‘Site Plan as Existing’ received 1.04.2021
-21:1930:SP05 A/1 entitled ‘Site Plan as Proposed’ received 23.06.2021
-21:1930:SP06 A/1 entitled ‘Part site plan as proposed’ received 23.06.2021
-1930 Landscaping Scheme received 23.06.2021

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

3.The shepherds huts shall be constructed out of the materials specified within plan reference
21:1930:02 entitled ‘Proposed Shepherds Huts’ received by the Local Planning Authority 15t
March 2021 together with confirmation that the wheels shall be finished in black.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not detract from the rural landscape.

4. A hedge shall be planted along the northern and eastern boundaries of the land before first
occupation of the shepherds huts in accordance with details that have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The hedge shall thereafter be so tended as to
grow to, and to remain at, a height of not less than 1.2 metres.

Reason: To safeguard and enhance the character and landscape of the area.

5. All planting comprised in the approved details of tree/hedgerow planting shall be carried out in
the first planting season following the occupation of any building or the completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or hedgerows, which within a period of 5 years
from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species,
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. If any trees or
hedgerows fail more than once they shall continue to be replaced on an annual basis until the end
of the 5 year period.

Reason: To ensure adequate provision for trees/hedgerows, in the interests of visual amenity and
the character and appearance of the area.

6. The use shall not commence until the space has been laid out within the site as indicated within
the approved plan reference 21:1930:SP06 A/1 entitled ‘Part site plan as proposed’ and such
spaces shall be retained for parking purposes thereafter.

7.The proposed holiday units shall only be occupied as holiday units and shall not be occupied by
any individual family or group for more than 1 month in any one period of a 12 month period.

Reason: The building is unsuitable to accommodate a permanent residential use by reason of its
structure and location.

169



INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’s website relevant
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

170



wodjawia|uq@doysdeway)
6SSPBS V890 Xvd
9PLE6S pB9L0 1AL

) .y oo doysdewayy mmm
wanag uodn uoydn

doys dep\ ay )

-

DIeq
LLEGLO0O) "ou @duady] Aamuing
adueupuQ ybuAdo) umone

N 06¥2€2 3 08EYOY

© o AuR) ‘py 18 Juud 3jeds 0SzLiL

ynod doysdewayy mwm
#691¥600-LdN

Q) 1202 'sz Aenugay ‘Aepsiny)
ajexs

00001/0052/0521 depaisey SO

nas ¥s1o
341Ys12)530N0J9
weyuayay)
uoybuippoy
UMOIMBN 6F

..eanN

. §mNn~

144

404 3oom

= | 404 50m

- 3VIS 0S2L'LSO




a2 woIN 2Zadsioglbl)
QOZ | OQAUSPE] SV W) AV LN«&

)3&,0 e md@% AQUO_LON1 adqQl
T OTIOLOEN LY T FHhUe) iddy

. . ot
e slU-bh ‘
% ww + . /
_ ¥/ + G
/ o_awwﬁgr | D
]
g < S ===

KR SR | oL
Lol / b 2 8_ ,Pl - f
, / %0-Q9| :
\
Bb- Vb 2k
Nmﬁinﬂ% . ong.00ly 02l 3

=T
0%Z3ybb
- 0 P
e ﬂi _

mm:-mﬂ 033 ~00! +\§,ﬁv
o= . Sﬂmﬁw@ 4%
DSS\TaaxXd | oW TRUE
POk | . \&WE: y .
Pl iy Y | sah
= @ B i 517> uc& |
l%[ Q @ O e s Ig

o e S §

2l




(0N Brudied “ ' :
| = =4 == : Hot meile +
o, lasdung , = LomnpieE, LATET

4 [TTEWKESBURY BORQU
5 T oremamons |
— OffiCON s nnimmnnsnanisnnnssanunsasuunsnsanans
I - Scanned waeens p—
Tl ﬂ P o Recd  ¥3 MAR 202

+ JYo Y

P[! ! J-TL7 Y« [P et L)
i [T — L

¢

APRIL CoaGE - 24 Maomm .
Tooo NGNS . GLes. GASY- SDUL

PRORSED SHEPHERDS HUT ({0
212 \q20:c CCZ- MaecH 2021




‘Pendn seat

2

Table

11 Benan st

weu loed

“TEWRESBURY BOROUGH COUNCILC |
e 'Fwdwb‘
TIOE! qenananusunsnsnssasnaesunnansasnsasas
o7 Tl 1o [P —— Aessasssesenee

ecd gy VAR 2021

Apri& ({%Wae\e . 29
Toddierioi . Alos .

Reposed sngpneds

Newionn .
GLSiU- SDU

st 10fc Jagout - 1:50
(\&th 922




kW bkole fveing ad =3 ﬁ/ .

gsea shepreds wiB

are \ecaled -+ Ve s /

18 GU aagiy G ave P@ased dnaphesds — e
T 905 + ﬂ (\nga.
N 0> ~ﬁ‘°" e @/ -y

- Dains - Hoest

C%b,e; i~ \%@W | Bxee

, 8ags | T100-880  Prpoted '

l ,, l | pong B
5> 00 5u0 e
| Peuser
B0 i
N ———
J ' /T\
74 q&m/ - |




9 =04

nas oo § s NalBolddo)
T CNVEN b T 2P UUS) lady

v 1 .
NS XE S IS W\Cm

OQaay)




SO 3d @4 2.3& =2Ug

nas hore § cNalyAIddo) -
YL CONVEN e T 2R ULLE) IdY

Q0 O




T OQTIOLOSN LY FhUe) gy
se&@lﬁgg _

X
oUp Ut KB SFNG g
PIRWRL ooy Sw ny7b sﬁ&wm&
§ gs._\.ﬂ .OLMUQ@. _ - N gﬂbuﬂ. Qﬁm. ﬂ.. wr et —
QOZ < | %me SY YW ALS LHN..Q& T\.§~>Q. M:tenw _QWMWMMM = | - f |
VIAS NS 'eatg QO LOTadqQl D bvisewt ¢ ooyl Béo\nx@_\ e —
W=39 — sanv3 Ngv: ” o WZID =+
QMQ& gg\QNXS_

Wi sl btk 2o Sieliny
1Z[ 2|1\ w2PPY E ﬂMWI\)Bu&

: M —~RoBuY DNZIPHL) 959-b
S A
@ S0P Sl o3
v A — S — 1 ./ vy | . o =
— Sl ——— R S A= e R g
._ _ | . 1938 roows)
; b- Vb 0, B N oot |
._ 7 %) VP T2 Lo Mm%mwc \. w@ﬁ woéﬁ | | mwﬁwsﬂmﬁ
e — % | Qé&@‘w . Gnseely sl
. . TR _ 4 __mj g | os8-01y. | sory U
T @ \ v=y | AEREEA TN B ot ver -
" POV 2 : , g : | ) O L ; " . . A
\ / ﬂ/..\&@ IS\TaTXTF : ; __k 20w ;
N ik e S Do O e _§
=S oL ) el ) 6] —
: d , & @ /@v N 5172 mgw : = Yy 7 AT, 2 i ST
s JSoOW 5 FZ59 , N.gg VO...\N\ ns e MO A
| j g % 9ad 2N L&w;mwcm Q2| iy B2 g0 1 AT 30
| e | 'y A e L= It 7l
@ ) saeavel S0 O e
. ,(\ / \AWEB& +3§ Al SO ﬁ%—\s&v +.




Agenda Item 5k

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 October 2021
Site Location: The Newtons
School Road
Apperley
Application No: 21/00559/0UT
Ward: Severn Vale North
Parish: Deerhurst
Proposal: Outline application for the erection of one dwelling with all matters

reserved for future consideration except for access
Report by: Gemma Smith

Appendices: Site Location Plan
Existing Block Plan
Indicative Site Layout

Recommendation: @ Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application relates to a parcel of land on the western side of School Road in Apperley,
immediately to the north of the detached dwelling known as The Newtons. To the north lies
an agricultural track and beyond the rear boundaries of No’s 1 and 2 Westview. There are a
number of existing trees and shrubs on the application site and a hedgerow along the
northern side and rear (western) boundaries. Land levels rise within the site from the front
(eastern) boundary to the rear boundary. The application site is located within the
Landscape Protection Zone (LPZ).

1.2 The application site is located within 50m of two Grade Il Listed buildings known as Yew
Tree Farmhouse and the roadside barn, which are each located on the western side of
School Road to the south of the dwelling known as The Newtons.

1.3 The site is located within Flood Zone 1 as defined on the most up-to-date Environment
Agency flood risk maps.

179



2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Proposal Decision | Decision Date
Number
T.1819 Erection of bungalow. Construction of PERMIT 18.05.1954
vehicular access.
T.1819/AP Erection of bungalow. Construction of APPROV | 17.05.1955
vehicular access.
T.1819/A Garage and store shed. Vehicular access. REFUSE | 25.05.1964
T.1819/A1 Garage. Vehicular access. PERMIT 16.12.1964
T.1819/B Outline application for residential REFUSE 19.12.1973
development. Construction of estate roads
and sewers.
T.1819/B/1 Outline application for residential REFUSE | 25.03.1975
development. Construction of estate roads
and sewers. Construction of new vehicular
and pedestrian accesses.
04/01622/AGR Proposed Farm Track Non- 08.02.2006
Interventio
n
10/00388/FUL Change of use of agricultural land to private Per 1.06.2010
equestrian use including construction of
manege.
15/01286/FUL Raising of roof to accommodate living PER 15.03.2016
accommodation at first floor level, erection of
front extension, two storey rear and side
extension, and alterations to fenestration
16/00086/CONDIS | Application for approval of details subject to DISCHA 24.03.2017
condition 3 of planning application ref
15/01286/FUL.
18/00434/FUL New agricultural barn to store hay for cattle Permit 26.06.20218
enterprise and apron.
19/01166/PIP Permission in Principle for the erection of Refuse 30.01.2020
1no. dwelling Appeal
Dismissed
19/01218/0OUT Outline application for the erection of 1 no. CONSEN | 08.06.2020

dwelling (all matters reserved)

180




3.0 RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

31 National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG)

3.2 Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) — Adopted 11
December 2017

e SD4 (Design Requirements)
e SD6 (Landscape)
o SD8 (Historic Environment)
o SD9 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity)
o SD10 (Residential Development)
e SD11 (Housing mix and Standards)
e SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality)
o INF1 (Transport Network)
o INF2 (Flood Risk Management)
e INF3 (Green Infrastructure)
3.3 Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 — March 2006 (TBPL)
o LND3 (Landscape Protection Zone)
3.4 Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-submission Version (October 2019)
e RES3 (New Housing Outside Settlement Boundaries)
o RES4 (New Housing at Other Rural Settlements)
e RESS5 (New Housing Development)
e RES13 (Housing Mix)
o DES1 (Housing Space Standards)

e HER2 (Listed Buildings)

181



3.5

3.6

4.0

41

4.2

o LAN2 (Landscape Protection Zone)
o NAT1 (Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Important Natural Features)
e ENV2 (Flood Risk and Water Management)
e TRAC1 (Pedestrian Accessibility)
o TRACSY (Parking Provision)
Neighbourhood Plan
None
Other relevant policy
— Human Rights Act 19
— 98 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life)
— The First Protocol - Article 1 (Protection of Property)
APPLICATION DETAILS
The Proposal
The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of 1 no. dwelling, with all
matters reserved for future consideration except for access. An indicative Proposed Site
Plan has been submitted to indicate the location of the dwelling and associated parking.
Agent’s Submission
The application is supported by the following documents:
¢ Planning Statement, Carver Knowles
e Ecological Statement, March 2021 MPEcology
o Ecological Walkover Study, January 2020 Betts Ecology and Estates
o Arboricultural Impact Assessment, February 2020 Betts Ecology and Estates

e Tree Constraints Plan

e Tree Protection Plan

182



5.0

CONSULTATIONS

Full copies of all the consultation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Deerhurst Parish Council — Objections with the following comments as summarised:

The block diagram with the proposal shows a dwelling that does not respect the
existing building line along School Road. Its location as shown ensures an
incongruous pattern of development.

The proposed plot would be larger than those along School Road.

Concerns that a ‘rear’ boundary has been created by hedgerow creation enclosing
former paddock land.

Concerns about the impact on high values landscape protection zone and
agricultural land.

Concerned about the width of the proposed access which would be 6.0m.
Concerned with conflict of shared access and impact on neighbouring amenity.

Concerns with safety of access in regards to the manoeuvring large vehicles near to
electricity sub-station, across a school safety zone and across a footway.

Consideration of the removal of the farm access completely since it is cited to be in
occasional use and there are other access points available along School Road to
the agricultural land to the rear.

The addition of the access would result in the 1-3 Westview being isolated between
two roads.

The proposal would be out of character with the surroundings.

No local services to support the additional unit

Gloucestershire County Council (Highways Officer) -

Tree Officer — No comments received at the time of writing this report.

Flood Risk and Management Officer — No Objection subject to condition. Discrepancies

with Application Form Section on Drainage and Flooding — no docs submitted to support

SUDS proposed. As such a pre-commencement for Surface water drainage condition is
proposed.

Ecological Advisor — No objection subject to conditions.

Newt Officer — No Objection

Conservation Officer — No Objection

183


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

6.0

6.1

6.2

Environmental Health Officer — No objection in relation to noise /nuisance issues.

Environmental Health Officer (air quality)- No adverse comments to make in regard to
the proposal and local air quality.

Severn Trent Water Ltd. — No Objections and do not require a drainage condition, noting
that the proposal would have minimal impact on the public sewerage system.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Full copies of all the representation responses are available online at
https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/.

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

There have been 13 letters received in response comprising of nine representations
objecting to the proposal and two in support.

The objections are summarised as follows:

o Concerns regarding the boundary and access changes against previously approved
19/01218/OUT.

¢ Unnecessary to widen the existing track and would set a precedent for further
development of the access.

e Making the track into a road would invite further development of the fields behind.

o Concerns raised that the adjoining development would have three roads bounding
the site which would lead to impacts on amenity.

o Concerns over highway safety particular in regards to the proposed widening of the
access adjacent to a bus stop within the School Zone.

e The previously approved application would be more in keeping with the village
building line and the tractor access would be retained for access to the field.

¢ Permission has not been sought for the change of use of agricultural land to garden
land.

e Concerns with the scale of the proposal.

¢ Extension of development form into pasture land would be contrary to similar garden
extension applications under reference 20/00869/FUL and 20/00644/FUL.

e The proposal would encroach on to agricultural land which has been subject to
unsuccessful planning applications.

¢ Planning permission to change the land from agricultural land to garden land has not
be sought or approved.

184


https://publicaccess.tewkesbury.gov.uk/online-applications/

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.0

8.1

e Access to the pasture land can be reached by a number of other accesses.
e The proposal would not respect the existing building line.

e The land is higher than the gardens of the neighbouring properties Westview so
have concerns with the reduction in drainage by increased road surfacing and car
parking areas may lead to run-off into gardens.

o Concerns with amenity of future occupants and the large farm vehicles proposed to
utilise the track.

e Concerns that the there has been new landscaping and new boundaries put into the
site recently.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that
the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan,
so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a
number of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Tewkesbury Borough Plan (TBP) has reached an advanced stage. The Examination in
Public was held in February/March 2021 and the Inspector’s post hearings Main
Modifications letter was received on 16 June 2021. In this letter the Inspector provided his
current view as to what modifications are required to make the Plan ‘sound’. Those policies
in the Pre-submission version of the TBP which are not listed as requiring main
modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications, with those
policies which do in the Inspector’s view require main modifications attracting less weight
depending on the extent of the changes required. The TBP remains an emerging plan and
the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the extent to
which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved objections, the
greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the NPPF (the
closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031
Pre-Submission Version (October 2019).

ANALYSIS

The application is brought before Members of the Planning Committee for determination as
the Parish Council object to the proposal.

185



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

Principle of development

The principle for a new dwelling on part of the site subject to this application has already
been ascertained through planning reference 19/01218/OUT. The site in question however
is larger to the rear and incorporates the existing agricultural track to the north of the site for
shared access. Part of the site was considered for a new dwelling under 19/01166/PIP that
was refused and a subsequent appeal was dismissed. The key issue in the determination of
this application therefore is whether the additional plot to the rear is acceptable for
development in principle.

Apperley comprises a small village which does not benefit from a defined settlement
boundary in the JCS. However the application site is located within the previously defined
Residential Development Boundary of Apperley as shown on the TBLP Proposals Map and
is also in close proximity to the village primary school and local bus stops.

Policy SP2 of the JCS sets out the strategy for the distribution of new development across
the JCS area, and JCS Policy SD10 ('‘Residential Development') specifies that, within the
JCS area, new housing will be planned in order to deliver the scale and distribution of
housing development set out in Policies SP1 and SP2. It sets out that housing development
will be permitted at sites allocated for housing through the development plan, including
Strategic Allocations and allocations in district and neighbourhood plans. The application
site is not allocated for housing through the development plan. Criterion 3 of JCS Policy
SD10 specifies that, on sites that are not allocated, housing development will be permitted
on previously developed land in the existing built-up areas of Gloucester City, the Principal
Urban Area of Cheltenham and Tewkesbury town, rural service centres and service villages
except where otherwise restricted by policies within District plans. Apperley is not identified
as a ‘Rural Service Centre’ nor a 'Service Village' within Table SP2c ("Settlement
hierarchy") of the JCS.

Criterion 4 goes on to specify that housing development on other sites will only be permitted
where:

i.  Itis for affordable housing on a rural exception site in accordance with Policy SD12,
or

ii.  Itisinfilling within the existing built up area of the City of Gloucester, the Principal
Urban Area of Cheltenham or Tewkesbury Borough’s towns and villages except
where otherwise restricted by policies within district plans; or

iii. It is brought forward through Community Right to Build Orders, or

iv. There are other specific exceptions/circumstances defined in district or
neighbourhood plans

The proposed development is not for affordable housing on a rural exception site in
accordance with Policy SD12 and is not brought forward through Community Right to Build
Orders. As such, it does not comply with Criteria 4 (i), (iii) or (iv) of Policy SD10 of the JCS.

In terms of criteria 4 (ii) above, the JCS sets out that infill development means the

development of an under-developed plot well related to existing built development. The key
issue here is whether the additional plot size to the west is considered acceptable.

186



8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

The application site is adjoined on its southern side by the existing dwelling known as The
Newtons and on its northern side by a rural access track and beyond the dwellings at no. 1
and 2 Westview. The application site is considered to be an under-developed plot which is
well-related to existing built development that squares off the existing spatial pattern in the
area, and is therefore judged to comply with JCS Policy SD10 criteria 4 (ii). As such, the
proposed development is considered to be in accordance with the spatial strategy of the
Development Plan.

Since the grant of the outline permission for one dwelling under 19/01218/OUT, following
the examination in public of the Local Plan, with the Tewkesbury Borough Plan (2011-2031)
and the Inspector’s post hearings Main Modifications letter. Those policies in the Pre-
submission version of the PSTLP which are not listed as requiring any main modifications
may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications.

Emerging Policy RES4 of the PSTBP specifies that, to support the vitality of rural
communities and the continued availability of services and facilities in the rural areas, very
small scale residential development will be acceptable in principle within and adjacent to the
built up area of other rural settlements (i.e. those not featured within the settlement
hierarchy), subject to a number of criteria.

It is considered that the application proposes very small-scale residential development
adjacent to the built up area of this rural settlement. Emerging Policy RES4 of the PSTBP
provides a set of criteria which such development should comply with. It further states that,
in all cases, development must comply with the relevant criteria set out at Policy RES5, and
specifies that particular attention will be given to the effect of the development on the form,
character and landscape setting of the settlement.

One such criteria of emerging Policy RES4 of the PSTBP requires such very small-scale
residential development within and adjacent to the built up area of other rural settlements to
be of a scale that is proportionate to the size and function of the settlement and to maintain
or enhance sustainable patterns of development (criteria (a)). In this regard emerging Policy
RES5 similarly requires residential development to, inter alia, be of an appropriate scale
having regard to the size, function and accessibility of the settlement.

Councils 5 Year Housing Land Supply

As set out in the latest Tewkesbury Borough Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement
published in December 2020, the Council can demonstrate a 4.35 year supply of deliverable
housing sites. On the basis therefore that the Council cannot at this time demonstrate a five
year supply of deliverable housing land, the Council’s policies for the provision of housing
should not be considered up-to-date in accordance with footnote 7 of the NPPF and in
accordance with Paragraph 11 of the NPPF the presumption in favour of sustainable
development (the ‘tilted balance’) applies. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that where
policies which are most important for determining the application are out of date, permission
should be granted unless: d)i. the application of policies in the Framework that protect
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development; or ii).
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. This will
be assessed below.

187



8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

Members will be aware of the recent appeal decision at Ashmead Drive in which the
Inspector concluded that the Council could demonstrate a 1.82 year supply. This is
principally because the Council includes advanced delivery (or ‘oversupply’) against annual
housing requirements in its five-year supply calculations. Appeal decisions are not binding
precedents however. Officers consider that, in the context of the plan-led system, it is wrong
not to take into account houses that have already been delivered during the plan period,
essentially ahead of schedule, and which meet the needs being planned for in the area.
Officer’s advice is therefore that a 4.35 year supply can be demonstrated at this time.

Nevertheless, as set out above, as the Council cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable housing sites and the presumption in favour of sustainable development is
therefore engaged in this case.

Landscape impact

Policy SD4 of the JCS provides that new development should respond positively to, and
respect the character of, the site and its surroundings, enhancing local distinctiveness, and
addressing the urban structure and grain of the locality in terms of street pattern, layout,
mass and form. It should be of a scale, type, density and materials appropriate to the site
and its setting.

Criterion 6 of JCS Policy SD10 ‘Residential Development’ of the JCS states the residential
development should seek to achieve maximum density compatible with good design, the
protection of heritage assets, local amenity, the character and quality of the local
environment, and the safety and convenience of the local and strategic road network.

Emerging Policy RES4 of the PSTBP, as referred to above, specifies that very small- scale
residential development will be acceptable in principle within and adjacent to the built-up
area of other rural settlements providing, inter alia, it is of a scale that is proportionate to the
size and function of the settlement and maintains or enhances sustainable patterns of
development, providing it complements the form of the settlement and is well related to
existing buildings within the settlement, and providing the site of the proposed development
is not of significant amenity value or makes a significant contribution to the character and
setting of the settlement in its undeveloped state.

In addition, emerging policy RES5 of the PSTBP specifies that proposals for new housing
development should:

* Be of a design and layout that respects the character, appearance and amenity of the
surrounding area and is capable of being well integrated within it;

* Be of an appropriate scale having regard to the size, function and accessibility of the
settlement and its character and amenity, unless otherwise directed by policies within the
Development Plan;

* Where an edge of settlement site is proposed, respect the form of the settlement and its
landscape setting, not appear as an unacceptable intrusion into the countryside and retain a
sense of transition between the settlement and open countryside;

» Not cause the unacceptable reduction of any open space (including residential gardens)

which is important to the character and amenity of the area; « Incorporate into the
development any natural or built features on the site that are worthy of retention; and

188



8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

» Address any other environmental or material planning constraints relating to the site.

Policy SD6 (Landscape) of the JCS specifies that development will seek to protect
landscape character for its own intrinsic beauty and for its benefit to economic,
environmental and social well-being. It also states that all applications for development will
consider the landscape and visual sensitivity of the area in which they are to be located or
which they may affect.

As noted above, the application site is located within the LPZ as defined on the TBLP
Proposals Map. Saved Policy LND3 of the TBLP specifies that special protection is given to
the ecology and visual amenity of the river environment within the LPZ, and that
development will not be permitted which (a) has a detrimental visual or ecological effect on
the character of the river banks or associated landscape setting of the Severn Vale, and/or
(b) has an adverse impact on the water environment. No changes are proposed to the
extent of the LPZ on the PSTBP Proposals Map, and emerging Policy LAN2 of the PSTBP
also affords special protection to the ecology and visual amenity of the river environment
within the LPZ.

The proposal would introduce development into an open parcel of land, and consequently
there would be some extent of visual impact. However, the development would be viewed in
the context of existing built-up development on either side of the application site and
‘squaring off’ of the developable plot. This is unlike the parcel to the west of the site, that
part of this plot relates, that was refused for the development of 1 no. dwelling
19/01166/PIP. The decision was appealed and subsequently dismissed. It is not considered
that the extended part of this proposed plot would result in detrimental intrusion into the
countryside.

Whilst the proposed development would be fairly prominent from the adjacent public
highway and would change the character of the site, the site itself sits in close proximity to
existing residential development, and the illustrative site plan shows that the proposed
dwelling would be set back within the site with parking orientated to the rear of the site. The
amended indicative site plan shows that the dwelling could potentially respect the existing
building line with the Newtons to the south of the site.

Any subsequent reserved matters application would need to demonstrate that the proposed
development would not result in an overly prominent or cramped form of development and
that the proposed site layout would respect the location and orientation of existing built
development, particularly of that to the south of the site as the dwelling would most closely
be viewed from public vantage points in the context of this. In addition, the reserved matters
application would need to show that the scale, form and external materials of the proposed
dwelling and its architectural appearance would be in-keeping with the local vernacular and
would be sympathetic in design to existing adjacent dwellings.

It is recommended that any approval of outline planning permission is subject to condition
requiring details of existing and proposed levels, including finished floor levels, a plan
indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatments to be erected,
precise details or samples of the external walling and roofing materials and hard surfacing
materials proposed to be used, as well as a landscape scheme for the whole site to be
submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application, in the interests of the visual amenity
of the area, and to protect the visual amenity of the LPZ.

189



8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

It is noted that the previous outline scheme approved on a smaller plot under planning
reference 19/01218/OUT was served by the creation of a new access to the front of the site.
It is considered that the utilisation of the existing agricultural track at the site would benefit
the street scene as it would negate the additional access and would retain some of the trees
at the front of the site.

It is considered that the wider access track would not result in particular intrusion into the
landscape. The surfacing of the track/ access drive will be conditioned on any
recommendation for approval to ensure assimilation within the landscape.

It is noted that supervised clearance of the site was carried out on 28th January 2021 as per
19/01218/OUT. It appears that the western boundary hedgerow will require removing. Any
proposed development would need to bolster / replace the natural hedgerow boundaries at
the site to help to blend the development into the landscape.

Highways and Access Implications

The NPPF sets out development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds
where there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative
impacts of development are severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS considers that developers
provide safe and efficient access to the highway network and permission be granted only
where the impact of the development is considered not to be severe. It further states that
safe and efficient access to the highway network should be provided for all transport means.

Emerging Policy RES5 of the PSTBLP states that proposals for new housing development
should, inter alia, make provision for appropriate parking and access arrangements and not
result in the loss or reduction of existing parking areas to the detriment of highway safety.
Emerging Policy TRAC9 of the PSTBLP states that proposals need to make provision for
appropriate parking and access arrangements.

A key difference to the previously approved outline planning permission for a new dwelling
is the widening of the existing agricultural track to be used to serve the dwelling negating
the need for the creation of an additional access along the road.

The Local Highways Authority have been consulted on the proposal and have no objections
to the proposal. The Local Highways Officer does not consider that the dual purpose access
track would result in any safety concerns and considers that it would be a benefit when a
car is accessing the site and one other egressing, thus avoiding an obstruction to oncoming
traffic.

The Local Highway Authority recommends that any approval of planning permission is
subject to condition requiring details of secure and covered cycle storage facilities to be
made available prior to the occupation of the proposed dwelling in accordance with details
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local
Highway Authority also recommends a condition requiring the proposed car parking spaces
to be designed to enable charging of plug- in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe,
accessible and convenient locations prior to the occupation of the proposed dwelling.

190



8.34

8.35

8.36

8.37

8.38

8.39

Impact on Heritage Assets

The application site is not located within a conservation area however, there are two Grade
Il listed buildings to the South; Yew Tree Farmhouse and the roadside barn. As such when
determining planning applications this authority has a duty under Section 66(1) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have regard to the
desirability of preserving listed buildings and their setting. The proposal will also be
assessed against section 16 of the NPPF, Policy SD8 of the JCS.

The Conservation Officer has been consulted on the application and in regards to impact
upon the setting of the listed buildings and has no objection to the principle of the proposal.

Residential Amenity

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF specifies that planning decisions should ensure that
developments create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. JCS
policies SD4 and SD14 require development to enhance comfort, convenience and
enjoyment through assessment of the opportunities for light, privacy and external space.
Development should have no detrimental impact on the amenity of existing or new residents
or occupants. In this respect, emerging policy RES5 of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan
2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (2019) is also relevant.

In terms of the impact on the residential amenity of adjacent neighbouring properties, whilst
there is potential for some overlooking as a result of the proposed development, it is
considered that careful design and orientation of windows would ensure that the
development could be accompanied in an acceptable manner and these matters would be
addressed through any subsequent reserved matters applications. It is recommended that
any approval of outline planning permission is subject to condition requiring details of
existing and proposed levels, including finished floor levels, as well as a plan indicating the
positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatments to be erected, to be submitted
as part of the Reserved Matters application, in order to ensure the amenities of the
occupiers of neighbouring properties would be protected.

The Environmental Health Officer raises no objection to the application in terms of noise /
nuisance adversely impacting on future residents, and it is considered that the residential
amenity of existing and future occupiers would not be unreasonably affected in terms of
noise, odour or pollution levels or general disturbances.

Policy DES1 of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version
(2019) which specifies that Tewkesbury Borough Council adopts the Government’s
nationally described space standards and expects all new residential development to meet
these standards as a minimum. It also specifies that new residential development will be
expected to make adequate provision for private outdoor amenity space appropriate to the
size and potential occupancy of the dwellings proposed. Any subsequent reserved matters
application would need to show that the proposed dwelling and associated external amenity
area(s) would provide an acceptable living environment for future occupiers.

191



8.40

8.41

8.42

8.43

8.44

8.45

Impact on Trees

Policy INF3 of with JCS provides that existing green infrastructure, including trees should be
protected. Developments that impact woodlands, hedges and trees should be justified and
include acceptable measures to mitigate any loss and should incorporate measures
acceptable to the Local Planning Authority to mitigate the loss.

Policy NAT1 relates to biodiversity, geodiversity and important natural features and provides
that development likely to result in the loss, deterioration or harm to features of
environmental quality will not be permitted unless the need/benefits for development
outweigh the impact, the development cannot be located on a site with less harmful impacts
and measures can avoid, mitigate or, as a last resort, compensate for the adverse effects.
The explanatory paragraphs clarify that this policy automatically applies to trees protected
by a preservation order or located within a conservation area. Other non-protected
landscape features (including trees, woodlands and hedgerows) will be subject to this policy
if they are of sufficient value to warrant their protection.

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been submitted as part of the proposal. It is noted
that the constraints plan has not been updated since the 19/01218/OUT however the trees
subject to the site are the same.

The Tree Officer is yet to provide comments on this outline scheme at the time of writing
this report. Whilst the siting of the development is not ascertained, it is identified that the
hedgerows to the northern and western boundaries would be removed together with three
trees T5, T6 and T7. The tree officer previously comments that the hedgerow that surrounds
the site is of poor quality and it would be beneficial to remove them and replace with native
hedgerows and to include some fruit trees within it (such as apple, pear, cherry, etc.). This
would mitigate for the proposed loss of the trees and would over time become a source of
food for wildlife but also screening around the proposed dwelling without causing shading
issues to surrounding properties. It is recommended that any approval of outline permission
is subject to condition requiring full details of proposed tree and hedgerow planting to be
submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application.

The Tree Officer previously comments that it will be important that trees T1, T2 and T3 are
protected throughout the development and that protective fencing must be in place before
development starts. In addition, there must be no level changes within the root protection
areas of these retained trees. No details have been provided at the outline stage with
regards to the driveway installation, underground and above ground services or
specification of tree protection barriers. Details will need to be submitted as part of the
Reserved Matters application.

Biodiversity

Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a
development cannot be avoided through locating on an alternative site with less harmful
impacts, adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning
permission should be refused. Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that planning decisions
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by, inter alia,
minimising impacts on and proving net gains to biodiversity.

192



8.46

8.47

8.48

8.49

8.50

8.51

8.52

Policy SD9 of the JCS seeks for the protection and enhancement of biodiversity and to
establish and reinforce ecological networks. This includes ensuring that those European
Species and Protected Species are protected in accordance with the law. Emerging Policy
NAT1 of the PSTBLP states that proposals, where applicable will be required to deliver
biodiversity net gains. Emerging Policy NAT3 of the PSTBLP seeks for development to
contribute towards the provision, protection and enhancement of the wider green
infrastructure network.

The application is supported by an updated Ecological Statement, dated March 2021
MPEcology together with an Ecological Walkover Study dated January 2020 undertaken by
Betts Ecology and Estates.

It was noted that the Council’s Ecological Advisor requested on grant of the previous outline
permission that any approval of planning permission be subject to condition for all works to
strictly adhere to the mitigation set out within the ecological report, which includes but is not
limited to mitigation for stag beetles, replacement planting for the removed orchard trees
and permeable fencing. A suitably qualified ecologist was recommended to be present
during the site clearance as well as carrying out a pre-construction check due to the pond
not being able to be assessed close to the site.

Since the approval of the previous outline consent site clearance activities were undertaken
in January 2021 under the supervision of an ecologist, following pre-clearance check for
vulnerable fauna, as previously recommended in the Ecological Walkover Survey report.
The Ecological Advisor notes that no protected or notable fauna were discovered during
those site clearance works. A further site visit was undertaken in February 2021, during
which habitat creation for stag beetles was undertaken, following the recommendations of
the Ecological Walkover Survey report.

The Ecological Advisor notes that the site demonstrates foraging and commuting habitat for
bats, and that there is an opportunity for enhancements. The Ecology Advisor notes that a
bat box (e.g. Schwegler 1FF) should be installed onto the new development, at least 3m
from the ground and preferably in a south-easterly to south-westerly facing direction. It is
important that it is installed away from artificial lighting. The Ecology Advisor recommends
that any approval of outline planning permission is subject to condition requiring details of
the type and location of the bat box to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval prior to occupation.

In addition, the Ecology Advisor recommends that any approval of outline planning
permission is subject to condition requiring details of any artificial lighting to be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to its installation, to ensure light spill is
minimised onto corridors and vegetation used by mammals and commuting/ foraging bats.
The details should include the locations of any external artificial lighting and light spill onto
surrounding habitats detailing the lux.

Subject to the above recommended conditions, it is considered that biodiversity would be
protected and enhanced

193



8.53

8.54

8.55

8.56

8.57

9.0

9.1

9.2

Drainage and Flood Risk

Whilst the proposed development is located within Flood Zone 1 as defined by the most up-
to-date Environment Agency flood risk maps, the proposed development would have
surface water implications. In accordance with JCS Policy INF2, emerging Policy ENV2 of
the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (2019) and the
Tewkesbury Borough Council Flood and Water Management Supplementary Planning
Document, there is a requirement for the application to demonstrate that the proposal would
not lead to an adverse impact on the surface water drainage infrastructure, foul water
drainage infrastructure or sewage treatment systems.

The supporting planning statement makes reference in Section 5.5 that a Sustainable
Drainage System shall be used however there is no detail to show how this may work or
what is intended to achieve this.

The Flood Risk and Drainage Management Officer has been consulted on the application
and acknowledges that the overall flood risk at the site is documented as low, and that
Severn Trent Water has raised no objection to the outline application.

Notwithstanding this, given the acute problems with the cumulative effect of numerous
minor developments, the Flood Risk and Drainage Management Officer recommends that
any approval of planning permission be subject to condition requiring a detailed design,
maintenance and management strategy and timetable of implementation for the surface
water drainage strategy (e.g. Sustainable Drainage System — SuDS) presented in the
Drainage Statement to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of development.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The development is CIL liable because it creates a new dwelling. The relevant CIL forms
have been submitted.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

Section 38(6) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that, if regard is to be
had to the development plan, the determination must be made in accordance with the
development plan unless other material circumstances indicate otherwise. Section 70(2) of
the Act provides that the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material
considerations.

On the basis the Council cannot at this time demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable
housing land, the Council's policies for the supply of housing are out of date. In accordance
with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, the presumption in favour of sustainable development
indicates that permission should be granted unless policies for protecting areas of assets of
particular importance in the NPPF provide a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed, or any adverse impacts of permitting the development would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a
whole.

194



9.3

9.4

Whilst the benefit derived from the development would be a contribution towards the
housing shortfall, albeit in a small way, towards providing housing in the Borough. Having
regard to those policies of the development plan, no harms have been identified in respect
of the proposal. Subject to appropriate conditions, the development would not give rise to
unacceptable impacts in regards to ecology, trees, flood risk and drainage, highway safety,
residential and visual amenity.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would constitute sustainable
development in the context of the NPPF as a whole and it is therefore recommended that
planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the conditions set out below.

CONDITIONS:

1.

The development for which permission is hereby granted shall not be begun before detailed
plans thereof showing the access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (hereinafter
referred to as "the reserved matters") have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: The application is in outline only and the reserved matters referred to in the
foregoing condition will require further consideration.

. Applications for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning

Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years from
the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

. The detailed plans to be submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application in

accordance with Condition 1 shall include details of existing and proposed site sections and
finished floor and site levels. All development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties and to
protect the visual amenity of the Landscape Protection Zone.

The detailed plans to be submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application in
accordance with Condition 1 shall show the positions, design, materials and type of
boundary treatments to be erected. The boundary treatments shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details before the dwelling hereby permitted is occupied.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties and to
protect the visual amenity of the Landscape Protection Zone.

195



6. The details to be submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application in accordance with
Condition 1 shall include precise details and/or samples of the external walling and roofing
materials and the hard surfacing materials proposed to be used. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with its surroundings, and to protect the
visual amenity of the Landscape Protection Zone.

7. The details of landscaping to be submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application in
accordance with Condition 1 shall include full details of proposed tree and hedge planting.
This shall include planting and maintenance specifications, use of guards or other protective
measures and confirmation of location, species and sizes. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development, to preserve and enhance
the quality of the environment, and to protect the visual amenity of the Landscape
Protection Zone.

8. The details of landscaping to be submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application in
accordance with Condition 1 shall include a scheme for the protection of the retained trees,
in accordance with BS 5837:2012, including a Tree Protection Plan(s) (TPP) and an
Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS). The specific issues to be dealt with in the TPP and
AMS shall be as follows:

a) The location and installation of services/utilities/drainage

b) Details of any construction within the RPA or that may impact on the retained trees

c) A full specification for the construction of any roads, parking areas and driveways,
including details of the no-dig specification and extent of the areas of the roads, parking
areas and driveways to be constructed using a no-dig specification. Details shall include
relevant sections through them.

d) A specification for protective fencing to safeguard trees during construction phases and a
plan indicating the alignment of the protective fencing.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development, to preserve and enhance
the quality of the environment, and to protect the visual amenity of the Landscape Protection
Zone.

9. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted (including all preparatory
work), tree protection must be in place for the retained trees, in accordance with BS
5837:2012, to safeguard trees during the construction phases and to ensure no storage of
materials is in proximity of the trees.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development, to preserve and enhance

the quality of the environment, and to protect the visual amenity of the Landscape
Protection Zone.

196



10.

11.

12.

13.

Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority
gives written consent to any variation. If any plants fail more than once they shall continue
to be replaced on an annual basis until the end of the 5 year defects period.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development, to preserve and enhance
the quality of the environment, and to protect the visual amenity of the Landscape
Protection Zone.

The detailed plans to be submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application in
accordance with Condition 1 shall show the layout, vehicular access, parking and turning
facilities and surface water drainage within the site, and the dwelling hereby permitted shall
not be occupied until those facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved
plans and those facilities shall be maintained available for those purposes for the duration of
the development.

Reason: To ensure that a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that
minimises the scope for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians is provided in
accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

No building works hereby permitted shall be commenced until surface water drainage works
have been implemented in accordance with details that have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Before these details are submitted an
assessment shall be carried out of the potential for disposing of surface water by means of
a sustainable drainage system in accordance with the principles set out in The SuDS
Manual, CIRIA C753 (or any subsequent version), and the results of the assessment
provided to the local planning authority. Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be
provided, the submitted details shall:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage
as well as to reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating a flooding problem and to minimise
the risk of pollution for the lifetime of the development.

No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to
throughout the demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for: « 24
hour emergency contact number;

e Hours of operation;

e Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties
during construction);

Routes for construction traffic;

Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction materials;
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;

Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians)

Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;

197



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

e Arrangements for turning vehicles;
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;

e Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into
development both during the demolition and construction phase of the development.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until details of secure and covered
cycle storage facilities for a minimum of 2 bicycles has been made available in accordance
with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.

Reason: To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is
provided, to promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for
sustainable transport modes have been taken up in accordance with paragraph 108 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, the proposed car parking spaces
shall be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in
safe, accessible and convenient locations.

Reason: To ensure that the development incorporates facilitates for charging plug-in and
other ultra-low emission vehicles in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

All works shall strictly adhere to the mitigation set out within the Ecological Walkover Survey
Report and subsequent Ecology comments, including the recommendation for removal of
bramble scrub and the conifer hedge to be undertaken outside of main nesting bird season,
generally considered to be between March and August.

Reason: In order to protect and enhance biodiversity.

Should any undisturbed scrubby vegetation become re-established on the site, prior to any
construction activities taking place, a pre-clearance check for vulnerable fauna, including
Great Crested Newts is recommended. Tall vegetation should be removed in a phased
approach and managed in advance of any works, to reduce the suitable habitat on site for
Great Crested Newts. Waste materials should be removed off site immediately or stored in
skips where possible and working areas should be managed.

Reason: To safeguard protected species.

If Great Crested Newts are discovered during site preparation, enabling or construction
phases, then all works must be stop and the advice of a suitable qualified ecologist be
sought.

Reason: To ensure the protection of protected species.

Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, details of the type and location of a
bat box (e.g. Schwegler 1FF) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: In order to protect and enhance biodiversity.

198



20. Prior to its installation, details of any artificial lighting (including the lux, position and height)
and any external artificial lighting (including the location and the lux) shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure light spill is minimised onto corridors and vegetation used by mammals
and commuting/ foraging bats, in order to protect biodiversity.

INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing the to the Council’'s website relevant
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to
be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

2. Severn Trent Water advise that there may be a public sewer located within the application site.
Although their statutory sewer records do not show any public sewers within the area you have
specified, there may be sewers that have been recently adopted under the Transfer Of Sewer
Regulations 2011. Public sewers have statutory protection and may not be built close to,
directly over or be diverted without consent and contact must be made with Severn Trent Water
to discuss the proposals. Severn Trent will seek to assist in obtaining a solution which protects
both the public sewer and the building. Please note that there is no guarantee that you will be
able to build over or close to any Severn Trent sewers, and where diversion is required there is
no guarantee that you will be able to undertake those works on a self-lay basis. Every approach
to build near to or divert Severn Trent Water’s assets has to be assessed on its own merit and
the decision of what is or isn’t permissible is taken based on the risk to the asset and the wider
catchment it serves. It is vital therefore that you contact Severn Trent Water at the earliest
opportunity to discuss the implications of its assets crossing your site. Failure to do so could
significantly affect the costs and timescales of your project if it transpires diversionary works
need to be carried out by Severn Trent.

199



Site Location Plan Land at
The land
School Rd € rand app

Redberry House

L.

Deerhurst and Apperley &

Yew Tree Farm ’

C of E Primary school

Apperley House »\

Holly House

Produced on Apr 28, 2021.

© Crown copyright and database right 2021 (licence number
100059532). Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without
the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.

| 50 m |
Scale 1:1250 (at A4) N




The land app

The Newtons Existing Block
Plan

The

Newtons

\ [
~
- T " " cen.. '

| 10m | A
N

Scale 1:500 (at A4)

Produced on May 24, 2021.
Carxdr
Knowles

© Crown copyright and database right 2021 (licence number
100059532). Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without
PROPERTY CONSULTANTS

the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.



The Newtons - Block Plan
V2

The land app

.«" _."Approximate position
- o y

- ’ of parking area

Approximate location
of proposed dwelling
*.

The

Newtons

e —
| 10m | A
Scale 1:500 (at A4)

N

Produced on Sep 30, 2021.

© Crown copyright and database right 2021 (licence number
100059532). Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without
the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.




Agenda ltem 6
TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to: Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 19 October 2021

Subject: Current Appeals and Appeal Decisions Update
Report of: Development Manager

Lead Member: Lead Member for Built Environment

Number of Appendices: 1

Executive Summary:

To inform Members of current planning and enforcement appeals and Department for Levelling
Up, Housing and Communities appeal decisions issued.

Recommendation:
To CONSIDER the report.

Reasons for Recommendation:

To inform Members of recent appeal decisions.

Resource Implications:
None

Legal Implications:

None

Risk Management Implications:

None

Performance Management Follow-up:
None

Environmental Implications:

None

203



1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND

11 At each Planning Committee meeting, Members are informed of current planning and
enforcement appeals and Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
appeal decisions that have recently been issued.

2.0 APPEAL DECISIONS

2.1 No appeal decisions have been issued by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities.

3.0 ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS

3.1 None

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 None

5.0 CONSULTATION

5.1 None

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES
6.1 None

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES

7.1 None

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property)
8.1 None

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/
Environment)

9.1 None

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health
And Safety)

10.1 None
11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS

11.1 None

Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Appeals Administrator
01684 272062 AppealsAdmin@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Appendices: Appendix 1: List of Appeals received

204



List of Appeals Received

Appendix 1

Process Type

FAS
HH
W

H

|

indicates FastTrack Household Appeal Service
indicates Householder Appeal
indicates Written Reps
indicates Informal Hearing
indicates Public Inquiry

205

.. Appeal |Appeal [Statement
Reference Address Description Start Date Procedure | Officer Due
20/01075/FUL |Land To The  |Erection of 1no. self- |09.09.2021 W PMS
North Of build dwelling, and
Shuthonger provision of
Garage associated vehicular
A38 Pages access, parking and
Lane To turning area and
Church End landscaping.
Lane
Tewkesbury
Shuthonger
21/00262/FUL Whites Farm  |[Erection of a detached [09.09.2021 W JLL
Shutter Lane  |dwelling and garage
Gotherington
20/00207/FUL Whites Farm  |[Erection of 2 detached [09.09.2021 W JLL
Shutter Lane | dwellings.
Gotherington
20/00120/FUL |35 Medway Erection of detached [21.09.2021|FAS SNB
Crescent double garage and
Brockworth new access at the
side
21/00334/FUL [The Sheiling  |[Erection of a detached [21.09.2021 [FAS SNB
Badgeworth garage with studio
Lane over
Badgeworth




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5a 21/00277/FUL - Tresco, Langley Road, Winchcombe
	5a - 21.00277.FUL - Tresco - Plans

	5b 21/000247/FUL - Beech Cottage, Stockwell Lane, Woodmancote
	21.00247.FUL - Beech Cottage - Plans

	5c 21/01008/FUL - 8 Keriston Avenue, Churchdown
	21.01008.FUL - 8 Keriston Avenue - Plans

	5d 21/00702/FUL - Framfield, Two Hedges Road, Woodmancote
	21.00702.FUL - Framfield Woodmancote - Plans

	5e 21/00657/FUL - 25 Tudor Close, Churchdown
	21.00657.FUL - 25 Tudor Close - Plans

	5f 20/01024/FUL - 15 Swallow Crescent, Innsworth
	20.01024.FUL - 15 Swallow Crescent  - Plans

	5g 21/00494/FUL - Brock Farm, Church Lane, Staverton
	21.00494.FUL - Brock Farm - Plans

	5h 20/01179/FUL - Land Adjacent to the Bungalow, Down Hatherley Lane, Down Hatherley
	20.00179.FUL - Land Adjacent Bungalow Down Hath - Plans

	5i 21/00601/FUL - Croft Amber, Green Street, Brockworth
	21.00601.FUL - Croft Amber - Plans

	5j 21/00347/FUL - Land Attached to April Cottage, 39 Newtown, Toddington
	21.00347.FUL - Land April Cottage Toddington - Plans

	5k 21/00559/OUT - The Newtons, School Road, Apperley
	21.00559.OUT - The Newtons Apperley - Plans
	Location Plan
	954510-Existing Block Plan
	Inidcative Site Plan as amended


	6 Current Appeals and Appeal Decisions Update



